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Due
August 15, 2009
March 15, 2010
March 15, 2011
March 15, 2012
March 15, 2013
March 15, 2014
March 15, 2015
March 15, 2016
March 15, 2017
March 15, 2018
March 15, 2019

@

@

first optional redemption date at par (March 15, 2019).

85104771.3

Amount
$360,000
3,850,000
2,725,000
2,825,000
2,960,000
3,115,000
3,270,000
3,445,000
3,605,000
3,790,000
3,975,000

Interest
Rate
3.000%
3.000%
4.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%
5.000%

5.000%

MATURITY SCHEDULE

$86,745,000
Revenue Financing System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2009
Initial CuUsIP
Price/Yield Suffix @
0.500% Kz6
0.440% LAO
1.570% LB8
2.100% LC6
2.520% LD4
2.890% LE2
3.120% LF9
3.430% LG7
3.700% LH5
3.890% L1
4.060% LK8

Due
March 15, 2020
March 15, 2021
March 15, 2022
March 15, 2023
March 15, 2024
March 15, 2025
March 15, 2026
March 15, 2027
March 15, 2028
March 15, 2029

(Interest accrues from the delivery date)

Amount
$ 4,170,000
4,380,000
4,610,000
4,850,000
5,100,000
5,355,000
5,635,000
5,935,000
6,235,000
6,555,000

CUSIP Prefix: 88278P

Interest
Rate

5.000%
5.000%
5.250%
5.250%
5.000%
5.250%
5.250%
5.250%
5.000%
5.000%

Initial CcusIP

Price/Yield  Suffix ¥
4.190%® LL6
4.320%% LM4
4.370%% LN2
4.470%% LP7
4.680%? LQ5
4.680%? LR3
4.790%® LS1
4.890%® LT9
5.040% LU6
5.120% LV4

CUSIP numbers have been assigned to this issue by the CUSIP Service Bureau and are included solely for the convenience of the
purchasers of the Bonds. None of the Board, the Financial Advisor, or the Underwriters shall be responsible for the selection or correctness
of the CUSIP numbers shown herein.

Yield calculated based on assumption that the Bonds maturing in the years 2020 through 2027, inclusive, will be called on the
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Name Residence Term Expiration
Ron Blatchley, Chairman Bryan/College Station February 1, 2011
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Ron Mitchell Horseshoe Bay February 1, 2015
David Montagne Beaumont February 1, 2015
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Greg Wilkinson Dallas February 1, 2011
Donna N. Williams Arlington February 1, 2011
William C. Patterson® San Marcos May 31, 2010

M Student Regent. State law does not allow a student regent to vote on matters before the Board.
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Roland Smith Vice Chancellor for Finance 3 years
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Carol Fox Director of Audits & Analysis 2 years
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Dallas, Texas Awustin, Texas
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Texas State University System First Southwest Company
Thomas J. Rusk Building 325 N. St. Paul, Suite 800
200 East 10th Street, Suite 600 Dallas, Texas 75201
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USE OF INFORMATION IN OFFICIAL STATEMENT

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been
authorized to give any information, or to make any
representations, other than those contained in this Official
Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or
representations must not be relied upon as having been
authorized by the Board or the Underwriters. This Official
Statement is not to be used in connection with an offer to sell
or the solicitation of an offer to buy in any state in which such
offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the person
making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to
any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or
solicitation.

Any information and expressions of opinion herein contained
are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery
of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall,
under any circumstances, create any implication that there has
been no change in the affairs of the University System or other
matters described herein since the date hereof.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE
UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT
TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN
THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS AT A LEVEL
ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE
PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH
STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE
DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

CUSIP numbers have been assigned to this issue by the
CUSIP Service Bureau and are included solely for the
convenience of the owners of the Bonds. Neither the Board,
the Financial Advisor nor the Underwriters shall be
responsible for the selection or correctness of the CUSIP
numbers shown on page ii.

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IS INTENDED TO
REFLECT FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES ON THE
DATE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR ON
SUCH OTHER DATE OR AT SUCH OTHER TIME AS
IDENTIFIED HEREIN. NO ASSURANCE CAN BE
GIVEN THAT SUCH INFORMATION WILL NOT BE
MISLEADING AT A LATER DATE.
CONSEQUENTLY, RELIANCE ON THIS OFFICIAL
STATEMENT AT TIMES SUBSEQUENT TO THE
ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS DESCRIBED HEREIN
SHOULD NOT BE MADE ON THE ASSUMPTION
THAT ANY SUCH FACTS OR CIRCUMSTANCES ARE
UNCHANGED.

NONE OF THE BOARD, THE FINANCIAL ADVISOR
OR THE UNDERWRITERS MAKE ANY
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WITH
RESPECT TO THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN
THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT REGARDING THE
DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (“DTC”) OR ITS
BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM.

IN  MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION,
INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN
EXAMINATION OF THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING,
INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED.
NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES
COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED
OF THE SECURITIES OR PASSED UPON THE
ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF THIS DOCUMENT.
ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A
CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

No registration statement relating to the Bonds has been filed
with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance upon
an exemption provided thereunder. The Bonds have not been
registered or qualified under the Securities Act of Texas in
reliance upon various exemptions contained therein; nor have
the Bonds been registered or qualified under the securities
laws of any other jurisdiction. The Board assumes no
responsibility for the registration or qualification for sale or
other disposition of the Bonds under the securities laws of any
jurisdiction in which the Bonds may be offered, sold or
otherwise transferred. This disclaimer of responsibility for
registration or qualification for sale or other disposition of the
Bonds shall not be construed as an interpretation of any kind
with regard to the availability of any exemption from
securities registration or qualifications provisions.

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for
inclusion in this Official Statement. The Underwriters have
reviewed the information in this Official Statement in
accordance with, and as part of, their responsibilities to
investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the
facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the
Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness
of such information.

The statements contained in this Official Statement, and in
other information provided by the Board, that are not purely
historical are forward-looking statements, including
statements regarding the Board’s expectations, hopes,
intentions or strategies regarding the future. All forward-
looking statements included in this Official Statement are
based on information available to the Board on the date
hereof, and the Board assumes no obligation to update any
such forward-looking statements.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

$86,745,000
BOARD OF REGENTS, TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
REVENUE FINANCING SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
SERIES 2009

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page and the appendices hereto, provides certain
information regarding the issuance by the Board of Regents (the “Board”), Texas State University System (the
“University System”), of its $86,745,000 Revenue Financing System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 (the “Bonds”).
Capitalized terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined have the same meanings assigned to
such terms in “Appendix C, EXCERPTS FROM THE MASTER RESOLUTION.”

The following state supported institutions are under the governance and control of the University System:
Lamar University; Lamar Institute of Technology; Lamar State College - Orange; Lamar State College - Port
Arthur; Sam Houston State University; Texas State University - San Marcos (formerly known as Southwest Texas
State University); Sul Ross State University; and Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College. Angelo State
University (“ASU™) was previously under the governance and control of the University System, but during the 80"
Legislature, Regular Session, H.B. 3564 was passed transferring ASU from the University System to the Texas Tech
University System, effective September 1, 2007. All conditions precedent to the release of ASU as a member of the
Revenue Financing System (defined below) pursuant to the Master Resolution were completed and the transfer and
release was effectuated as of February 4, 2009. See “ASU TRANSFER”. For the 2008 Fall Semester, the
University System, had a total enroliment of 68,794 students. For a full description of the University System and its
component institutions, see Appendix A, DESCRIPTION OF THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM.

Pursuant to the Master Resolution, the Board created the Texas State University System Revenue Financing
System (the “Revenue Financing System”) for the purpose of providing a system-wide financing structure for
revenue supported indebtedness to reduce costs, increase borrowing capacity, provide additional security to the
credit markets and provide the Board with increased financial flexibility. Currently, all of the eight component
institutions of the University System identified above are Members in the Revenue Financing System. Pursuant to
the Master Resolution, the Board has, with certain exceptions, combined all of the revenues, funds and balances
attributable to any Member in the Revenue Financing System that may lawfully be pledged to secure the payment of
revenue-supported debt obligations and has pledged those sources as Pledged Revenues to secure the payment of
revenue-supported debt obligations of the Board incurred as Parity Debt under the Master Resolution. The Board has
covenanted that it will not incur any additional debt secured by Pledged Revenues unless such debt constitutes Parity
Debt or is junior and subordinate to Parity Debt. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS—The Revenue Financing
System” and “Appendix C, EXCERPTS FROM THE MASTER RESOLUTION.”

This Official Statement contains summaries and descriptions of the plan of financing, the Master
Resolution, the Bonds, the Board, the University System and other related matters. All references to and descriptions
of documents contained herein are only summaries and are qualified in their entirety by reference to each such
document. Copies of such documents may be obtained from Charles R. Matthews, Chancellor, Texas State
University System, Thomas J. Rusk Building, Suite 600, 200 East 10th, Austin, Texas 78701-2407.

THE BONDS

Authority for Issuance of the Bonds. The Bonds are being issued in accordance with the general laws of the State
of Texas, including particularly Chapters 54 and 55 of the Texas Education Code, as amended, including
Section 55.1754 of the Texas Education Code, Chapter 1371, Texas Government Code, as amended, and other
applicable law, and pursuant to the Master Resolution, the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution, and a certificate
awarding the sale of the Bonds (the “Award Certificate”). The Bonds will be the fourteenth series of debt
obligations issued as Parity Debt and payable from the Pledged Revenues. The Master Resolution permits additional
Parity Debt to be issued in the future. Each issue of long-term Parity Debt was issued pursuant to supplements to the
Master Resolution.




As of May 1, 2009, long-term Parity Debt in the aggregate principal amount of $617,040,000 was outstanding. See
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - The Revenue Financing System,” “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS—Additional
Obligations”, “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Parity Debt” and “Appendix A, DESCRIPTION OF THE
UNIVERSITY SYSTEM—Outstanding Indebtedness.”

Purpose. The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of (i) acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving,
renovating, enlarging or equipping property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads or related infrastructure for
members of the Revenue Financing System, and (ii) paying certain costs of issuing the Bonds. See “THE BONDS —
Purposes.”

Estimated Sources and Uses of the Bonds. The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be applied as
follows:

Sources of Funds

Par Amount of Bonds $86,745,000.00

Net Original Issue Premium $ 4,207,964.35
Total Sources of Funds $90,952,964.35
Uses of Funds

Deposit to Project Fund $90,247,016.00

Costs of Issuance (including Underwriters’ Discount) $ 705,948.35
Total Uses of Funds $90,952,964.35

General. The Bonds will be initially issued in book-entry-only form, as discussed below under “THE
BONDS—Book-Entry-Only System,” but may subsequently be issued in certificated form, in either case only as
fully registered bonds, without coupons, in any integral multiple of $5,000 principal amount within a stated
maturity. The Bonds will be dated June 15, 2009, will accrue interest from the delivery date, and will bear interest
at the per annum rates, mature on the dates and in the principal amounts shown on the inside front cover page of this
Official Statement. Interest on the Bonds, other than the Bonds maturing August 15, 2009, is payable on each March
15 and September 15 thereafter, commencing March 15, 2010 until maturity or prior redemption and interest on the
Bonds maturing August 15, 2009 is payable on August 15, 2009. Interest is payable to the person in whose name
such Bond is registered on the last business day of the month next preceding such interest payment date.

In the event that any date for payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds is a Saturday, Sunday,
legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions are authorized by law or executive order to close in the city
where the Designated Trust Office (as hereinafter defined) of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.
(the “Paying Agent/Registrar”) is located, then the date for such payment will be the next succeeding day which is
not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close (a “Business
Day”). Payment on such later date will not increase the amount of interest due and will have the same force and
effect as if made on the original date payment was due.

Redemption.

Optional Redemption. The Bonds scheduled to mature on and after March 15, 2020 are subject to
redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Board on March 15, 2019 or on any date thereafter, in whole or
from time to time in part, in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (and, if in part, the
particular Bonds or portion thereof to be redeemed shall be selected by the Board) at a price of 100% of the principal
amount plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

Notice of Redemption. At least 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or portions
thereof prior to maturity, a written notice of such redemption shall be published once in a financial publication,
journal or reporter of general circulation among securities dealers in the City of New York, New York or in the State
of Texas. Such notice shall also be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage
prepaid, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption, to the registered owners of each bond or a
portion thereof to be redeemed at its address as it appeared on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar
on the 45" day prior to such redemption date; provided, however, that the failure to send, mail or receive such
notice, or any defect therein or in the sending or mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the
proceedings for the redemption of any Bond and that publication of such notice as described above shall be the only




notice actually required. By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be made with the Paying
Agent/Registrar for the payment of the required redemption price for the Bonds or portions thereof which are to be
so redeemed. If such notice of redemption is given and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided
above, the Bonds or portions thereof which are to be redeemed thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed
prior to their scheduled maturities, and they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they shall
not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the registered owner to receive the redemption price
from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds provided for such payment.

During any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined by a book entry at a securities depository
for the Bonds, if fewer than all of the Bonds of the same maturity and bearing the same interest rate are to be
redeemed, the particular Bonds of such maturity and bearing such interest rate shall be selected in accordance with
the arrangements between the Board and the securities depository.

If at the time of mailing of notice of any optional redemption in connection with a refunding of the Bonds,
the Board shall not have deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar moneys sufficient to redeem all of the Bonds
called for redemption, such notice may state that it is conditional in that it is subject to the deposit of the proceeds of
refunding bonds with the Paying Agent/Registrar not later than the redemption date, and such notice shall be of no
effect unless such moneys are so deposited.

Legality. The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued, subject to the approval of legality by the Attorney
General of the State of Texas and the opinion of McCall, Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P., Austin, Texas, Bond Counsel.
See “LEGAL MATTERS.”

Paying Agent/Registrar. The Board covenants in the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution to maintain and
provide a paying agent/registrar at all times until the Bonds are paid. The initial Paying Agent/Registrar is The
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.

Successor Paying Agent/Registrar. In the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution, the Board reserves the
right to replace the Paying Agent/Registrar. The Board covenants to maintain and provide a Paying Agent/Registrar
at all times while the Bonds are outstanding, and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a competent and
legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or other qualified agency. In the event that the entity at
any time acting as Paying Agent/Registrar should resign or otherwise cease to act as such, the Board covenants to
promptly appoint a competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution or other qualified
agency to act as Paying Agent/Registrar. Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the Bonds,
the Board agrees to promptly cause a written notice thereof to be sent to each registered owner of the affected Bonds
by United States mail, first-class, postage prepaid, which notice shall also give the address of the new Paying
Agent/Registrar.

Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution. The issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds are authorized by the
Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution and the Award Certificate authorized in the Thirteenth Supplemental
Resolution. The Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution also contains the written determination by the Board, as
required by the Master Resolution as a condition to the issuance of Parity Debt, that it will have sufficient funds to
meet the financial obligations of the University System, including sufficient Pledged Revenues to satisfy the annual
debt service requirements of the Revenue Financing System and to meet all financial obligations of the Board
relating to the Revenue Financing System and that the Members on whose behalf the Bonds are issued possess the
financial capacity to satisfy their Direct Obligations after taking the Bonds into account.

The Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution permits amendment, without the consent of the Bondholders, for
the same purposes for which amendment may be made to the Master Resolution without the consent of the owners
of outstanding Parity Debt. See “Appendix C, EXCERPTS FROM THE MASTER RESOLUTION.” The
Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution also permits amendment, with the consent of the owners of 51% in aggregate
principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds, other than amendments which change the maturity of the Outstanding
Bonds, reduce the rate of interest borne by the Outstanding Bonds, reduce the amount of principal payable on the
Outstanding Bonds, modify the payment of principal of or interest on the Outstanding Bonds, or impose any
conditions with respect to such payment, affect the rights of the owners of less than all Bonds then outstanding, or
change the minimum percentage of outstanding principal amount of Bonds necessary for consent to an amendment.



Additional Defeasance Provisions. In addition to the defeasance provisions set forth in the Master
Resolution as described in “Appendix C”, the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution provides that, to the extent that
the Bonds are treated as Defeased Debt for purposes of the Master Resolution, any determination not to redeem
Defeased Debt that is made in conjunction with the payment arrangements specified in the Master Resolution shall
not be irrevocable, provided that: (1) in the proceedings providing for such defeasance, the Board expressly reserves
the right to call the Defeased Debt for redemption; (2) gives notice of the reservation of that right to the owners of
the Defeased Debt immediately following the defeasance; (3) directs that notice of the reservation be included in
any defeasance notices that it authorizes; and (4) at or prior to the time of the redemption, satisfies the conditions of
the Master Resolution with respect to such Defeased Debt as though it was being defeased at the time of the exercise
of the option to redeem the Defeased Debt, after taking the redemption into account in determining the sufficiency
of the provisions made for the payment of the Defeased Debt.

The Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution also provides that, with respect to the defeasance of the Bonds, the
term Government Obligations shall mean (i) direct, noncallable obligations of the United States of America,
including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, (ii) noncallable
obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States of America, including obligations that are
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the date of the purchase thereof
are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its
equivalent, and (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political
subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date the Board adopts or approves the proceedings
authorizing the financial arrangements are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment
rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent.

Book Entry-Only System. The following information has been furnished by The Depository Trust
Company, New York, New York (“DTC™), for use in disclosure documents such as this Official Statement. None of
the Board, the Financial Advisor or the Underwriters make any representation or warranty regarding the information
furnished by DTC.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities
registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds,
each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, corporate and
municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct
Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales
and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities
certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities
Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC
is owned by users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both
U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect
Participants”). DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com
and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will
receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond
(“Beneficial Owner™) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial owners
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,



from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of
ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their
ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such
other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts
such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will
remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of
significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond
documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for
their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners
may wish to provide their names and addresses to the Paying Agent/Registrar and request that copies of notices be
provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant to be
redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Bonds
unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC
mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Board as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede &
Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record
date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts, upon
DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Board or Paying Agent/Registrar, on payable
date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the
accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant
and not of DTC nor its nominee, the Paying Agent/Registrar, or the Board, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Board or the
Paying Agent/Registrar, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect
Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the Board or the Paying Agent/Registrar. Under such circumstances, in the event that a
successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Board may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from
sources that the Board believes to be reliable, but the Board takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

Use of Certain Terms in Other Sections of this Official Statement. In reading this Official Statement it
should be understood that while the Bonds are in the Book-Entry-Only System, references in other sections of this



Official Statement to registered owners should be read to include the person for which the Participant acquires an
interest in the Bonds, but (i) all rights of ownership must be exercised through DTC and the Book-Entry-Only
System, and (ii) except as described above, notices that are to be given to registered owners under the Master
Resolution or the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution will be given only to DTC.

THE PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AND THE BOARD, SO LONG AS THE DTC
BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM IS USED FOR THE BONDS, WILL SEND ANY NOTICE OF REDEMPTION,
NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER RESOLUTION, THE THIRTEENTH
SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION, OR OTHER NOTICES WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS ONLY TO
DTC. ANY FAILURE BY DTC TO ADVISE ANY DTC PARTICIPANT, OR OF ANY DIRECT
PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT TO NOTIFY THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS, OF ANY
NOTICES AND THEIR CONTENTS OR EFFECT WILL NOT AFFECT THE VALIDITY OF THE
REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS CALLED FOR REDEMPTION OR OF ANY OTHER ACTION
PREMISED ON ANY SUCH NOTICE. REDEMPTION OF PORTIONS OF BONDS BY THE BOARD
WILL REDUCE THE OUTSTANDING PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF SUCH BONDS HELD BY DTC. IN
SUCH EVENT, DTC MAY IMPLEMENT, THROUGH ITS BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM, A REDEMPTION
OF SUCH BONDS HELD FOR THE ACCOUNT OF DTC PARTICIPANTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITS
OWN RULES OR OTHER AGREEMENTS WITH DTC PARTICIPANTS AND THEN DIRECT
PARTICIPANTS AND INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS MAY IMPLEMENT A REDEMPTION OF SUCH
BONDS FROM THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS. ANY SUCH SELECTION OF THE BONDS TO BE
REDEEMED WILL NOT BE GOVERNED BY THE THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION
AND WILL NOT BE CONDUCTED BY THE BOARD OR THE PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR.
NEITHER THE BOARD NOR THE PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR WILL HAVE ANY
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO DIRECT PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR
THE PERSONS FOR WHOM DTC PARTICIPANTS ACT AS NOMINEES, WITH RESPECT TO THE
PAYMENTS ON THE AFFECTED BONDS OR THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE TO DIRECT
PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE SELECTION OF
PORTIONS OF THE BONDS FOR REDEMPTION. IF LESS THAN ALL OF THE BONDS ARE TO BE
REDEEMED, THE CURRENT DTC PRACTICE IS TO DETERMINE BY LOT THE AMOUNT OF
INTEREST OF EACH DTC PARTICIPANT TO BE REDEEMED.

Transfer, Exchange, and Registration. In the event the book-entry system is discontinued, the affected
Bonds may be transferred and exchanged on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar only upon
presentation and surrender thereof to the Paying Agent/Registrar at its designated trust office, initially its office in
Dallas, Texas (the “Designated Trust Office”), and such transfer or exchange shall be without expense or service
charge to the registered owner, except for any tax or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to
such registration, exchange and transfer. A Bond may be assigned by the execution of an assignment form on the
Bond or by other instrument of transfer and assignment acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar. A new Bond will
be delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar, in lieu of the Bond being transferred or exchanged, at the Designated
Trust Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. To the extent possible, new Bonds issued in an exchange or transfer of
Bonds will be delivered to the registered owner or assignee of the registered owner in not more than three business
days after the receipt of the Bonds to be canceled, and the written instrument of transfer or request for exchange duly
executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized agent, in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar.
New Bonds registered and delivered in an exchange or transfer shall be in any integral multiple of $5,000 for any
one maturity and for a like aggregate principal amount as the Bond or Bonds surrendered for exchange or transfer.

Limitations on Transfer of Bonds. Neither the Board nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to
make any transfer or exchange during a period beginning with the close of business on any Record Date and ending
with the opening of business on the next following interest payment date or, with respect to any Bond or portion
thereof called for redemption, within 45 days prior to its redemption date.

Record Date for Interest Payment. The record date (“Record Date”) for the interest payable on any
interest payment date means the last business day of the month next preceding such interest payment date.

Special Record Date. In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30
days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the
Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the University
System. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (which shall




be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five business days prior to the Special Record Date
by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each Bondholder appearing on the registration
books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of
mailing of such notice.

Damaged, Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds. In case any Bond shall be damaged, mutilated,
lost, stolen or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar may register and deliver a replacement Bond of like form and
tenor, and in the same denomination and bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, in exchange and
substitution for, or in lieu of such damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Bond, only upon the approval of the
University System and after (i) the filing by the registered owner thereof with the Paying Agent/Registrar of
evidence satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar of the destruction, loss or theft of such Bond, and of the
authenticity of the ownership thereof and (ii) the furnishing to the Paying Agent/Registrar of indemnification in an
amount satisfactory to hold the University System and the Paying Agent/Registrar harmless. All expenses and
charges associated with such indemnity and with the preparation, execution and delivery of a replacement Bond
shall be borne by the registered owner of the Bond damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed.

Bondholder Remedies. The Master Resolution and the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution do not
establish specific events of default with respect to the Bonds. If the Board defaults in the payment of the principal
of or interest on the Bonds when due, any registered owner is entitled to seek a writ of mandamus from a court of
proper jurisdiction requiring the Board to make such payment or observe and perform such covenants, obligations or
conditions. Such right is in addition to any other rights the registered owners of the Bonds may be provided by the
laws of the State. Under Texas law, there is no right to the acceleration of maturity of the Bonds upon the failure of
the Board to observe any covenant under the Master Resolution or the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution. Such
registered owner's only practical remedy, if a default occurs, is a mandamus or mandatory injunction proceeding to
compel the Board to set tuition and fees at a level sufficient to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds as such
becomes due. The enforcement of any such remedy may be difficult and time consuming and a registered owner
could be required to enforce such remedy on a periodic basis.

In general, Texas courts have held that a writ of mandamus may be issued to require public officials to
perform ministerial acts that clearly pertain to their duties. Texas courts have held that a ministerial act is defined as
a legal duty that is prescribed and defined with a precision and certainty that leaves nothing to the exercise of
discretion or judgment, though mandamus is not available to enforce purely contractual duties. However, Texas
courts have held that mandamus may be used to require a public officer to perform legally-imposed ministerial
duties necessary for the performance of a valid contract to which the State or a political subdivision of the State is a
party, including the payment of monies due under a contract.

Under current State law, the Board is prohibited from waiving sovereign immunity from suit or liability
with respect to the Bonds, and the owners thereof are prevented by operation of the Board’s sovereign immunity
from bringing a suit against the Board in a court of law to adjudicate a claim to enforce the Bonds or for damages for
breach of the Bonds. However, State courts have held that mandamus proceedings against a governmental unit,
such as the Board, as discussed in the preceding paragraphs, are not prohibited by sovereign immunity.

The Master Resolution and the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution do not provide for the appointment of a
trustee to represent the interest of the bondholders upon any failure of the Board to perform in accordance with the
terms of the Master Resolution and the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution, or upon any other condition. The
opinion of Bond Counsel will note that all opinions relative to the enforceability of the Master Resolution and the
Bonds are qualified with respect to the customary rights of debtors relative to their creditors.

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

The Revenue Financing System. The Master Resolution created the Revenue Financing System to
provide a financing structure for revenue supported indebtedness of the component institutions of the University
System and other entities which may be included in the future, by Board action, as Members in the Revenue
Financing System. The Revenue Financing System is intended to facilitate the assembling of all of the Members’
revenue-supported debt capacity into a single financing program in order to provide a cost-effective debt program to
Members and to maximize the financing options available to the Board. The Master Resolution provides that once a
university or agency becomes a Member, the lawfully available revenues, income, receipts, rentals, rates, charges,
fees, including interest or other income, and balances attributable to that entity and pledged by the Board become




part of the Pledged Revenues; provided, however, that, if at the time an entity becomes a Member it has outstanding
obligations secured by such sources, such obligations will constitute Prior Encumbered Obligations under the Master
Resolution and the pledge of such sources as Pledged Revenues will be subject and subordinate to such outstanding
Prior Encumbered Obligations. Thereafter, the Board may issue bonds, notes, commercial paper, contracts, or other
evidences of indebtedness, including credit agreements, on behalf of such institution, on a parity, as to payment and
security, with the Outstanding Parity Debt, subject only to the outstanding Prior Encumbered Obligations, if any,
with respect to such Member. Upon becoming a Member, an entity may no longer issue obligations having a lien on
Pledged Revenues prior to the lien on the Outstanding Parity Debt. Generally, Prior Encumbered Obligations are
those bonds or other obligations issued on behalf of a Member which were outstanding on the date such entity
became a Member in the Revenue Financing System. Upon the issuance of the Bonds, there will be $2,320,000 of
Prior Encumbered Obligations outstanding. The Board does not currently anticipate adding Members to the
Revenue Financing System which would result in the assumption of additional Prior Encumbered Obligations;
however, no assurance can be given that the State Legislature will not add or remove additional component
institutions to the University System in the future. See “Appendix A, DESCRIPTION OF THE UNIVERSITY
SYSTEM - Outstanding Indebtedness.”

The State Legislature in 1997 enacted S.B. 1907, which made significant changes to higher education in
Texas. S.B. 1907, among other things, authorizes the student fees previously constituting substantially all of the
fees previously charged and collected by state universities to be imposed as additional tuition. Moreover, S.B. 1907
provided significantly broader authority to pledge tuition and certain other revenues, and to increase tuition as
necessary, to pay indebtedness. The provisions of S.B. 1907 are reflected in the descriptions of the Master
Resolution contained in this Official Statement. See “Appendix C, EXCERPTS FROM THE MASTER
RESOLUTION” and “Appendix A, DESCRIPTION OF THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM - Funding for the
University System and its Component Institutions - Tuition and Fees.”

In connection with each issuance of Parity Debt, the Board will make an accounting allocation to each
Member of the University System of its proportionate share, if any, of such Parity Debt (hereinafter referred to as a
Member’s “Direct Obligation”). The Master Resolution provides that the Board, in establishing the annual budget
for each Member of the Revenue Financing System shall provide for the satisfaction by each Member of its Direct
Obligation. A Member’s Direct Obligation is the financial responsibility of such Member with respect to
Outstanding Parity Debt.

Further, the Master Resolution provides that if, in the judgment of the Board, any Member of the Revenue
Financing System has been or will be unable to meet its Annual Obligation (which includes its Direct Obligation),
the Board shall fix, levy, charge, and collect rentals, rates, fees and charges for goods and services furnished by such
Member and the Pledged General Tuition, effective at the next succeeding regular semester(s) or summer term(s), in
amounts sufficient, without limit (after taking into account the anticipated effect of the proposed adjustments would
have on enrollment and the receipt of Pledged Revenues), together with other legally available funds, including
Pledged Revenues attributable to such Member, to enable it to pay its Annual Obligations.

Pledge Under Master Resolution. All Parity Debt constitutes a special obligation of the Board equally
and ratably secured solely by and payable solely from a pledge of and lien on the Pledged Revenues as described
below.

The Pledged Revenues consist of, subject to the provisions of the Prior Encumbered Obligations, the
Revenue Funds, including all of the funds and balances now or hereafter lawfully available to the Board and derived
from or attributable to any Member of the Revenue Financing System which are lawfully available to the Board for
payments on Parity Debt, including payments contemplated by the Agreement; provided, however, that the
following shall not be included in Pledged Revenues unless and to the extent set forth in a supplement to the Master
Resolution: (a) amounts received on behalf of any Member under Article VII, Section 17 of the State Constitution
(generally, a provision of the State Constitution providing for an annual appropriation, as increased by the State
Legislature, of $175 million to be allocated among eligible agencies and institutions of higher education for the
purpose of providing funds for acquisition of capital assets and the construction of capital improvements), including
the income therefrom and any fund balances relating thereto; and (b) except to the extent so specifically
appropriated, general revenue funds appropriated to the Board by the Legislature of the State of Texas. The
“Revenue Funds” are defined in the Master Resolution to include the “revenue funds” of the Board (as defined in
Section 55.01 of the Texas Education Code to mean the revenues, incomes, receipts, rentals, rates, charges, fees,
grants, and tuition levied or collected from any public or private source by an institution of higher education,



including interest or other income from those funds) derived by the Board from the operations of the Members,
including specifically the Pledged General Tuition; provided, that Revenue Funds does not include, with respect to
each series or issue of Parity Debt, any tuition, rentals, rates, fees, or other charges attributable to any student in a
category which, at the time of adoption of the Supplement relating to such Parity Debt is exempt by law from paying
such tuition, rentals, rates, fees, or other charges. All legally available funds of the Members, including unrestricted
fund and reserve balances, are pledged to the payment of the Parity Debt. For a more detailed description of the
Pledged General Tuition, see “Appendix C, EXCERPTS FROM THE MASTER RESOLUTION.” For a more
detailed description of the types of revenues and expenditures of the University System, see “Appendix A,
DESCRIPTION OF THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM.”

Chapter 1208, as amended, Texas Government Code, applies to the issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of
the Pledged Revenues, and such pledge is therefore, valid, effective and perfected. Should Texas law be amended
while the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, the result of such amendment being that the pledge of the Pledged
Revenues is to be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Texas Business and Commerce Code, in order to
preserve to the registered owners of the Bonds a security interest in such pledge, the Board agrees to take such
measures as it determines are reasonable and necessary to enable a filing of a security interest in said pledge to
occur.

The following table sets forth a historical compilation for fiscal years 2004 through 2008, inclusive, and a
pro forma listing for fiscal year 2009 of the available revenues available during such years that would constitute
Pledged Revenues under the Revenue Financing System based on current law:

TABLE 1
Pledged Revenues

Proforma
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009%®

Available Pledged Revenues Not

Including Fund Balances™ $280,347,416 $316,970,314 $348,110,026 $332,847,030 $334,099,219  $340,800,000

Unrestricted Net Assets®® 275,493,137 276,176,214 325,212,508 329,926,921 322,489,790 329,000,000

Total Pledged Revenues and

Unrestricted Net Assets $555,840,653 $593,146,528 $673,322,543 $662,773,951 $656,589,009  $669,800,000
1) The Available Pledged Revenues shown above consist of tuition, designated tuition, student center fees, and recovery of indirect costs

for federal grants and contracts, federal pass-through grants from other agencies and State grants and contracts. The prior encumbered
revenues of the University System are excluded.

) Texas State University System Combined Annual Financial Report. In addition to current year Pledged Revenues, any unappropriated
or reserve fund balances remaining at year-end are available for payment of the subsequent year’s debt service.

3) Unrestricted Net Assets in the Proforma column are estimated at the immediate prior year’s total.

Subject to the provisions of the Master Resolution authorizing the Prior Encumbered Obligations, the
Board has covenanted in the Master Resolution that in each fiscal year it will establish, charge, and use its
reasonable efforts to collect Pledged Revenues which, if collected, would be sufficient to meet all financial
obligations of the Board relating to the Revenue Financing System including all deposits or payments due on or with
respect to Outstanding Parity Debt for such fiscal year. The Board has also covenanted in the Master Resolution that
it will not incur any debt secured by Pledged Revenues unless such debt constitutes Parity Debt or is junior and
subordinate to the Parity Debt. The Board intends to issue most of its revenue-supported debt obligations which
benefit the Members as Parity Debt under the Master Resolution.

THE OPERATIONS OF THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM AND ITS COMPONENT INSTITUTIONS
ARE HEAVILY DEPENDENT ON STATE APPROPRIATIONS. THE BOARD AND THE COMPONENT
INSTITUTIONS HAVE NO ASSURANCE THAT STATE APPROPRIATIONS TO THE COMPONENT
INSTITUTIONS WILL CONTINUE AT THE SAME LEVEL AS IN PREVIOUS YEARS. See “Appendix A,
DESCRIPTION OF THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM—Funding for the University System and its Component
Institutions.”



THE BONDS ARE NOT GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE BOARD, THE UNIVERSITY
SYSTEM, THE STATE, OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE. THE BOARD HAS NO
TAXING POWER, AND NEITHER THE CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OR
ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE IS PLEDGED AS SECURITY FOR THE BONDS. THE
BREACH OF ANY COVENANT, AGREEMENT, OR OBLIGATION CONTAINED IN THE
THIRTEENTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION WILL NOT IMPOSE OR RESULT IN GENERAL
LIABILITY ON OR A CHARGE AGAINST THE GENERAL CREDIT OF THE BOARD OR THE
UNIVERSITY SYSTEM.

Additional Obligations. The Board may issue additional Parity Debt to provide funds for the purpose of
acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging or equipping the property, buildings,
structures, facilities, roads or related infrastructure for the Members of the Revenue Financing System and to pay
costs of issuance related to such additional Parity Debt. See “FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLANS.”
The Board may also issue additional Parity Debt to refund outstanding Prior Encumbered Obligations and
Outstanding Parity Debt.

Parity Debt. The Board has previously issued other obligations that constitute Parity Debt. The Board has
reserved the right to issue or incur additional Parity Debt for any purpose authorized by law pursuant to the
provisions of the Master Resolution and a supplemental resolution. The Board may incur, assume, guarantee, or
otherwise become liable with respect to any Parity Debt if the Board has determined that it will have sufficient funds
to meet the financial obligations of the Members, including sufficient Pledged Revenues to satisfy the annual debt
service requirements of the Revenue Financing System and to meet all financial obligations of the Board relating to
the Revenue Financing System. The Master Resolution provides that the Board will not issue or incur additional
Parity Debt unless (i) the Board determines that the Member or Members for whom the Parity Debt is being issued
or incurred possess the financial capacity to satisfy their respective Direct Obligations, after taking into account the
then proposed additional Parity Debt, and (ii) a System Representative delivers to the Board a certificate stating that,
to the best of his or her knowledge, the Board is in compliance with all covenants contained in the Master
Resolution and any Supplement and is not in default in the performance and observance of any of the terms,
provisions, and conditions thereof.

Nonrecourse Debt and Subordinated Debt. The Master Resolution provides that Non-Recourse Debt and
Subordinated Debt may be incurred by the Board without limitation. No such Non-Recourse Debt or Subordinated
Debt has been issued by the Board on behalf of the Members.
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The following table is a summary of the debt service requirements of all Parity Debt and Prior Encumbered Obligations outstanding following the
issuance of the Bonds. For a discussion of other debt of the University System payable from Higher Education Assistance Fund payments, see
“Appendix A, DESCRIPTION OF THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM —Funding for the University System and its Component Institutions-State
Appropriations” and “ — Higher Education Assistance Fund (HEAF) Bonds.”

TABLE 2
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

Texas State University System — Revenue Financing System
Debt Service Requirements

The Bonds
Prior Outstanding Total Annual
Period Encumbered Parity Debt Debt
Ending Obligation™® Service™ Principal Interest Total Service*®
Aug. 31, 2009 $ 611,688 $ 59,095,521 $ 360,000 1,350 $ 361,350 $ 60,068,559
Aug. 31, 2010 613,763 58,363,431 3,850,000 3,032,348 6,882,348 65,859,542
Aug. 31. 2011 614,200 56,453,849 2,725,000 4,165,463 6,890,463 63,958,512
Aug. 31, 2012 182,950 54,379,880 2,825,000 4,056,463 6,881,463 61,444,293
Aug. 31, 2013 183,075 53,693,454 2,960,000 3,915,213 6,875,213 60,751,741
Aug. 31, 2014 178,125 53,268,540 3,115,000 3,767,213 6,882,213 60,328,877
Aug. 31, 2015 183,025 52,339,627 3,270,000 3,611,463 6,881,463 59,404,114
Aug. 31, 2016 182,700 50,657,582 3,445,000 3,447,963 6,892,963 57,733,245
Aug. 31, 2017 50,431,552 3,605,000 3,275,713 6,880,713 57,312,264
Aug. 31, 2018 50,439,099 3,790,000 3,095,463 6,885,463 57,324,561
Aug. 31, 2019 45,431,435 3,975,000 2,905,963 6,880,963 52,312,397
Aug. 31, 2020 45,458,149 4,170,000 2,707,213 6,877,213 52,335,361
Aug. 31, 2021 43,374,915 4,380,000 2,498,713 6,878,713 50,253,628
Aug. 31, 2022 42,381,653 4,610,000 2,279,713 6,889,713 49,271,366
Aug. 31, 2023 32,641,319 4,850,000 2,037,688 6,887,688 39,529,006
Aug. 31, 2024 28,926,163 5,100,000 1,783,063 6,883,063 35,809,225
Aug. 31, 2025 28,936,450 5,355,000 1,528,063 6,883,063 35,819,513
Aug. 31, 2026 28,925,850 5,635,000 1,246,925 6,881,925 35,807,775
Aug. 31, 2027 24,307,625 5,935,000 951,088 6,886,088 31,193,713
Aug. 31, 2028 24,274,000 6,235,000 639,500 6,874,500 31,148,500
Aug. 31, 2029 9,997,000 6,555,000 327,750 6,882,750 16,879,750
Aug. 31, 2030 10,000,500 10,000,500
Aug. 31, 2031 10,003,500 10,003,500
Aug. 31, 2032 4,900,000 4,900,000
Aug. 31, 2033 3,974,250 3,974,250
Aug. 31, 2034 3,969,000 3,969,000
TOTAL $2,749,525 $926,624,343 $86,745,000 $51,274,323 $138,019,323 $1,067,393,191
D Does not include $67,431,460 of outstanding ASU-related debt.
OUTSTANDING DEBT OBLIGATIONS
(as of May 5, 2009)
Parity Debt Total
Taxable Series 1998 $ 1,925,000
Series 2000 $ 1,225,000
Series 2001 $ 5,370,000
Series 2002 & Taxable Series 2002A $ 110,965,000
Series 2003 $ 37,775,000
Series 2004 $ 77,765,000
Series 2005 $ 40820000
Series 2006 $ 131,930,000
Series 2006A $ 21,855,000
Series 2008 $ 187,410,000
$ 617,040,000
Prior Encumbered Debt
Housing System, Series 1986 $ 1,150,000
Utility System, Series 1996 $ 1,170,000
$2,320,000
Other Obligations
Capital Leases $ 421,000
TOTAL $ 619,781,000
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ASU TRANSFER
General

The 80" Texas Legislature approved House Bill 3564 (“H.B. 3564”) which transferred Angelo State University
located in San Angelo, Texas (“ASU”) from the University System to the Texas Tech University System (“Texas
Tech”) effective September 1, 2007.

Pursuant to H.B. 3564, all contracts and written obligations of every kind and character entered into by the Board for
and on behalf of ASU, other than bonds, are considered ratified, confirmed, and validated by the Board of Regents of
Texas Tech on the effective date of the transfer (i.e., September 1, 2007) and in those contracts and written obligations,
the Board of Regents of Texas Tech is substituted for and stands and acts in the place of the Board to the extent permitted
by law. Additionally, all funds that, on the effective date of the transfer, had been appropriated or dedicated to or
were held for the use and benefit of ASU under the governance of the Board of the University System were
transferred to the Board of Texas Tech for the use and benefit of ASU. Effective September 1, 2007, ASU is no
longer under the control or governance of the Board.

Outstanding Parity Debt

Pursuant to the terms of the Master Resolution, the Board has consented with and bound itself to the owners
of the currently outstanding Parity Debt that a Member of the Revenue Financing System may not be removed from the
Revenue Financing System unless (1) the Board specifically finds that, after the release of the Member (based on a
certificate signed by a System Representative), the Board will have sufficient funds during each fiscal year in which
Parity Debt shall thereafter be outstanding to meet the financial obligations of the University System, including
sufficient Pledged Revenues to satisfy the Annual Debt Service Requirements of the Revenue Financing System and
to meet all financial obligations of the Board relating to the Revenue Financing System; (2) the Board shall have received
an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that such release will not affect the status for federal income tax purposes of
interest on any Outstanding Parity Debt and that all conditions precedent provided in the Master Resolution or any
Supplement relating to such release have been complied with; and (3) if the Member to be released from the Revenue
Financing System is to no longer be under the governance and control of the Board, the Board must receive a binding
obligation from the new governing body of the withdrawing Member obligating such governing body to make payments
to the Board at the time and in the amounts equal to such withdrawing Member’s Annual Obligation and to pay or
discharge the withdrawing Member’s Direct Obligations.

Amendment of Master Resolution and Release

On June 19, 2008, the Board adopted a Resolution Amending the Master Resolution establishing the Texas
State University System Revenue Financing System (the “Amending Resolution™) which amended the definition of
“Pledged Revenues” in the Master Resolution to include payments received from Texas Tech. The Amending
Resolution also provides for the automatic release of ASU as a Member of the University System’s Revenue
Financing System without further action by the Board upon the delivery of (i) a binding obligation in compliance
with the Master Resolution providing for Texas Tech to make payments to the Board at the times and in the amounts
equal to ASU’s Annual Obligation and to pay or discharge ASU’s Direct Obligation and (ii) an opinion of counsel
required by the Master Resolution that such release will not affect the status for federal income tax purposes of
interest on any outstanding Parity Debt and that all conditions precedent relating to such release in the Master
Resolution or in any supplemental resolution thereto have been complied with.

The amendments to the Master Resolution were subject to the following conditions:
1) no form of binding obligation other than as contemplated by the Agreement is considered to
satisfy the requirements of the Amending Resolution without the prior written consent of the bond

insurers of any then Outstanding Parity Debt; and

2 no amendment of the Agreement or any binding obligation delivered by Texas Tech is effective
without the prior written consent of the bond insurers of any then Outstanding Parity Debt.
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In adopting the Amending Resolution, the Board specifically found, as required by the Master Resolution, that
(based upon a certificate delivered by the University System Chancellor) after the release of ASU in accordance with
the prerequisites for such release set forth in the Amending Resolution, the Board will have sufficient funds during
each fiscal year in which Parity Debt will thereafter be outstanding to meet the financial obligations of the University
System, including sufficient Pledged Revenues (as that term is defined in the Amending Resolution to include
payments received from Texas Tech), to satisfy the Annual Debt Service Requirements of the Revenue Financing
System and to meet all financial obligations of the Board relating to the Revenue Financing System. In that the Board is
adding to the security of the Owners pursuant to the provisions of the Amending Resolution, consent of the Owners
was not necessary for the Board to adopt the Amending Resolution.

On December 30, 2008, the Board received the executed (i) “Agreement between the Board of Regents,
Texas Tech University System and the Board of Regents, Texas State University System” (the “TT-TSUS
Agreement”), dated as of December 19, 2008, and the (ii) Board of Regents of Texas University System Revenue
Financing System Refunding Note Thirteenth Series (2008)(the “Note”), which together constitute a binding
obligation in accordance with Section 7 of the Master Resolution related to the transfer and release of ASU as a
Member of the Revenue Financing System. The Note provides for payments coming due in amounts and at times
necessary to pay the debt service due on the ASU related Parity Debt and is secured by a lien on Texas Tech’s
pledged revenues pursuant to the Texas Tech revenue financing system on parity with Texas Tech’s outstanding
revenue financing system parity debt. On January 14, 2009, the Board received the approval of the Note by the
Attorney General of the State of Texas and the Texas Bond Review Board. Under the terms of the TT-TSUS
Agreement, the Board is obligated to use the payments it receives under the Note to make payments on the ASU-
related Parity Debt. The TT-TSUS Agreement also provides that Texas Tech may assume, refund or defease all or a
portion of the ASU-related Parity Debt provided that the assumption, refunding or defeasance does not result in
additional costs to the University System. In the event Texas Tech assumes, refunds or defeases all or a portion of
the ASU-related Parity Debt, an amount of the Note equal to the amount of the ASU-related Parity Debt so assumed,
refunded or defeased shall be cancelled and discharged on the effective date of such assumption, refunding or
defeasance. The Board shall not refinance, refund, defease or prepay the ASU-related Parity Debt without the prior
written consent of Texas Tech, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

On February 4, 2009, Bond Counsel to the System delivered the opinion required by Master Resolution;
that all conditions precedent to the release of ASU as a member of the Revenue Financing System pursuant to the
Master Resolution were completed and the transfer was effectuated as of February 4, 2009.

FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLANS

The University System’s component institutions plan for future capital improvements through individual
Campus Master Plans that identify long term needs for capital improvements. The University System’s current
capital improvement program for the years 2009 through 2014 is set forth below. The Campus Master Plans are
subject to change and are reviewed periodically by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board and are used by
that agency as one factor in the formula funding methodology used to allocate the University System’s share of the
$262,500,000 annual Constitutional Appropriation referred to as the Higher Education Assistance Fund (HEAF).
See “Appendix A, DESCRIPTION OF THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM—Funding for the University System and its
Component Institutions-State Appropriations.”

Sources of funding for the needs identified in each component institution’s Campus Master Plan include
legislative appropriations, constitutional appropriations, operational earnings of the various institutional activities

such as residence halls, bookstores and utility systems, balances reserved for this purpose, unallocated balances and
proceeds from debt issuances.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

13



Texas State University System
Capital Improvement Program FY 2009-2014

Total by
INSTITUTION 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Institution
Lamar Institute of Technology $0  $16,202,972  $16,504,683  $ 28,325,000 $0 $0  $61,032,655
Lamar State College — Orange $0 $ 3602720 $ 6,300,000 $ 5,700,000 $0 $0  $15,602,720
Lamar State College — Port Arthur ~ $ 2,990,600 $ 364,175 $ 8,500,000 $0 $0 $0  $11,854,775
Lamar University  $ 54,109,562  $38,796,165  $43,057,660 $ 40,355,839  $43,000,000 $0 $219,319,226

Sam Houston State University ~ $ 89,870,000  $70,070,500  $47,539,500  $ 88,355,000  $53,550,000 $46,225,000 $395,610,000
Sul Ross State University ~$ 4,550,000  $15,746,080  $ 2,200,000 $ 17,400,000 $5,000,000 $0  $44,896,080

Texas State University — San ~ $141,685,349 $209,215,068  $58,330,464 $197,065,354  $65,409,016  $8,200,000 $679,905,251

Marcos

TOTAL BY YEAR $293,205,511  $353,997,680 $182,432,307 $377,201,193 $166,959,016 $54,425,000

SYSTEM TOTAL $ 1,428,220,707

ABSENCE OF LITIGATION

Neither the Board nor any Member is a party to any litigation or other proceeding pending or, to the
knowledge of such parties, threatened, in any court, agency, or other administrative body (either state or federal)
which, if decided adversely to such parties, would have a material adverse effect on the Pledged Revenues, and no
litigation of any nature has been filed or, to their knowledge, threatened, that would affect the provisions made for
the use of the Pledged Revenues to secure or pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds, or in any manner
questioning the validity of the Bonds.

REGISTRATION AND QUALIFICATION OF THE BONDS FOR SALE

No registration statement relating to the Bonds has been filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance upon the exemption provided thereunder by
Section 3(a)(2). The Bonds have not been approved or disapproved by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
nor has the Securities and Exchange Commission passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this Official Statement.
The Bonds have not been registered or qualified under the Securities Act of Texas in reliance upon various
exemptions contained therein; nor have the Bonds been registered or qualified under the securities acts of any other
jurisdiction. The University System assumes no responsibility for registration or qualification of the Bonds under
the securities laws of any jurisdiction in which the Bonds may be sold, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise
transferred. This disclaimer of responsibility for registration or qualification for sale or other disposition of the
Bonds shall not be construed as an interpretation of any kind with regard to the availability of any exemption from
securities registration or qualification provisions.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

In each of the Supplemental Resolutions, the Board has made the following agreement for the benefit of the
holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds. The Board is required to observe its agreement for so long as it remains
obligated to advance funds to pay the Bonds. Under the agreement, the Board will be obligated to provide certain
updated financial information and operating data annually, and timely notice of specified material events, to certain
information vendors. This information will be available to securities brokers and others who subscribe to receive
the information from the vendors.
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Annual Reports. The Board will provide certain updated financial information and operating data to
certain information vendors annually. The information to be updated includes all quantitative financial information
and operating data with respect to the University System of the general type included in this Official Statement
under Tables 1, 2, A-1, A-2, A-3, A-4, A-5, A-8, A-9 and A-10 and in Appendix B. The Board will update and
provide this information within 180 days after the end of each fiscal year. The Board will provide the updated
information to each nationally recognized municipal securities information repository (“NRMSIR”) and to any state
information depository (“SID”) that is designated by the State of Texas and approved by the staff of the SEC, in
accordance with the provisions of Rule 15¢2-12, promulgated by the SEC (“SEC Rule 15¢2-12”).

The Board may provide updated information in full text or may incorporate by reference certain other
publicly available documents, as permitted by SEC Rule 15c¢2-12. The updated information will include audited
financial statements, if the Board commissions an audit and it is completed by the time required. If audited financial
statements are not available by the required time, the Board will provide such statements when and if they become
available, but if such audited financial statements are unavailable, the Board will provide such financial statements
on an unaudited basis within the required time. Any such financial statements are to be prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles or such other accounting principles as the Board may be required to
employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation. It is not expected that the Board will commission an
audit. Hence, unaudited financial statements, as shown in Appendix B, are expected to be provided. However, the
University System is audited as part of the State of Texas audit, but separate financial statements are not available.

The State’s current fiscal year end is August 31. Accordingly, the Board must provide updated information
within 180 days following August 31 of each year, unless the State changes its fiscal year. If the State changes its
fiscal year, the Board will notify each NRMSIR and any SID of the change.

Material Event Notices. The Board will also provide timely notices of certain events to certain
information vendors. The Board will provide notice of any of the following events with respect to each series of
Bonds, if such event is material to a decision to purchase or sell Bonds: (i) principal and interest payment
delinquencies; (ii) non-payment related defaults; (iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties; (iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (v) substitution of credit
or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (vi) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status
of the Bonds; (vii) modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds; (viii) Bond calls; (ix) defeasances; (x) release,
substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; and (xi) rating changes. (None of the Bonds, the
Master Resolution or the Supplemental Resolutions make any provision for debt service reserves.) In addition, the
Board will provide timely notice of any failure by the Board to provide financial information or operating data in
accordance with its agreement described above under “Annual Reports.” The Board will provide each notice
described in this paragraph to any SID and to either each NRMSIR or the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
(*MSRB”).

Availability of Information from NRMSIRs and SID. The Board has agreed to provide the foregoing
information only to NRMSIRs and any SID. Prior to July 1, 2009, the information will be available to holders of
Bonds only if the holders comply with the procedures and pay the charges established by such information vendors
or obtain the information through securities brokers who do so. The SEC has approved amendments to SEC Rule
15¢2-12, to become effective July 1, 2009, to designate the MSRB as the sole NRMSIR. To make such continuing
disclosure information available to investors free of charge, the MSRB has established the Electronic Municipal
Market Access (“EMMA”) system. The Board will be required to file its continuing disclosure information using
the EMMA system beginning on July 1, 2009. Investors will be able to access continuing disclosure information
filed with the MSRB at www.emma.msrb.org.

The Municipal Advisory Council of Texas has been designated by the State as a SID, and the SEC staff has
issued a no action letter confirming that it will accept that designation. The address of the Municipal Advisory
Council of Texas is 600 West 8th Street, P.O. Box 2177, Austin, Texas 78768-2177, its internet address is
www.mactexas.com, and its telephone is 512/476-6947.

The Municipal Advisory Council of Texas has also received SEC approval to operate, and has begun to
operate, a “central post office” for information filings made by municipal issuers, such as the Board, which then
transmits the filed information to the NRMSIRs and the appropriate SID. This central post office can be accessed
and utilized at www.DisclosureUSA.com. The Board may utilize this central post office for the filing of
information related to the Bonds.
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Limitations and Amendments. The Board has agreed to update information and to provide notices of
material events only as described above. The Board has not agreed to provide other information that may be relevant
or material to a complete presentation of its financial results of operations, condition, or prospects or agreed to
update any information that is provided, except as described above. The Board makes no representation or warranty
concerning such information or concerning its usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date.
The Board disclaims any contractual or tort liability for damages resulting in whole or in part from any breach of its
continuing disclosure agreement or from any statement made pursuant to its agreement, although holders of Bonds
may seek a writ of mandamus to compel the Board to comply with its agreement.

The Board may amend its continuing disclosure agreement from time to time to adapt to changed
circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature,
status, or type of operations of the Board, if (i) the agreement, as amended, would have permitted an underwriter to
purchase or sell Bonds in the primary offering described herein in compliance with SEC Rule 15¢2-12, taking into
account any amendments or interpretations of SEC Rule 15¢2-12 to the date of such amendment, as well as such
changed circumstances, and (ii) either (a) the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding
Bonds consent to the amendment or (b) any person unaffiliated with the Board (such as nationally recognized bond
counsel) determines that the amendment will not materially impair the interests of the holders and beneficial owners
of the Bonds. The Board may also amend or repeal its continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repeals
the applicable provisions of SEC Rule 15¢2-12 or a court of final jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions
of said rule are invalid, but only if and to the extent that the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an
underwriter from lawfully purchasing or selling the Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds. If the Board so
amends the agreement, it has agreed to include with the next financial information and operating data provided in
accordance with its agreement described above under “Annual Reports” an explanation, in narrative form, of the
reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information and operating data
S0 provided.

Compliance with Prior Agreements. On February 27, 2009 the University System made a continuing disclosure
filing for fiscal year 2008. On May 8, 2009, the University System discovered that its February 27, 2009 filing was
incomplete and the University System submitted information to make a complete filing on May 8, 2009.

Additionally, the Board became obligated to make annual disclosure of certain financial information for the
Texas State University — San Marcos by filing with the SID and each NRMSIR in an offering that took place in
1996. Due to an administrative oversight, certain required financial information contained in Tables 7 through 15
was missing for fiscal years ending 2007 and 2008. On June 5, 2009, the University System submitted all of the
required financial information with a notice of late filing. The Board has implemented procedures to ensure timely
filing of all future financial information.

Except for these late filings, the Board has not failed to comply in any material respect with any continuing
disclosure agreement made by it in accordance with SEC Rule 15¢2-12 during the past five years.

LEGAL MATTERS

General. Legal matters relating to the Bonds are subject to approval of legality by the Attorney General of
the State of Texas and of certain legal matters by McCall, Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P., Austin, Texas, Bond Counsel
to the Board, whose opinion will be delivered at the closing of the sale of the Bonds in substantially the form set
forth in Appendix D. Bond Counsel was not requested to participate, and did not take part, in the preparation of this
Official Statement except as hereinafter noted, and such firm has not assumed any responsibility with respect thereto
or undertaken to verify any of the information contained herein, except that, in its capacity as Bond Counsel, such
firm has reviewed the information relating to the Bonds, the Master Resolution, the Thirteenth Supplemental
Resolution and the Revenue Financing System contained in this Official Statement under the captions
“INTRODUCTION,” “PLAN OF FINANCING,” “THE BONDS” (other than information under the subcaptions
“Book-Entry-Only System” and “Bondholder Remedies”), “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS,” “REGISTRATION
AND QUALIFICATION OF THE BONDS FOR SALE,” “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION”
(other than information under the subcaption “—Compliance with Prior Agreements”), “TAX MATTERS” and
“LEGAL INVESTMENTS IN TEXAS” and in Appendix C and Appendix D and such firm is of the opinion that the
information contained under such captions and in such Appendices is a fair and accurate summary of the
information purported to be shown therein and is correct as to matters of law. The payment of legal fees to Bond
Counsel is contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the
Underwriters by their counsel, Fulbright & Jaworski L.L.P. Dallas, Texas.
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The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds express the
professional judgment of the attorneys rendering the opinion as to the legal issues explicitly addressed therein. In
rendering a legal opinion, the attorney does not become an insurer or guarantor of that expression of professional
judgment, of the transaction opined upon, or of the future performance of the parties to the transaction. Nor does the
rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction.

Forward Looking Statements. The statements contained in this Official Statement, and in any other
information provided by the Board, that are not purely historical, are forward-looking statements, including
statements regarding the Board’s expectations, hopes, and intentions, or strategies regarding the future. Readers
should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements included in this
Official Statement are based on information available to the Board on the date hereof, and the Board assumes no
obligation to update any such forward-looking statements. The Board’s actual results could differ materially from
those discussed in such forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements herein are necessarily based on various assumptions and estimates and are
inherently subject to various risks and uncertainties, including risks and uncertainties relating to the invalidity of the
underlying assumptions and estimates and possible changes or developments in social, economic, business, industry,
market, legal and regulatory circumstances and conditions and actions taken or omitted to be taken by third parties,
including customers, suppliers, business partners, and competitors, and legislative, judicial and other governmental
authorities and officials. Assumptions related to the foregoing involve judgments with respect to, among other
things, future economic, competitive, and market conditions and future business decisions, all of which are difficult
or impossible to predict accurately and therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements in
this Official Statement will prove to be accurate.

TAX MATTERS

Tax Exemption. On the date of initial delivery of the Bonds, Bond Counsel will render its opinion that, in
accordance with statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions existing on the date thereof (“Existing
Law™), (i) interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes will be excludable from the “gross income” of the
holders thereof and (ii) the Bonds are obligations described in section 1503 of the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Tax Act of 2009 and that, accordingly, interest on the Bonds will not be included in an owner’s
alternative minimum taxable income under section 55 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code™). Except
as stated above, Bond Counsel will express no opinion as to any other federal, state or local tax consequences of the
purchase, ownership or disposition of the Bonds. See Appendix D — “FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION.”

In rendering its opinion, Bond Counsel will rely upon certain information and representations of the Board,
including information and representations contained in the Board’s federal tax certificate; and covenants of the
Board contained in the bond documents relating to certain matters including arbitrage, the use of the proceeds of the
Bonds and the property to be financed therewith. Failure by the Board to observe the aforementioned
representations or covenants, could cause the interest on the Bonds to become taxable retroactively to the date of
issuance.

The Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder contain a number of requirements that must be
satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order for interest on the Bonds to be, and to remain, excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with such requirements may cause interest on
the Bonds to be included in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond
Counsel is conditioned on compliance by the Board with such requirements, and Bond Counsel has not been
retained to monitor compliance with these requirements subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds.

Bond Counsel’s opinion represents its legal judgment based upon its review of Existing Law and the
reliance on the aforementioned information, representations, and covenants. Bond Counsel’s opinion is not a
guarantee of a result. EXxisting Law is subject to change by Congress and to subsequent judicial and administrative
interpretation by the courts and the Department of the Treasury. There can be no assurance that Existing Law or the
interpretation thereof will not be changed in a manner which would adversely affect the tax treatment of the
purchase, ownership, or disposition of the Bonds.

A ruling was not sought from the Internal Revenue Service by the Board with respect to the Bonds or the
projects financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Bonds. No assurances can be given as to whether or not the
Internal Revenue Service will commence an audit of the Bonds, or as to whether the Internal Revenue Service would
agree with the opinion of Bond Counsel. If an Internal Revenue Service audit is commenced, under current
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procedures the Internal Revenue Service is likely to treat the Board as the taxpayer and the Bondholders may have
no right to participate in such procedure. No additional interest will be paid upon any determination of taxability.

Federal Income Tax Accounting Treatment of Original Issue Discount. The initial public offering
price to be paid for one or more maturities of the Bonds, may be less than the principal amount thereof or one or
more periods for the payment of interest on the Bonds may not be equal to the accrual period or be in excess of one
year (the “Original Issue Discount Bonds”). The difference between (i) the “stated redemption price at maturity” of
each Original Issue Discount Bond, and (ii) the initial offering price to the public of such Original Issue Discount
Bond constitutes original issue discount. The “stated redemption price at maturity” means the sum of all payments
to be made on the Bonds less the amount of all periodic interest payments. Periodic interest payments are payments
which are made during equal accrual periods (or during any unequal period if it is the initial or final period) and
which are made during accrual periods which do not exceed one year.

Under Existing Law, any owner who has purchased such Original Issue Discount Bond in the initial public
offering is entitled to exclude from gross income (as defined in Section 61 of the Code) an amount of income with
respect to such Original Issue Discount Bond equal to that portion of the amount of such original issue discount
allocable to the accrual period. For a discussion of certain collateral federal tax consequences, see discussion set
forth below.

In the event of the redemption, sale or other taxable disposition of such Original Issue Discount Bond prior
to stated maturity, however, the amount realized by such owner in excess of the basis of such Original Issue
Discount Bond in the hands of such owner (adjusted upward by the portion of the original issue discount allocable to
the period for which such Original Issue Discount Bond was held by such initial owner) is includable in gross
income.

Under Existing Law, the original issue discount on each Original Issue Discount Bond is accrued daily to
the stated maturity thereof (in amounts calculated as described below for each six-month period ending on the date
before the semiannual anniversary dates of the date of the Bonds and ratably within each such six-month period) and
the accrued amount is added to an initial owner’s basis for such Original Issue Discount Bond for purposes of
determining the amount of gain or loss recognized by such owner upon the redemption, sale or other disposition
thereof. The amount to be added to basis for each accrual period is equal to (a) the sum of the issue price and the
amount of original issue discount accrued in prior periods multiplied by the yield to stated maturity (determined on
the basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and properly adjusted for the length of the accrual
period) less (b) the amounts payable as current interest during such accrual period on such Original Issue Discount
Bond.

The federal income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership, redemption, sale or other disposition of
Original Issue Discount Bonds which are not purchased in the initial offering at the initial offering price may be
determined according to rules which differ from those described above. All owners of Original Issue Discount
Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the determination for federal, state and local income tax
purposes of the treatment of interest accrued upon redemption, sale or other disposition of such Original Issue
Discount Bonds and with respect to the federal, state, local and foreign tax consequences of the purchase,
ownership, redemption, sale or other disposition of such Original Issue Discount Bonds.

Collateral Federal Income Tax Consequences. The following discussion is a summary of certain
collateral federal income tax consequences resulting from the purchase, ownership or disposition of the Bonds. This
discussion is based on Existing Law, which is subject to change or modification, retroactively.

The following discussion is applicable to investors, other than those who are subject to special provisions
of the Code, such as financial institutions, property and casualty insurance companies, life insurance companies,
individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, individuals allowed an earned income
credit, certain S corporations with accumulated earnings and profits and excess passive investment income, foreign
corporations subject to the branch profits tax and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued
indebtedness to purchase tax-exempt obligations.

THE DISCUSSION CONTAINED HEREIN MAY NOT BE EXHAUSTIVE. INVESTORS,
INCLUDING THOSE WHO ARE SUBJECT TO SPECIAL PROVISIONS OF THE CODE, SHOULD
CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS AS TO THE TAX TREATMENT WHICH MAY BE
ANTICIPATED TO RESULT FROM THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF TAX-
EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS BEFORE DETERMINING WHETHER TO PURCHASE THE BONDS.
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Under Section 6012 of the Code, holders of tax-exempt obligations, such as the Bonds, may be required to
disclose interest received or accrued during each taxable year on their returns of federal income taxation.

Section 1276 of the Code provides for ordinary income tax treatment of gain recognized upon the
disposition of a tax-exempt obligation, such as the Bonds, if such obligation was acquired at a “market discount”
and if the fixed maturity of such obligation is equal to, or exceeds, one year from the date of issue. Such treatment
applies to “market discount bonds” to the extent such gain does not exceed the accrued market discount of such
bonds; although for this purpose, a de minimis amount of market discount is ignored. A “market discount bond” is
one which is acquired by the holder at a purchase price which is less than the stated redemption price at maturity or,
in the case of a bond issued at an original issue discount, the “revised issue price” (i.e., the issue price plus accrued
original issue discount). The “accrued market discount” is the amount which bears the same ratio to the market
discount as the number of days during which the holder holds the obligation bears to the number of days between
the acquisition date and the final maturity date.

State, Local and Foreign Taxes. Investors should consult their own tax advisors concerning the tax
implications of the purchase, ownership or disposition of the Bonds under applicable state or local laws. Foreign
investors should also consult their own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences unique to investors who are not
United States persons.

RATINGS

The Bonds are rated “Aa3” by Moody’s Investor’s Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) and “AA-" by Standard &
Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“S&P”). A further explanation of the
ratings by Moody’s and S&P may be obtained from such agencies.

An explanation of the significance of each such rating may be obtained from the company furnishing the
rating. The ratings will reflect only the views of such organizations at the time such ratings are given, and the Board
makes no representation as to the appropriateness of the ratings. There is no assurance that such ratings will continue
for any given period of time or that they will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating
companies, if circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of either rating may have an
adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

LEGAL INVESTMENTS IN TEXAS

Section 1201.041 of the Public Security Procedures Act (Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code) provides
that the Bonds are negotiable instruments governed by Chapter 8, Texas Business & Commerce Code, and are legal
and authorized investments for insurance companies, fiduciaries, and trustees, and for the sinking fund of
municipalities or other political subdivisions or public agencies of the State of Texas. In addition, various
provisions of the Texas Finance Code provide that, subject to a prudent investor standard, the Bonds are legal
investments for state banks, savings banks, trust companies with at least $1 million of capital and savings and loan
associations. The Bonds are eligible to secure deposits of any public funds of the state, its agencies and political
subdivisions, and are legal security for those deposits to the extent of their market value. For political subdivisions
in Texas which have adopted investment policies and guidelines in accordance with the Public Funds Investment
Act, the Bonds may have to be assigned a rating of “A” or its equivalent as to investment quality by a national rating
agency before such obligations are eligible investments for sinking funds and other public funds.

The University System has not made any investigation of other laws, rules, regulations or investment
criteria which might apply to such institutions or entities or which might limit the suitability of the Bonds for any of
the foregoing purposes or limit the authority of such institutions or entities to purchase or invest in the Bonds for
such purposes. The University System has not made any review of laws in other states to determine whether the
Bonds are legal investments for various institutions in those states.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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UNDERWRITING

The Underwriters have agreed, subject to certain customary conditions to delivery, to purchase the Bonds
from the Board at the initial public offering price shown on the inside front cover of this Official Statement, less an
underwriting discount of $495,581.42. The Underwriters will be obligated to purchase all of the Bonds if any Bonds
are purchased. The Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers and others at prices lower than such public
offering prices, and such public prices may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriters.

Morgan Stanley, parent company of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, an underwriter of the Bonds, has
entered into a retail brokerage joint venture with Citigroup Inc. As part of the joint venture, Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated will distribute municipal securities to retail investors through the financial advisor network of a new
broker-dealer, Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC. This distribution arrangement became effective on June 1, 2009.
As part of this arrangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will compensate Morgan Stanley Smith Barney
LLC for its selling efforts with respect to the Bonds.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

First Southwest Company is employed as Financial Advisor to the Board in connection with the issuance of
the Bonds. The Financial Advisor’s fee for services rendered with respect to the sale of the Bonds is contingent
upon the issuance and delivery of the Bonds.

AUTHENTICITY OF FINANCIAL DATA AND OTHER INFORMATION

The financial data and other information contained herein have been obtained from the Board’s records,
annual financial statements and other sources which are believed to be reliable. There is no guarantee that any of the
assumptions or estimates contained herein will be realized. All of the summaries of the statutes, documents, and
resolutions contained in this Official Statement are made subject to all of the provisions of such statutes, documents,
and resolutions. These summaries do not purport to be complete statements of such provisions and reference is made
to such documents for further information. Reference is made to original documents in all respects.

The Award Certificate authorized in the Thirteenth Supplemental Resolution approves the form and content
of this Official Statement, and authorized the undersigned to approve any addenda, supplement, or amendment
thereto, and authorized its further use by the Underwriters in the reoffering of the Bonds.

/s/ Charles R. Matthews
Chancellor, Secretary of the Board of Regents
Texas State University System
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APPENDIX A"

DESCRIPTION OF THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

BACKGROUND AND HISTORY.

The University System was originally created by the Texas Legislature in 1911. The following state supported
institutions are under the governance and control of the University System: Lamar University; Lamar Institute of
Technology; Lamar State College - Orange; Lamar State College - Port Arthur; Sam Houston State University;
Texas State University - San Marcos (formerly known as Southwest Texas State University); Sul Ross State
University; and Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College. Angelo State University (“ASU”) was previously
under the governance and control of the University System but during the 80th Legislature, Regular Session, H.B.
3564 was passed transferring ASU from the University System to the Texas Tech University System, effective
September 1, 2007. All conditions precedent to the release of ASU as a member of the Revenue Financing System
(defined below) pursuant to the Master Resolution were completed and the transfer and release was effectuated as of
February 4, 2009. See “ASU TRANSFER”.

As the oldest university system in Texas, the University System encompasses institutions which are leaders in
training teachers who staff the growing public school system in Texas and the surrounding states. Demographics
indicate this market demand should be strong for many years into the future. The University System components
are keyed to regional service areas along with a state-wide appeal in specialized academic fields, such as the
nationally recognized Criminal Justice program at Sam Houston State University. Each of the four-year universities
are designated by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board as Comprehensive Regional Universities, thus
allowing for rapid response to changing educational needs and demands. Two of the universities, Sam Houston
State University and Texas State University-San Marcos, are located in high growth, economically diversified areas
which should promote continued expansion and enrollment growth. Lamar University and Sul Ross State
University are dominant institutions in the specific geographic areas they serve providing stability for their student
base. Each of the two-year institutions, Lamar Institute of Technology, Lamar State College - Orange and Lamar
State College - Port Arthur, serve vital functions in providing for a trained work force through academic and
vocational educational opportunities in a key industrial area of the state. See “ENROLLMENT” below.

COORDINATING BOARD.

The University System is subject to the supervisory powers of the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (the
“Coordinating Board”). The Coordinating Board is an agency of the State established to promote the efficient use of
State resources by providing coordination and leadership for the State’s higher education systems, institutions and
governing boards. The Coordinating Board is the highest authority in the State in matters of public higher education
and prescribes the scope and role of each institution of higher education. The Coordinating Board periodically
reviews all degree and certificate programs offered by the State’s institutions of higher education and annually
reviews the academic courses offered by such institutions. The Coordinating Board also determines space
utilization formulas designed to promote the efficient use of construction funds and the development of physical
plants to meet projected growth estimates. These space utilization formulas directly impact the allocation of
appropriated funds among the State’s institutions of higher education. As required by law, the Coordinating Board
must approve all new construction projects for components of the University System except those specifically
authorized by the Texas Legislature.

GOVERNANCE AND ADMINISTRATION.

The University System is governed, managed, and controlled by a nine-member Board of Regents, each of whom is
appointed by the Governor of the State subject to confirmation by the State Senate. Each regent serves a six-year
term, with three new appointments made to the Board every two years. A regent may be reappointed to serve on the
Board. The members of the Board elect one of the regents to serve as Chairman of the Board and may elect any
other officers they deem necessary. The regents serve without pay except for a per diem payment as provided by the
Legislature of the State of Texas and reimbursement for travel expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

* Unless otherwise indicated, the information set forth in the tables in this Appendix A has been provided by the University System.
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There is a student regent who is a student attending one of the University System schools. State law does not allow
a student regent to vote on matters before the Board.

The Board is legally responsible for the general control and management of the component institutions of the
University System and has authority to promulgate and enforce such rules, regulations, and orders as it deems
necessary for the operation, control and management of the University System. The Board appoints a Chancellor
who directs the operations of the University System and is responsible for carrying out policies determined by the
Board. The Chancellor is assisted by a Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs, a Vice Chancellor and General
Counsel, a Vice Chancellor for Finance, a Vice Chancellor for Governmental Relations and Educational Policy and
a Director of Audits and Analysis. The operations of each component institution of the University System are
directed by a President appointed by the Board. Each President holds office without a fixed term and at the pleasure
of the Board.

A list of the current members of the Board and certain principal administrative officers of the University System
appears on page (iii) of this Official Statement. Set forth below is biographical information for such principal
administrative officers of the University System:

Dr. Charles R. Matthews became the Chancellor of the University System in February 2005 and also serves as
Secretary of the Board. Prior to assuming the Chancellorship, he served as the 40" Commissioner of the Railroad
Commission of Texas for ten years. First elected in 1994, he won re-election in 2000 to a second term, receiving the
highest number of votes ever cast for a Railroad Commissioner. Dr. Matthews has also served as Mayor for the City
of Garland, in addition to serving as President of the Texas Municipal Power Agency and was Governor William P.
Clements appointee to the Texas Turnpike Authority. Chancellor Matthews holds a bachelor’s degree from the
University of Texas at Dallas and a Masters in Public Administration from Texas State University. He completed
his doctoral studies in higher education administration at The University of Texas at Austin.

Dr. Kenneth R. Craycraft serves as the Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs for the University System. Prior to his
appointment, Dr. Craycraft served as the Dean for the College of Education and Applied Science at Sam Houston
State University. In addition to holding elected offices in professional organizations at the national and state levels,
he has authored or co-authored numerous articles and several books, and was appointed by the Honorable George
W. Bush to serve on the State Board for Educator Certification. Dr. Craycraft received his doctorate from Indiana
University in 1977, his master’s from Stephen F. Austin State University in 1975, and his baccalaureate degree from
Sam Houston State University in 1971.

Dr. Fernando C. Gomez serves as the Vice Chancellor and General Counsel for the University System. Prior to
becoming Vice Chancellor and General Counsel, Dr. Gomez served as a tenured professor at Michigan State
University from 1974-1979 and at California State University-Fullerton from 1992-1994, Assistant Attorney
General in Texas and Michigan from 1979-1986, General Counsel for the California State University System from
1992-1994 and engaged in private practice from 1990-92. Dr. Gomez received a B.A., cum laude, in English and
Sociology from the University of New Mexico in 1970 and a J.D. from the University of Michigan in 1973. Dr.
Gomez also received his Ph.D. in American Culture from the University of Michigan in 1977.

Patricia V. Hayes serves as Vice Chancellor for Governmental Relations and Educational Policy for the University
System. Prior to her appointment, Ms. Hayes was Associate Commissioner for Educator Quality and P-16
Initiatives at the Texas Education Agency. She previously served as a Legal Intern in the Office of the Speaker of
the House of Representatives and as Director of the Senate Subcommittee on Higher Education. She holds a
bachelor’s degree from The University of Texas at Austin and a law degree from Pepperdine University in Malibu,
California.

Dr. Roland Smith was hired as Vice Chancellor for Finance in August, 2005. Prior to joining the University System,
Dr. Smith worked for 10 years as Vice President for Business Affairs at Stephen F. Austin State University. During
that time, he served as interim President of the University for a period of 18 months. Prior to his University
experience, Dr. Smith worked as a faculty member and Vice President for Finance in Texas Community Colleges
located in Alvin, Texas City and Austin. He is a CPA and holds BBA, MBA, and PhD degrees from The University
of Texas at Austin.

Carole M. Fox was named Director of Audits and Analysis in 2007. Prior to being named Director of Audits and
Analysis, Ms. Fox was Director of the Office of Internal Audit at the Texas Workforce Commission and was
Director of Internal Audit at the Texas Workers” Compensation Commission for 10 years. Ms. Fox also served as
Audit Manager at the University of Texas System Administration for a period of 2 years.

A-2



COMPONENT INSTITUTIONS.

A summary description of the University System’s eight component institutions, each of which is a Member in the
Revenue Financing System, is set forth below:

Lamar University serves as a comprehensive, senior, public university and is a significant educational, scientific,
engineering, business and cultural resource center for Southeast Texas. This institution, which became a part of the
University System in 1995, has over 520 full and part-time faculty members and offers its 13,280 students more than
64 programs leading to 108 baccalaureate degrees and more than 39 programs leading to 69 graduate degrees.
Lamar University also provides doctorate degrees in engineering and deaf education. The public service mission of
this institution reaches out to communities throughout Southeast Texas to provide educational and training programs
to meet the region’s needs.

Lamar Institute of Technology was established in 1990 when the two-year programs of Lamar University’s College
of Technical Arts and several other programs were grouped together to establish a special purpose institution
dedicated to technical education. Lamar Institute of Technology became a separate, degree-granting institution in
1995 and was accredited by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools in 2000. The institution offers
associate of applied science degrees in 30 fields and certificates in 25 fields. This wide range of associate degrees,
non-credit courses and specialized technical programs offered to its 2,885 students receiving academic credit and
1,183 non-credit students is designed to help meet the workforce needs in the Southeast Texas area.

Lamar State College - Orange was created in 1969 as a two-year, lower-division institution of higher learning in
response to the need for educational and industrial training programs in the area. This college, located in historic
downtown Orange, offers a wide range of academic programs for transfer to four-year universities along with
training in a variety of vocational and technical fields. In addition to 17 associate degrees in 15 fields, one-year
certificates in several career fields are also available from this institution to its 2,147 students.

Lamar State College - Port Arthur was originally founded in 1909 as Port Arthur College and still serves the
educational needs of Port Arthur and Southeast Texas, offering associate degrees and an academic foundation for
students seeking four-year degrees. The institution’s vocational and technical courses are designed to provide its
1,985 students with marketable skills in fields such as allied health, computer information systems, business
information systems, child development, automotive technology, cosmetology, legal assistance, computer
engineering and maintenance, and chemical dependency counseling. Lamar State College - Port Arthur offers
associate of arts and science degrees in 13 academic programs and has 21 technical programs leading to the
Associate of Applied Science degree.

Sam Houston State University was created by the Texas Legislature in 1879, making it the third oldest state
university in Texas and one of the oldest teacher-training institutions west of the Mississippi River. Today Sam
Houston State University, located in Huntsville, is a multipurpose university serving one of the most diverse
populations in the state.

Over 735 full and part-time faculty members serve the 16,612 students of the University. The University offers
bachelor’s and master’s degrees in 127 fields through five colleges including Arts & Science, Business
Administration, Criminal Justice, Education and Humanities and Social Sciences. Sam Houston State University
also offers doctoral degrees in Educational Leadership, Criminal Justice, Forensic Clinical Psychology, Counselor
Education, and Clinical Psychology. The Criminal Justice program enjoys nationally and internationally recognized
status.

Texas State University-San Marcos (formerly known as Southwest Texas State University) was founded in 1899 and
is uniquely situated in the middle of the growing Austin-San Antonio corridor. The headwaters of the beautiful San
Marcos River are located within the boundaries of the university campus. The main campus is located on 456 acres
and has an additional 5,027 acres in farm, ranch and recreational areas. With its 29,105 students, taught by 1,359
full and part time faculty members, Texas State University-San Marcos is one of the largest universities in Texas.

The institution provides nationally recognized programs in teacher education, geography, health professions, theater,
music, aquatic biology, and chemistry, as well as programs in many other fields. The scope of the university’s
curriculum includes over 112 undergraduate majors, 85 graduate majors, certification in education, long-term
healthcare, dietetics and legal assistance programs, and has added two engineering programs with additional
programs in the planning stages and 6 doctoral programs. In 2005, the university opened its first permanent facility
on a new 101-acre second campus in Round Rock, just north of Austin.
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Sul Ross State University, located in Alpine, was created by the Texas Legislature in 1917 and encompasses a
service area that includes a wide expanse of West and South Texas and a large portion of the international border
shared with Mexico. Originally founded to train teachers, Sul Ross State University continues to be one of the
leading institutions in preparing personnel for the public school system. The university serves as a professional,
educational and cultural resource to its 1,841 students from the region. Sul Ross State University offers 30
bachelor’s degrees, 22 master’s degrees, 6 associate degrees and certificate programs including outstanding
programs in agriculture and natural resource science, biology and geology.

Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College opened in 1973 in order to provide upper level course work in Del
Rio, Eagle Pass and Uvalde leading to degrees from Sul Ross State University. This institution works in
conjunction with Southwest Texas Junior College and makes it possible for students living in the region to pursue
bachelor’s and master’s degrees. The institution provides enhanced educational opportunities to a student
population that is 80.0 percent Hispanic and has an average age of 32.1 years. The institution offers its 939 students
of the region 11 bachelor’s degree programs and 8 master’s degree programs.

ENROLLMENT.

Set forth below is the fall semester headcount undergraduate and graduate enrollment at the component institutions
of the University System for each of the last five years:

TABLE A-1
Headcount Enrollment Information

Fall 2004  Fall 2005  Fall 2006 Fall 2007* Fall 2008*

Angelo State University 6,137 6,156 6,218 N/A N/A
Lamar University 10,804 10,595 9,906 10,213 13,469
Lamar Institute of Technology 2,543 2,711 2,416 2,590 2,887
Lamar State College - Orange 2,047 2,143 2,409 2,003 2,148
Lamar State College - Port Arthur 2,423 2,509 2,009 2,325 2,045
Sam Houston State University 14,335 15,357 15,903 16,416 16,612
Texas State University-San Marcos 26,799 27,129 27,503 28,132 29,125
Sul Ross State University 1,967 1,918 1,829 1,774 1,841
Sul Ross State University-Rio Grande College 1,056 1,006 948 958 939

Total 68,111 69,524 69,141 64,411 69,066

* Excludes ASU. See “ASU TRANSFER.”

Set forth below is the fall semester graduate enrollment at the component institutions of the University System for
each of the last five years:
TABLE A-2
Graduate Enrollment Information ®

Fall 2004  Fall 2005  Fall 2006  Fall 2007* Fall 2008*

Angelo State University 551 552 475 N/A N/A
Lamar University - Beaumont 1,683 1,444 1,442 1,854 4,919
Sam Houston State University 2,038 2,127 2,136 2,269 2,313
Texas State University-San Marcos 4,384 4,149 3,923 4,084 4,302
Sul Ross State University 523 483 529 537 580
Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College 393 324 280 272 219

Total 9,572 9,079 8,785 9,016 12,333

* Excludes ASU. See “ASU TRANSFER.”

®_amar State College-Orange, Lamar State College-Port Arthur and Lamar Institute of Technology are lower level (freshman and sophomore)
institutions which do not offer graduate programs.
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Set forth below is the fall semester full-time equivalent enrollment at the component institutions of the University
System for each of the last five years:

TABLE A-3
Full-Time Equivalent Enrollment Information®

Fall 2004  Fall 2005  Fall 2006  Fall 2007* Fall 2008*

Angelo State University 5,213 5,294 5,164 N/A N/A
Lamar University 8,138 8,094 7,670 7,817 9,146
Lamar Institute of Technology 1,785 1,920 1,743 1,871 2,075
Lamar State College - Orange 1,321 1,316 1,262 1,274 1,359
Lamar State College - Port Arthur 1,515 1,492 1,466 1,410 1,245
Sam Houston State University 11,691 12,721 13,177 13,479 13,656
Texas State University-San Marcos 21,356 21,706 22,006 22,869 23,494
Sul Ross State University 1,563 1,516 1,410 1,319 1,403
Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College 592 561 510 515 523

Total 53,174 54,620 54,408 50,554 52,901

* Excludes ASU. See “ASU TRANSFER.”
(1)Full—time enrollment is 15 hours per semester for undergraduate students and 9 hours per semester for graduate students.

The following table sets forth, by percentage, a breakdown of the University System’s enrollment by residency
classification for the previous five Fall Semesters:

TABLE A-4
Systemwide Enrollment by Residency

Fall 2004  Fall 2005  Fall 2006  Fall 2007* Fall 2008*

Texas Residents 65,354 66,995 67,535 61,994 66,203
Non-Texas Residents 1,235 1,364 1,313 1,153 1,354
Foreign Students 1,426 1,165 1,244 1,182 1,237
Total 68,015 69,524 70,092 64,329 68,794

“Excludes ASU. See “ASU TRANSFER.”

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ADMISSIONS AND MATRICULATION.
Set forth below is information relating to undergraduate admissions and matriculation of the component institutions
of the University System which offer four-year undergraduate degrees:

TABLE A-5
Admissions and Matriculation Information ®

Fall 2004 Fall 2005 Fall 2006 Fall 2007®  Fall 2008?
Applications Submitted 58,524 56,140 54,287 53,590 53,345
Applications Accepted 47,675 39,929 40,760 37,596 35,525
Matriculation 27,430 23,790 24,115 22,000 20,263
Percentage Accepted 81.46% 71.12% 75.08% 70.15% 66.59%
Percentage Matriculated 57.54% 59.58% 44.42% 41.05% 37.98%

mThis table reflects only admissions and matriculation information of undergraduates for Angelo State University (for Fall 2004, Fall 2005, and
Fall 2006 only), Lamar University, Sam Houston State University, Texas State University-San Marcos and Sul Ross State University. This
information is inclusive of the fall, spring and summer sessions of the respective fiscal years. Admissions and matriculation numbers of the type
set forth above are not routinely or consistently kept for Lamar Institute of Technology, Lamar State College-Orange, Lamar State College -Port
Arthur and Sul Ross State University - Rio Grande College.

@Excludes ASU. See “ASU TRANSFER.”

DEGREES.

Set forth below is a listing of the aggregate degrees awarded by the component institutions of the University System
during each of the last five years:

TABLE A-6
Systemwide Degrees Awarded

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008*

Associate 836 816 838 815 770
Certificate 511 634 592 640 571
Baccalaureate 8,606 9,023 9,280 9,599 9329
Master’s 2,281 2,498 2,404 2,385 2465
Doctoral 33 47 58 88 73
Total 12,267 13,018 13,172 13,527 13,208

* Excludes ASU. See “ASU TRANSFER.”

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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FACULTY AND EMPLOYEES.
The numbers of faculty and employees employed by the University System and its component institutions as of Fall
2008 are set forth in the following table:

TABLE A-7
Faculty and Employees

Faculty Employees Total

University System Administration 17 17
Lamar University 517 1870 2387
Lamar Institute of Technology 162 82 244
Lamar State College - Orange 103 159 262
Lamar State College - Port Arthur 112 239 351
Sam Houston State University 758 3170 3928
Texas State University-San Marcos 1426 5441 6867
Sul Ross State University 112 769 881
Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College 37 122 159
Total 3,227 11,869 15,096

ACCREDITATION.

Each of the component institutions of the University System is accredited by the Commission on Colleges of the
Southern Association of Colleges and Schools. In addition, the various component institutions of the University
System are accredited by other accrediting agencies, some of which include the National Council for Accreditation
of Teacher Education, the Engineering Accreditation Commission of the Accreditation Board of Engineering and
Technology, the Commission on Accreditation of Physical Therapy Education and the U.S. Department of
Education and Veteran’s Administration.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Annually, not later than November 20, an unaudited financial report dated as of August 31, prepared from the books
of the University System, must be delivered to the Governor and the State Comptroller of Public Accounts. Each
year, the State Auditor must certify the financial statements of the State as a whole, inclusive of the University
System, and in so doing examines the financial records of the University System. No outside audit in support of this
detailed review is required or obtained by the University System.

The State issues audited financial statements, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
for the State government as a whole. The statements are prepared by the Comptroller of Public Accounts and are
audited by the State Auditor’s Office. The State Auditor expresses an opinion on the financial statements of the
State but does not express an opinion on the financial statements of individual component units including those of
the University System. The scope of the State Auditor’s audit includes tests for compliance with the covenants of
general obligation and revenue bond issues of the State and its component agencies and institutions. Supplementary
schedules are included in the State financial statements providing for each bond issue information related to the
pledged revenues and expenditures, coverage of debt service requirements, restricted account balances, and/or other
relevant information that may be feasibly incorporated. The State Auditor does not express an opinion on such
schedules in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. Any material compliance exceptions related
to bond covenants are addressed in the overall management letter for the State audit.

Appendix B to this Official Statement contains excerpts from the Combined Annual Financial Report for the
University System for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008. The final report of the State Auditor is normally
available in April of the year following the prior fiscal year.
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The University System’s combined primary financial reports cover all financial operations of the University System.
Amounts due between University System and other duplications in reporting are eliminated in combining the
individual financial reports.

Attached to this Official Statement as “APPENDIX B — EXCERPTS FROM THE UNAUDITED COMBINED
FINANCIAL REPORT OF TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,
2008 WITH SELECTED SCHEDULES,” are the most recent primary statements of the unaudited combined annual
financial reports of the University System for Fiscal Year ended August 31, 2008. The University System’s
unaudited combined primary financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Assets as of August 31, 2008, the
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended August 31, 2008, and
the Combined Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended August 31, 2008. See “APPENDIX B - EXCERPTS
FROM THE UNAUDITED COMBINED FINANCIAL REPORT OF TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2008 WITH SELECTED SCHEDULES.”

The following table reflects the Condensed Combined Statement of Net Assets of the University System for the
fiscal years ended August 31, 2004 through 2008.

Condensed Combined Statement of Net Assets
(In ($) Millions)

FY2004 FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 FY?2008
Assets:
Current Assets 542.5 564.4 593.5 670.0 806.8
Noncurrent Assets 936.9 944.4 1,135.3 1,154.5 1,040.3
Total Assets 1,479.4 1,508.8 1,728.8 1,824.5 1,847.1
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities 273.1 275.6 304.4 3335 342.0
Non-Current Liabilities 348.1 3755 503.3 503.3 644.7
Total Liabilities 621.2 651.1 807.7 836.8 986.7
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 369.3 356.4 383.2 400.4 220.2
Restricted 213.4 225.1 212.7 257.4 317.7
Unrestricted 2755 276.2 325.2 329.9 322.5
Total Net Assets 858.2 857.7 921.1 987.7 860.4
Total Liabilities and Net 1,479.4 1,508.8 1,728.8 1,824.5 1,847.1
Assets

For more detailed information, see “APPENDIX B - Combined Statement of Net Assets as of August 31, 2008.”
APPENDIX B includes information relating to ASU. See “ASU TRANSFER.”

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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The table below presents the Condensed Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets of
the University System for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2005 through 2008.

Condensed Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
(In ($) Millions)

FY2005 EY2006 FY2007 FY2008

Operating Revenues 455.1 502.4 550.7 549.0
Operating Expenses 697.2 761.5 836.7 788.0

Operating Income (Loss) (242.1) (259.1) (286.0) (239.0)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 263.9 329.7 322.7 280.7
Income (Loss) before Other Revenues, 21.8 70.6 36.6 41.7
Expenses,

Gains, Losses and Transfers

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, Losses 39.5 (7.5) 29.9  (169.0)™
And Transfers

Change in Net Assets 61.3 63.1 66.5 (127.3)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 858.2 857.7 921.1 987.6
Restatements for Depreciation/Capitalization® (61.9) 0.3

Net Assets, Beginning of Year as Restated 796.3 858.0 921.1 987.6
Net Assets, End of Year 857.6 921.1 987.6 860.3®

MReflects the transfer of assets and liabilities related to the ASU transfer.

For more detailed information, see “APPENDIX B - Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Assets for the Year Ended August 31, 2008.” APPENDIX B includes information relating to ASU. See “ASU
TRANSFER.”.

The table below presents the Condensed Combined Statement of Cash Flows of the University System for the fiscal
years ended August 31, 2005 through 2008.

Condensed Combined Statement of Cash Flows
(In ($) Millions)

FY2005 FY2006 EY2007 FY2008

Cash Provided (Used) by:

Operating Activities (191.7) (195.3) (230.8) (190.4)
Noncapital Financing Activities 258.1 315.5 299.8 224.8
Capital and Related Financing Activities (83.1) (108.6) (39.1) 66.2
Investing Activities 42.6 (14.7) 33.5 16.5
Net Change in Cash 259 (3.1) 63.4 1171
Cash, Beginning of Year 413.1 439.0 435.7 499.1
Restatements to Beginning Cash - (0.2) -
Cash, End of Year 439.0 435.7 499.1 616.2

For more detailed information, see “APPENDIX B — Combined Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended
August 31, 2008.” APPENDIX B includes information relating to ASU. See “ASU TRANSFER.”

A-9



FUNDING FOR THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM AND ITS COMPONENT INSTITUTIONS.

Funding for the University System is derived from operating and non-operating revenues. For a discussion of the
funding sources for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008, see “APPENDIX B - Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for the Fiscal Year ended August 31, 2008.”

State Appropriations. The operations of the University System and its component institutions are heavily dependent
upon the continued support of the State through biennial appropriations of general revenues, and levels of continued
State support of the component institutions are dependent on the results of biennial legislative sessions. The State
Legislature finished its last regular session on June 1, 2009. The State’s appropriation bill for the biennium, S.B.1,
contains specific appropriations for the University System and its component institutions. S.B.1 was passed in the
recent legislative session and, while the Governor has line item veto power that could modify the amounts
appropriated to the University System, the University System does not anticipate any changes to the amount shown.
Results for the component institutions indicate General Revenue appropriations for each component institution in
the following amounts for Fiscal Years 2008 through 2011.:

FY2008® FY2009® FY2010®@ FY2011®@
System Administration $1,133,248 $1,133,248 $1,133,248 $1,133,248
Lamar University 33,752,251 33,702,149 43,370,588 43,318,247
Lamar Institute of Technology 8,865,737 8,862,913 10,011,227 10,010,328
Lamar State College — Orange 6,828,024 6,822,724 6,959,683 6,953,879
Lamar State College — Port Arthur 8,933,819 9,386,001 9,231,490 9,682,172
Sam Houston State University 44,480,170 44,335,355 46,336,872 46,461,324
Texas State University-San Marcos 88,731,855 85,571,099 91,468,157 91,713,986
Sul Ross State University 15,119,113 15,082,542 15,348,957 15,374,551
Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College 5,375,824 5,375,974 5,739,800 5,742,343
HB 63 — Hurricane Rita Relief 7,548,484 0 0 0
Total $220,768,525 $210,272,005 $229,600,022 $230,390,078

DDoes not include General Revenue Dedicated Funds appropriated by the State’s appropriation bill.
@ Does not include $14.36 million in funding that is expendable over the 2010-2011 period.

The Board and the component institutions have no assurance that the State Legislature will continue to appropriate
to the component institutions the general revenue funds of the State at the same levels as in previous years. Future
levels of State support are dependent upon the ability and willingness of the State Legislature to make appropriations
to the component institutions taking into consideration the availability of financial resources and other potential uses
of such resources. The current session of the Texas Legislature ended on June 1, 2009.

The University System receives a portion of an annual appropriation of funds made by the State Legislature pursuant
to the provisions of Article VII, Section 17 of the State Constitution. (see “Appendix A — Higher Education
Assistance Fund (HEAF) Bonds™) The annual allocation to the University System for fiscal year 2008 and 2009 is
set forth below and the Board has allocated this amount to the component institutions of the University System as

follows:

FY2008 FY2009 FY2010 FY2011

Lamar University $11,210,508 8,028,333 8,028,333 8,330,933
Lamar Institute of Technology - 1,825,332 1,825,332 2,332,463
Lamar State College — Orange 1,115,048 1,140,745 1,140,745 1,235,752
Lamar State College — Port Arthur 1,190,119 1,217,124 1,217,124 1,244,694
Sam Houston State University 9,916,306 10,184,001 10,184,001 11,893,110
Texas State University-San Marcos 19,799,276 20,258,249 20,258,249 21,863,258
Sul Ross State University Alpine 2,043,772 2,090,896 2,090,896 1,625,061
Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College 379,831 388,203 388,203 442,379

Total $45,654,860 $45,654,860 $45,132,883 $48,967,650




The component institutions of the University System may use the appropriation for capital improvements and
renovations to campus facilities, other than auxiliary enterprises. In addition, the component institutions of the
University System may issue bonds against such appropriation and pledge up to 50% of the appropriation to secure
the debt service payments due on such bonds. See “—Higher Education Assistance Fund (HEAF) Bonds” below.

Tuition and Fees. Each component institution of the University System granting degrees charges tuition and fees as
set by the State Legislature and the Board under Chapters 54 and 55 of the Texas Education Code. Tuition charges
are comprised of “State Mandated Tuition” and “Board Designated Tuition” as further described below.

State Mandated Tuition. Section 54.051, Texas Education Code, currently requires (i) undergraduate tuition
applicable to state residents to be charged at $50 per semester credit hour; and (ii) tuition of a nonresident student at
a general academic teaching institution or medical and dental unit to be an amount per semester hour equal to the
average of the nonresident undergraduate tuition charged to a resident of the State at a public state university in each
of the five most populous states other than the State (the amount of which would be computed by the Texas Higher
Education Coordinating Board for each academic year). For the 2008-2009 and 2009-2010 academic years the
Texas Higher Coordinating Board has computed $331 and $327, respectively, per semester credit hour for
nonresident undergraduate tuition. The tuition rates described above are referred to in this Official Statement as
“State Mandated Tuition.”

Board Designated Tuition. In 2003, the Texas Legislature approved and the Governor signed into law House Bill
3015, which provided for the deregulation of a portion of tuition that a governing board of an institution of higher
education, such as the Board, has the authority to charge under Section 54.0513 of the Texas Education Code. Prior
to the amendment to Section 54.0513 of the Texas Education Code the amount of tuition that a governing board of
an institution of higher education could independently charge students was capped at the State Mandated Tuition.
Effective with the tuition that is charged for the fall 2003 semester, a governing board of an institution of higher
education may charge any student an amount (referred to herein as “Board Designated Tuition”) that it considers
necessary for the effective operation of the institution. The legislation also granted authority to a governing board of
an institution of higher education to set a different tuition rate for each program and course level offered by the
institution. This authority offers more opportunity for the Board to develop a tuition schedule that assists in meeting
its strategic objectives in terms of access, affordability, effective use of campus resources, and improvement of
graduation rates. The Board has authorized the Board Designated Tuition rate at the various component institutions
as shown in the following chart. In connection with the authorization of Board Designated Tuition, building use
fees, historically included in Pledged General Fees under the Master Resolution, were rededicated as Board
Designated Tuition. This rededication does not impact the pledge of Revenue Funds for the payment and security of
Parity Debt. Both the State Mandated Tuition and the Board Designated Tuition are included in Revenue Funds and
are pledged for the benefit of Parity Debt.

Board Authorized Tuition. Section 54.008 of the Texas Education Code permits the governing board of each
institution of higher education to set tuition for graduate programs for that institution at a rate that is at least equal to
that of State Mandated Tuition, but there is not more than twice that rate. Between the maximum and minimum
rates, the board may set the differential tuition among programs offered by an institution of higher education.

The Board is authorized by chapter 55 of the Texas Education Code to set the Pledged General Tuition and any
other necessary fees, rentals, rates, or other revenue funds of the Board at the level necessary, without limit, to
enable the Board to meet its obligations with respect to the payment of debt service on the Parity Obligations.

Mandatory Fees. Mandatory fees comprise charges for certain activities and services utilized by all students and
include, but are not limited to, Student Union Fees, Medical Services Fees and Information Technology Fees. Each
component institution charges various types of fees and in various amounts. Fee amounts are computed either on a
per semester credit hour basis or on a per semester basis. In addition, certain departments are permitted to charge
additional fees for students participating in certain areas of study.

Any changes in tuition or fees will originate and be recommended by the President of the component institution,
reviewed by the Chancellor and approved by the Board of Regents. Any changes in tuition will be implemented
only after thorough consultation and review.



Set forth below is a table showing the State Mandated Tuition, Board Designated Tuition, Mandatory Fees and the amount set aside
for financial assistance to resident undergraduate students for a full-time undergraduate student based on 15 semester credit hours for
the Fall 2008 semester.

2009-2010 State Mandated Tuition, Board Designated Tuition
Mandatory Fees and Financial Assistance Set-Aside per Semester
(Based on 15 Credit Hours per Semester)

State Board Total Financial
Mandated Graduate Designated Mandatory Tuition Assistance
Tuition Tuition® Tuition Fees and Fees Set-Aside
Lamar University
Resident Undergraduate $ 750 $ 1,500 $1,033 $ 3,283 $ 275
Non-Resident Undergraduate 4,905 1,500 1,033 7,438 147
Resident Masters 750 $ 750 1,500 1,033 4,033 234
Non-Resident Masters 4,905 750 1,500 1,033 8,188 147
Resident Doctoral 750 750 1,500 1,033 4,033 234
Non-Resident Doctoral 4,905 750 1,500 1,033 8,188 147
Sam Houston State University
Resident Undergraduate $ 750 $1,575 $ 932 $ 3,257 $ 290
Non-Resident Undergraduate 4,905 1,575 932 7,412 147
Resident Masters 750 1,575 932 3,257 245
Non-Resident Masters 4,905 1,575 932 7,412 147
Resident Doctoral 750 1,575 932 3,257 245
Non-Resident Doctoral 4,905 1,575 932 7,412 147
Sul Ross State University
Resident Undergraduate $ 750 $ 1,080 $ 821 $ 2,651 $191
Non-Resident Undergraduate 4,905 1,080 821 6,806 147
Resident Masters 750 1,080 821 2,651 171
Non-Resident Masters 4,905 1,080 821 6,806 147
Sul Ross State University - Rio Grande
Resident Undergraduate $ 750 $ 555 $ 513 $1,818 $113
Non-Resident Undergraduate 4,905 555 513 5,973 147
Resident Masters 750 555 513 1,818 113
Non-Resident Masters 4,905 555 513 5,973 147
Texas State University-San Marcos
Resident Undergraduate $ 750 $1,980 $1,011 $3,741 $371
Non-Resident Undergraduate 4,905 1,980 1,011 7,896 147
Resident Masters 750 $ 750 1,980 1,011 4,491 306
Non-Resident Masters 4,905 750 1,980 1,011 8,646 147
Resident Doctoral 750 750 1,980 1,011 4,491 306
Non-Resident Doctoral 4,905 750 1,980 1,011 8,646 147
Lamar Institute of Technology
Resident Undergraduate $ 750 $ 570 $670 $ 1,990 $113
Non-Resident Undergraduate 4,905 570 670 6,145 147
Lamar State College — Orange
Resident Undergraduate $ 750 $ 540 $ 440 $1,730 $113
Non-Resident Undergraduate 4,905 540 440 5,885 147
Lamar State College — Port Arthur
Resident Undergraduate $ 750 $ 540 $721 $2,011 $113
Non-Resident Undergraduate 4,905 540 721 6,166 147

" Graduate students at Lamar University and Texas State University-San Marcos pay an additional $50 per semester credit hour to enroll in graduate programs at
those institutions; the numbers reflected in this table assume 15 credit hours per semester. There is no additional charge for graduate students at the other institutions.



Gifts, Grants, and Contracts. The component institutions of the University System receive federal, state, local and
private grants and contracts for research which incorporate an overhead component for use in defraying operating
expenses. This overhead component is treated as unrestricted current funds revenues while the balance of the grant
or contract is treated as restricted current funds revenues. Indirect cost recovery rates used in calculating the
overhead component are negotiated periodically with the appropriate governmental agency for each component
institution.

Investment _and Endowment Income. Investment and endowment income is received on both a restricted and
unrestricted basis.

Sales and Services. Other educational activities and auxiliary enterprises generate revenue from sales and services
which is unrestricted.

Other Interest Income. Each component institution of the University System generates interest from the investment
of cash pursuant to investment policies adopted by the Board in accordance with State law. See “INVESTMENT
POLICY AND PROCEDURES” below.

Other Sources. All miscellaneous revenues including rents, fees, fines, sales, and other receipts not categorized
above have been grouped together as “other sources.”

Current Funds Expenditures. Current funds expenditures represent the cost incurred for goods and services used in
the conduct of the operations of the component institutions of the University System. They also include the
acquisition cost of capital assets, such as equipment and library books to the extent current funds are budgeted for
and used by operating departments for such purposes. Current fund expenditures are categorized by function
generally described as follows:

Educational and General. Expenditures in this category include expenditures for all activities that are part of
instructional programs and expenditures for credit and non-credit courses, for academic, vocational, and technical
instruction, for remedial and tutorial instruction, and for regular, special, and extension sessions. Also, all
expenditures for activities specifically organized to produce research which may be either internally or externally
sponsored are included. Funds expended primarily to provide support services for instruction, research, and public
service, including supporting the operation of libraries, museums, and galleries, as well as those for academic
administration, technical support, and curriculum development are included. Also, expenditures for student service
by institution support, and operation and maintenance of physical plant, net of amounts charged to auxiliary
enterprises and independent operations are included.

Auxiliary Enterprises. Auxiliary enterprises are all expenditures relating to the operation of auxiliary enterprises,
including expenditures for operation and maintenance of plant and institutional support for auxiliary enterprises.

INVESTMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES.

Management of Investments. The Board has developed a written policy (the “Investment Policy”) regarding the
investment of all Current Funds (Unrestricted and Restricted), Loan Funds, Endowment Funds, and Plant Funds held
by each component institution of the University System which are not immediately needed for day-to-day operations
(together the “Non-Operating Funds”). Pursuant to the Investment Policy, and subject to its terms, the Board has
delegated the responsibility for the investment of Non-Operating Funds to the chief financial officer (“CFO”) of
each component institution. Each CFO, his/her designees, and/or the Board authorized investment advisor act as the
component’s investment officer (the “Investment Officer”).

Each CFO is responsible for investment management decisions and activities and is required to develop and
maintain written administrative procedures and guidelines, consistent with the Investment Policy, including
procedures and guidelines for safekeeping, master purchase agreements, wire transfer agreements,
collateral/depository agreements, banking service contracts, trading authorizations and other investment related
activities. These procedures are also required to be a part of each component institution’s written investment policy.
The Board must approve each component institution’s investment policy, review the policy annually and approve
any modifications to the policy.

Additionally, each CFO is required to submit quarterly and annual reports to the Vice Chancellor for Finance for the
University System for consolidation into a System-wide report to be submitted to the Finance Committee in the
format prescribed by the Public Funds Investment Act, the State General Appropriations Act and other oversight



agencies. The quarterly report must also be presented to the Board, the Chancellor and the President of each
component institution.

Each component institution, in conjunction with its annual financial audit (external or internal), shall have a
compliance audit of management controls on investments and adherence to statutory requirements and to the
University System’s and the component institution’s investment policies (at least biennially), and such results are
required to be reported to the Board and the State Auditor.

The Board has a standing finance committee (the “Finance and Audit Committee”) which has the primary
responsibility for submitting recommendations to the Board concerning financial matters for both the System
Administrative Office and for each component institution. The Finance Committee may examine the procedures
and documents for bond sales, depository contracts and all other financial matters. The Finance Committee also
oversees the internal audit effort in the University System, including reviewing and approving annual audit plans
and reviewing audit reports. The Finance Committee consists of three Board members appointed by the Chairman
of the Board.

Controls. Each component institution is required to establish, and incorporate into the written administrative
procedures for the component institution, a system of internal controls specifically designed to prevent loss of public
funds due to fraud, employee error, misrepresentations by third parties, unanticipated market changes, or imprudent
actions by employees of the component institution. The Investment Policy further requires the Internal Auditor to
review the component institution’s internal controls for adequacy and to test them for effectiveness in meeting the
goals established in the component institution’s investment plan on a biennial basis.

Each component institution shall have a compliance audit of management controls on investments and adherence to
statutory requirements and to the University System’s and entity’s established investment policies at least once
every two years. The results are required to be reported to the Board and the State Auditor.

Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions. The Investment Policy requires competitive bidding for transactions
(bids and offers) from at least three Board authorized broker/dealers who have fulfilled all compliance requirements
of the Board. No exceptions are made except upon written justification and Board approval.

The Board maintains a “qualified list” of financial institutions and broker/dealers authorized to do business with the
University System and its component institutions. The Board reviews the qualified list on an annual basis in order
to revise and adopt a current qualified list of approved broker/dealers and banks. The Board may additionally add or
remove any broker/dealer from the qualified list during the fiscal year.

A copy of the Investment Policy and the component institution’s investment policies are required to be presented to
any person seeking to engage in an investment transaction, including investment pools, with the University System
or a component institution. The registered principal of the business organization offering to engage in an investment
transaction must execute a written instrument substantially to the effect that the registered principal has (i) received
and reviewed the Investment Policy and the component institution’s investment policy and (ii) acknowledged that
the organization has implemented reasonable procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment
transactions conducted between the University System or the component institution and the organization that are not
authorized by the policies. An Investment Officer is not permitted to acquire or otherwise obtain any authorized
investment from a person who has not delivered such a instrument to the Board.

Authorized Investments. University System funds are invested in accordance with State law, the Investment Policy
and each component institution’s written policy. State law provides that the funds may be invested subject only to
the requirement that investments be made with the judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, that
persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not in regard to
speculation, but in regard to the permanent disposition of their funds, considering the probable income as well as the
probable safety of their capital.

The Board has further provided in its Investment Policy that funds may only be invested in (i) obligations of the
U.S. Government or its agencies with stated maturities of not more than five years; (ii) direct obligations of the State
of Texas or its agencies with stated maturities of not more than five years; (iii) U.S. Government agency or
instrumentality directly issued collateralized mortgage obligations, the underlying security for which is guaranteed
by an agency or instrumentality of the United States, subject to certain exceptions set out in the Investment Policy;
(iv) other obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by, or backed by
the full faith and credit of, the State of Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities



with stated maturities of not more than five years; (v) obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, or other
political subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm of
not less than “A” or its equivalent with stated maturities of not more than five years; (vi) non-negotiable fully
guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the National Credit Union Share Insurance
Fund certificates of deposits of banks, savings banks, or a state or federal credit union if such institutions are
domiciled in Texas; (vii) fully collateralized repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements meeting
certain conditions set out in the Investment Policy; (viii) banker’s acceptances meeting certain conditions set out in
the Investment Policy; (ix) commercial paper meeting certain conditions set out in the Investment Policy; (x) mutual
funds meeting certain conditions set out in the Investment Policy; (xii) guaranteed investment contracts meeting
certain conditions set out in the Investment Policy; (xiii) investment pools including public funds investment pools if
the Board has authorized the investment in that particular pool by rule, order, or resolution; (xiv) the Common Fund
of Fairfield, Connecticut may be used for the investment of Endowment Funds or foundation funds held by each
component institution; (xv) cash management and fixed income funds sponsored by organizations exempt from
federal income taxation under Section 501(1)(f), Internal Revenue Code; (xvi) negotiable certificates of deposit
issued by a bank that has a certificate of deposit rating of at least 1 or the equivalent by a nationally recognized
credit rating agency or that is associated with a holding company having a commercial paper rating of at least A-1,
P-1, or the equivalent by a nationally recognized credit reporting agency; and (xvii) corporate bonds, debentures, or
similar debt obligations rated by a nationally recognized investment rating firm in one of the two highest long-term
rating categories, without regard to gradations within those categories.

Additionally, some of the component institutions have developed policies that further restrict the authorized
investments for that institution.

Diversification of Investments. The Investment Policy requires investment funds to be diversified to minimize the
risk of loss resulting from over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity, specific issuer, or specific class of
securities. Each component institution is required to diversify maturities to match investment purchases and
maturities with the component institution’s anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific
requirement, the component institution may not invest more than 25% of the investment portfolio of the Non-
Operating Funds for a period greater than three years (excluding equity in endowment funds) and further may not
invest a portion of the Non-Operating Funds for a period greater than 10 years unless matched to a specific
requirement.

Types of investments allowed for each component together with the percentage limitation for that portfolio’s
holding follows:



Non-Operating Funds Other than Endowments:
Fixed Rate Investments —

U.S. Treasury Securities 100%
Bullet Federal Agency Securities 100%
Callable Federal Agency Securities 50%
Step-Up Federal Agency Securities 50%
Mortgage-Backed Securities 25%
Money Market Securities 25%
Municipal Securities 25%
Variable Rate Investments —
Federal Agency Notes 25%
Mortgage-Backed Securities 25%
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 25%
Corporate Securities 25%
State of Israel Bonds 25%
Mutual Funds —
Money Market Funds 100%
Mutual Funds 15%
Repurchase Agreements - 10%
Securities Lending 10%

Endowment Funds:
All securities with limitations described for
Non-Operating Funds Other than Endowments
Domestic and Foreign Stocks -

Domestic 50%
Foreign 10%
Domestic and Foreign Bonds —
Domestic 50%
Foreign 10%
Common Funds: 70%
Real Property Received as a Gift Authorized

Safekeeping and Collateralization. All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements but
excluding investment pool funds and mutual funds, entered into by the component institutions are required to be
entered on a delivery versus payment basis. All securities are to be held by a third party custodian in the name of
the component institution. The third party custodian must issue a safekeeping receipt to the component institution
listing the specific instrument, rate, maturity, safekeeping receipt number, and other pertinent information. Any
collateral safekeeping receipt must be clearly marked that the security is “pledged to the component institution” on
its face. Any safekeeping receipt for component institution owned securities shall clearly be identified as the
component institution’s securities.

Collateralization shall be required on certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements as well as deposits addressed
in the University System’s Policy and Procedures for the Control of Depository Funds. In order to anticipate market
changes and provide a level of additional security for all funds, the collateralization level will be at least 102% of
market value of principal and interest.

Amendment of Investment Policies and Procedures. The Board has the right to amend its policies and procedures
relating to the management of investments, including the Investment Policy, at its discretion and at any time, subject
to applicable State law.




TABLE A-9
Current Investments
(as of May 1, 2009)

Set forth below is a description of the combined investments by general category, for all of the component
institutions of the University System as of May 1, 2009:

Reported
Type of Security Value
U.S. Treasury Securities $ -
U.S. Government Agency Obligations 303, 283.50
U.S. Government Agency Obligations (Texas Treasury Safekeeping) 965,640.58
Corporate Obligations 3,254,866.00
Corporate Obligations (Texas Treasury Safekeeping) -
Corporate Asset and Mortgage Backed Securities -
Equity 7,124,822.24
Repurchase Agreement
1,902,039.59

Fixed Income Money Market and Bond Mutual Fund 70,091,897.05
Other Commingled Funds 19,682,929.30
Other Commingled Funds — Texpool 544,249,371.06
Commercial Paper 1,185,333.00
Real Estate 27,100.00
Miscellaneous 583,404.89

Total $649,370,687.21
Consisting of the Following:
Proprietary Funds Current Cash Equivalents $ 435,430,243.70
Proprietary Funds Current Restricted Cash Equivalents 79,019,598.98
Proprietary Funds Short Term Investments 198,000.00

Proprietary Funds Non-Current Restricted Cash Equivalents
31,900,589.56

Proprietary Funds Non-Current Restricted Investments 69,129,908.10
Proprietary Funds Non-Current Investments 33,692,346.87
Total as Above $649,370,687.21

Gifted Securities. Gifted securities are managed and safeguarded in their original form in accordance with the
donor’s written instructions. However, upon the partial or total disposition of the original investment, the proceeds
are invested in accordance with the policies described above.

Management of Funds Held in the State Treasury. The Texas Education Code requires that the University System
deposit into the State Treasury all funds except those derived from auxiliary enterprises and noninstructional
services, agency funds, designated and restricted funds, endowment and other gift funds, and student loan funds. All
such funds held in the State Treasury are administered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State (the
“Comptroller”). The Comptroller invests money in the State Treasury in authorized investments consistent with
applicable law and the Texas State Treasury Investment Policy, dated August 1993. The Comptroller pools funds
within the State Treasury for investment purposes and allocates investment earnings on pooled funds proportionately
among the various State agencies whose funds are so pooled. Currently, most pooled funds are invested in the
following instruments: repurchase agreements; reverse repurchase agreements; obligations of the United States and
its agencies and instrumentalities; commercial paper having the highest credit rating; and fully-collateralized
deposits in authorized State depositories. All State Treasury investments are marked to market daily using an



external financial service. The Comptroller, acting primarily through a special purpose trust company, also holds
approximately 20 separate accounts outside the State Treasury. The largest such account is a local government
investment pool, known as TexPool, which was established in 1989 as an investment alternative for local
governments in the State. TexPool operates on a $1 net asset value basis and allows same day or next day
redemptions and deposits. Interest is allocated daily based on portfolio earnings and account balance.

Investment of Bond Proceeds. Guaranteed investment contracts and investment funds managed by the State
Comptroller are used as investment vehicles for bond proceeds.

ENDOWMENTS.

Although not pledged to the payment of debt obligations, the University System and component institutions control
and are benefited by endowments consisting of securities and investments, land, and other real estate holdings and
mineral rights. Such land, real estate, and mineral rights are valued at their book value as of the date of acquisition
of such property. Each component of an endowment is subject to various restrictions as to application and use.

Set forth below is the value of endowments controlled by or benefiting the University System Administration and
the component institutions:

TABLE A-10
Texas State University System
Endowment Funds Summary

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008*
Angelo State University $ 73,212,545 $ 77,895,230 $ 80,940,829 $ 87,446,864 $ N/A
Lamar University 7,476,376 7,624,874 7,875,532 9,735,018 10,692,218
Lamar State College-Orange 5,524 5,524 10,524 10,524 15,524
Lamar State College-Port Arthur 0 0 0 0 0
Lamar Institute of Technology 0 0 0 0 0
Sam Houston State University 18,173,335 20,629,643 25,596,863 31,985,986 36,102,070
Texas State University-San Marcos 16,868,085 19,127,553 22,166,889 38,119,591 29,754,085
Sul Ross State University 9,555,599 10,545,429 11,282,461 12,075,519 12,685,421
University System Administration 545,842 5,330,674 8,241,767 8,343,405 8,322,067

Total $ 125,837,306 $ 141,158,927 $156,114,865 $187,716,908 $ 97,571,385

* Excludes ASU. The Texas Legislature transferred ASU to the Texas Tech University System effective September 1, 2007
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLANNING AND AUTHORIZATION.

The University System has developed a Procedure for Planning and Constructing a Project which is applicable to all
new construction and all remodeling or repair of existing facilities in the amount of $100,000 or more. Additionally,
all new construction, repairs, or renovations costing in excess of $20,000 but less than $100,000, exclusive of work
performed by employees of the component institution, are required to be reported to the Director of Planning and
Construction before the expenditure is made.

The President of each component institution is responsible to the Board for the planning and management of campus
construction projects. The Associate Vice Chancellor for Contract Administration advises the Board on such
projects and assists the President of each component institution by (i) acting in an advisory capacity for each
component institution during the project creation and preliminary plan development, (ii) assisting in the
development of detailed design plans, (iii) coordinating the project with appropriate State agencies other than the
Coordinating Board, (iv) preparing the required contract documents for architects and contractors and (v) acting in
an advisory role to the component institution administration in the contract administration stage.

In addition, approval from the Coordinating Board is also required prior to the award of any contracts except those
specifically authorized by the Texas Legislature, including tuition revenue bond projects. See “DESCRIPTION OF
THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM—Coordinating Board.” Construction contracts for approved projects are awarded by
the Board to the lowest responsible bidder.



Unless otherwise approved by the Board, all requests by a component institution for the construction of new
facilities, major repair and rehabilitation projects, or the purchase of real estate, shall be in accordance with a
comprehensive and current Campus Master Plan approved by the Board and filed with the Coordinating Board.

HIGHER EDUCATION ASSISTANCE FUND (HEAF) BONDS.

Pursuant to Article V11, Section 17 of the State Constitution, the component institutions of the University System are
eligible to receive an annual allocation from amounts constitutionally appropriated to institutions of higher
education for capital improvements (except those for auxiliary enterprises) (See “—Funding for the University
System and its Component Institutions—State Appropriations” above). Under this constitutional provision
commonly referred to as the “HEAF Fund”, the Board is authorized to issue bonds and notes to finance permanent
improvements at the respective institutions and to pledge up to 50% of its allocation to secure the payment of
principal and interest on the bonds and notes. The Board currently has no outstanding Higher Education Assistance
Fund bonds for the members of the University System.

OUTSTANDING INDEBTEDNESS.
Upon the delivery of the Bonds the Board will have the following described indebtedness:

University System Parity Debt Obligations

Taxable Series 1998 $ 1,925,000
Series 2000 $ 1,225,000
Series 2001 $ 5,370,000
Series 2002 & Taxable Series 2002 A $ 110,965,000
Series 2003 $ 37,775,000
Series 2004 $ 77,765,000
Series 2005 $ 40,820,000
Series 2006 $ 131,930,000
Series 2006A $ 21,855,000
Series 2008 $ 187,410,000
Total Parity Debt Obligations $ 617,040,000

Prior Encumbered Obligations

Texas State University-San Marcos:

University Housing System Revenue Bonds, 1986 $ 1,150,000
Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 1996 $ 1,170,000
Total Prior Encumbered Obligations $ 2,320,000

Other Obligations

Capital Leases $ 421,000
The Bonds $ 86,745,000
Total Indebtedness $__ 706,526,000




INSURANCE.

Property and Casualty Insurance on classroom buildings, their contents and business interruption coverage is carried
by the University System to defray any losses so incurred.

It is stated policy of the State and the Board not to acquire commercial general liability insurance for torts
committed by employees of the State who are acting within the scope of their employment. Three exceptions to this
policy authorize the Board to acquire commercial automobile insurance for the use and benefit of its employees who
operate state-owned motorized vehicles and special equipment, fidelity bond coverage for all employees and
directors and officers liability coverage.

Employees of the University System are provided Worker’s Compensation coverage under a self-insuring,
self-managed program as authorized by State law. The program providing the coverage is operated and
administered by the State with the University System acting as a participant.

RETIREMENT PLANS.

The State has joint contributory retirement plans for substantially all of its benefits eligible employees. One of the
primary plans in which the University System participates is administered by the Teacher Retirement System of
Texas. The contributory percentages of participant salaries currently provided by the State and by each participant
are 6.58% and 6.4%, respectively, of annual compensation.

The Teacher Retirement System of Texas does not separately account for each of its component governmental
agencies, since the Teacher Retirement System itself bears sole responsibility for retirement commitments beyond
contributions fixed by the State Legislature. According to an independent actuarial evaluation as of August 31,
2008, the present value of the Teacher Retirement System’s actual and projected liabilities, including projected
benefits payable to its retirees and active members and their beneficiaries, was more than the assets of the
Retirement System. Further information regarding actuarial assumptions and conclusions, together with audited
financial statement is included in the Teacher Retirement System’s annual financial report.

The State has also established an optional retirement program for institutions of higher education. Participation in
the optional retirement program is in lieu of participation in the Teacher Retirement System. For participants
enrolled, prior to September 1, 1995, the optional retirement percentages of participant salaries currently provided
by the State, the University System, and each participant was 7.31%, 1.19%, and 6.65%, respectively, of annual
compensation. For participants enrolled on or after September 1, 1995, the optional retirement percentage of
participant salaries currently provided by the State and each participant is 6.58% and 6.65%, respectively, of annual
salary. Since these are individual annuity contracts, the State has no additional or unfunded liability for this
program.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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November 20, 2008

Honorable Rick Perry, Governor

Honorable Susan Combs, Texas Comptroller

John O’Brien, Deputy Director, Legislative Budget Board
John Keel, CPA, State Auditor

Lady and Gentlemen:

We are pleased to submit the Combined Annual Financial Report of the Texas
State University System for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008, in
compliance with TEX. GOV’T CODE ANN §2101.011 and in accordance
with the requirements established by the Comptroller of Public Accounts.

Due to the statewide requirements embedded in Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments,
the Comptroller of Public Accounts does not require the accompanying annual
financial report to comply with all the requirements in this statement. The
financial report will be considered for audit by the State Auditor as part of the
audit of the State of Texas Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR);
therefore, an opinion has not been expressed on the financial statements and
related information contained in this report.

If you have any questions, please contact Roland Smith, Vice Chancellor for
Finance at (512) 463-1808.

Sincerely,

Charles R. Matthews
Chancellor
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UNAUDITED

Texas State University System
Student Enroliment Data
For the Year Ended August 31, 2008

NUMBER OF STUDENTS BY SEMESTER

SUMMER TERM 2008
TYPE OF STUDENT FALL 2007 SPRING 2008 FIRST SECOND
Texas Residents 55,253 54,339 21911 14,155
QOut of State (Classified as Residents) 351 356 104 71
Out of State 749 843 39% 224
Foreign 1,021 954 501 451
Children of Disabled 4 3 3 2
Concurrent Enroliment 342 306 3 4
Foster Children of the State 71 60 26 21
Good Neighbor 25 26 14 12
High School Honar Scholarships 47 38 0 0
Hazetwood Act 469 481 308 193
Senior Citizens 252 147 1 3
Commission for the Blind/Deaf 182 169 105 74
Fireman Exempt 8 8 3 2
Thesis Only 3 3 1 0
Student Service Fees 154 253 25 86
Nursing 134 147 249 69
Faculty/Staff 1,744 1,754 1,255 1,214
Teaching Assistants 428 319 22 22
Competitive Scholarships 597 617 448 400
Military Personnel 100 115 15 18
Louisiana Adjacent County 336 314 148 83
Mexico Pilot 7 [ 2 2
National Student Exchange Program 9 <] 0
New Mexico Adjacent County 8 16 6 8
Texas Tomorrow Waiver 47 27 29 17
Adopted Students 22 23 8 5
Military Dependent 1 2 0 4]
Pase 4] 0 0 0
TANF 0 0 0 0
H.B. 877 0 0 o] 1]
Distance Leaming 2,623 1,570 1,105 1,058
Family & Consumer Science Alliance Agreement 33 19 17 13
Hurricane Katrina Waiver ] o] o] 1]
Clinical Preceptor Exempt 2 0 0 0
Bmi-LA Non resident 17 21 10 3
UACH 22 14 12 1}
Eary HS Grad 3 2 ] 0
Tric Grant Math 0301 11 12 0 o]
HB 1406 Non US Citizen 0 3 1 2
Sub - Totals 65,075 62,973 26,731 18,211
Less: LU Tuition Exemption Duplicates (678) {691) (546) (464)
Totals 64,397 62,282 26,185 17,747

Fiscal Year
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998

Enroliment Data (Fall Semester )

SEMESTER
STUDENTS HOURS

64,397 745,674
69,233 806,869
69,626 807,807
58,102 759,896
66,121 738,920
64,419 738,914
61,536 699,134
59,892 679,771
57,807 656,827
57.451 654,429

56,718 642,345



UNAUDITED

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
Consolidated
Statement of Net Assets
August 31, 2008

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand $ 307,409.63
Cash in Bank (1,340,501.17)
Cash in Transit/Reimbursement from Treasury 21,908,979.95
Cash in State Treasury 49,785,269.20
Cash Equivalents 435,430,243.70

Securities Lending Collateral
Short Term Investments

Restricted:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 570.00
Cash in Bank (182,539.67)

Cash in Transit/Reimbursement from Treasury
Cash in State Treasury

Cash Equivalents 79,019,598.98
Short Term Investments 198,000.00
Legislative Appropriations 70,670,998.62
[nvestments
Receivables from:
Federal 29,686,934.28
Other Intergovernmental
Interest and Dividends 283,255.40
Accounts Receivable 67,510,919.41
Gifts 7,581,574.90
Investment Trades
Other 1,467,303.21
Interfund Receivables
Due From Other Agencies 426,015.29
Consumable Inventories 846,660.92
Merchandise Inventories 3,804,821.16
Deferred Charges 8,200,210.33
Loans and Contracts 4,649,074.44
Other Current Assets 26,540,207.88

Total Current Assets $ 806,795,006.46




UNAUDITED

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
Consolidated

Statement of Net Assets
August 31, 2008
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand
Cash in Bank $ (569,987.83)

Cash in Transit/Reimbursement from Treasury
Cash in State Treasury

Cash Equivalents 31,900,589.56
Short Term Investments
Receivables 4,855,202.83
Investments 69,129,508.10
Loans and Contracts 1,020,971.62
Other Assets 7,493,428.26
Loans and Contracts 388,274.55
Investments 33,692,346.87
Interfund Receivables
Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable:
Land and Land Improvements 62,996,415.27
Infrastructure
Construction in Progress 115,986,416.78
Other Capital Assets 6,507,448.31
Depreciable:
Buildings and Building Improvements 1,133,540,064.51
Less Accumulated Depreciation (580,855,341.04)
Infrastructure 66,757,960.78
Less Accumulated Depreciation (32,379,634.23)
Facilities and Other Improvements 66,399,812.22
Less Accumulated Depreciation (28,635,178.47)
Furniture and Equipment 90,934,647.58
Less Accurnulated Depreciation (57,475,114.80)
Vehicles, Boats, and Aircraft 11,121,796.91
Less Accumulated Depreciation (7,897,925.23)
Other Capital Assets 106,070,276.31
Less Accumulated Depreciation (60,598,761.75)

Other Noncurrent Assets

Total Non-Current Assets 1.040,383,617.11

Total Assets 3 1,847,178,623.57




UNAUDITED
TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

Consolidated
Statement of Net Assets
August 31, 2008
Current Liabilities:
Payables:
Accounts 3 21,793,562.25
Investment Trades
Federal
Other Intergovernmental
Payroll 32,046,994.26
Other 10,164,059.15
Interfund Payable
Due to Other Agencies 7,153.52
Deferred Revenues 220,805,182.65
Notes and Loans Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable 38.865,693.00
General Obligation Bonds Payable
Claims and Judgments
Employees' Compensable Leave 8,918,891.37
Capital Lease Obligations 116,108.15
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Obligations/Reverse Purchase Agreements
Obligations Under Securities Lending
Funds Held for Others 5,267,639.75
Other Current Liabilities 4,016,928.21
Total Current Liabilities 342,002,232.31
Noncurrent Liabilities;
Interfund Payables
Notes and Loans Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable 633,021,475.23
General Obligation Bonds Payable
Claims and Judgments
Employees Compensable Leave 9,415,862.36
Capital Lease Obligations 304,955.68
Other Non-Current Liabilities 1,989,573.73
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 644,731,867.00
Total Liabilities 3 986,734,099.31




UNAUDITED
TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

Consolidated
Statement of Net Assets
August 31, 2008
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 220,200,358.26
Restricted for
Education 5,023,324.94
Debt Retirement 4,238,457.41
Capital Projects 155,585,942.82
Employee Benefit
Funds Held As Permanent Investments:
Non-Expendable 97,571,384.28
Expendable 16,202,214.59
Other 39,133,011.86
Unrestricted 322,489,790.10

Total Net Assets $ 860,444,524.26




UNAUDITED
TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

Consolidated
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2008

OPERATING REVENUES

Sales of Goods and Services
Tuition and Fees (PR-Chgs for Services)
Tuition and Fees - Pledged (PR-Chgs for Services) $
Discounts and Allowances
Hospitals (PR-Chgs for Services)
Hospitals - Pledged (PR-Chgs for Services)
Discounts and Allowances
Professional Fees (PR-Chgs for Services)
Professional Fees - Pledged (PR-Chgs for Services)
Discounts and Allowances
Auxiliary Enterprises (PR-Chgs for Services)
Auxiliary Enterprises - Pledged (PR-Chgs for Services)
Discounts and Allowances
Other Sales of Goods and Services
Other Sales of Goods and Services - Pledged
Discounts and Allowances
Premium Revenue (PR-Chgs for Services)
Interest and [nvestment income (PR-Chgs for Services)
Interest and Investment Income (GR)
Net increase (Decrease) Fair Market Value (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
Net Increase (Decrease) Fair Market Value (GR)
Federal Revenue-Operating (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
Federal Pass Through Revenue (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
State Grant Revenue (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
State Grant Pass Through Revenue (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
Other Grants and Contracts (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
Land Income (PR-Chgs for Services)
Contributions to Retirement Systems (PR-Chgs for Services)
Other Operating Revenues (PR-Chgs for Services)
Other Operating Revenues (GR)

361,949,623.52
(57,070,714.73)

95,203,716.42
(8,007,594.86)
14,545,555.11

578,195.73
39,946.19

83,684,195.62
10,542,867.23
7,077,364.58
20,463,791.17
6,470,663.14

13,569,242.25

Total Operating Revenues

549,046,851.37

OPERATING EXPENSES

Instruction

Research

Hospitals and Clinics

Public Service

Academic Support

Student Services

[nstitutional Support

Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Scholarship and Fellowships
Auxiliary Enterprise Expenditures
Depreciation and Amortization

253,103,979.18
29,178,685.93

34,900,261.57
71,372,428.76
36,125,332.16
79,715,576.68
60,527,375.87
53,554,554.36
121,677,265.60
47,862,411.34

Total Operating Expenses

788,017,871.45

Operating Income (Loss) $

(238,971,020.08)




UNAUDITED
TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

Consolidated

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2008

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Legislative Revenue (GR)
Additional Appropriations (GR)
Federal Revenue Non-Operating (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
Gifts (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
Investment Income (Expense) (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
Investment Income (Expense) (GR)
Loan Premium/Fees on Securities Lending (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
Investing Activities Expense
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges
Borrower Rebates and Agent Fees
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets (GR)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of [nvestments (PR-OP Grants/Contributions)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (GR)
Settlement of Claims (PR-Chgs for Services)
Settlement of Claims (GR)
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (PR-Chgs for Services)
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (GR)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) before Other Revenues, Expenses,
Gains/Losses and Transfers

OTHER REVENUES, EXPENSES, GAINS/LOSSES
AND TRANSFERS
Capital Contributions
Capital Appropriations (HEAF)
Federal Grant-Capital Grant Contributions
Contributions to Permanent and Term Endowments
Special Items
Extraordinary Items
Increase Interagency Transfer Capital Assets
Decrease Interagency Transfer Capital Assets
Transfer In
Transfer Out
Legislative Transfer In
Legislative Transfer Out
Lapses

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains/Losses
and Transfers

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Net Assets, September 1 2007
Restatements

Net Assets. September 1, 2008, as Restated
NET ASSETS, August 31, 2008

$

213,210,041.00
46,873,600.26

24,724,447.24
4,817,934.59
8,876,182.79

(1,611,009.73)
(14,153,006.46)

(274,913.52)
(2,171,377.54)
(2,797,258.46)
(134,886.05)
(121,134.27)
3,472,849.05
43,875.83

280,755,344.73

41,784,324.65

45,654,860.00

(647,425.02)

52,901.33
(3,709.50)

1,783,882.08
(219,869,592.90)

4,125,474.93

(101,309.38)

(169,004,918.46)

(127,220,593.81)

987,687,218.15
(22,100.08)

987,665,118.07

860,444,524.26
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UNAUDITED

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from Customers

Proceeds from Tuition and Fees

Proceeds from Research Grants and Contracts
Proceeds from Gifts

Proceeds from Loan Programs

Proceeds from Auxiliaries

Proceeds from Other Revenues

Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Payments to Employees for Salaries
Payments to Employees for Benefits
Payments for Loans Provided

Payments for Other Expenses

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Proceeds from Debt Issuance

Proceeds from State Appropriations
Proceeds from Gifts

Proceeds from Endowments

Proceeds of Transfers from Other Funds
Proceeds from Grant Receipts

Proceeds from Advances from Other Funds
Proceeds from Loan Programs

Proceeds from Other Financing Activities
Proceeds from Contributed Capital
Payments of Principal on Debt Issuance
Payments of Interest

Payments of Other Costs of Debt Issuance
Payments for Transfers to Other Funds
Payments for Grant Disbursements
Payments for Advances to Other Funds
Payments for Other Uses

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Debt Issuance

Proceeds from State Grants and Contracts
Proceeds from Federal Grants and Contracts
Proceeds from Gifis

Proceeds from Other Financing Activities
Procecds from Capital Contributions
Proceeds from Advances from Other Funds
Payments for Additions to Capital Assets
Payments of Principal on Debt

Payments for Capital Lease

Payments of Interest on Debt Issuance
Payments of Other Costs of Debt Issuance

Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities

22,630,323.94
300,182,743.76
48,999,399 43
12,364,402.50
5,197,506.47
86,450,685.89
81,347.321.31
(220,580,687.16)
(376,707.710.32)
(84,990,646.41)
(10,772,224.55)
(54,548,844.11)

{190,427,729.25)

0.00

270,233,597.56

18,130,657.77

10,731,417.02

2.625,816.55

317,024.94

0.00

0.00

897.000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
(67.420,348.69)
(76,415.19)
(21,155.06)
(10,552,538.80)

224,865,056.10

(253,788.83)
266,156,013 80
0.00

0.00

0.00
2,439,496 00
145,887,652 .81
57,145,232.51
(295,035,212 48)
(63,620,773.24)
(143.733.21)
(24,954,639.22)
(21,400,649.94)

66,219,598 20
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TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2008

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from Sales of Investments
Proceeds from Interest Income

Proceeds from Investment Income

Proceeds from Principal Payments on Loans
Payments to Acquire Investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net [ncrease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1, 2007
Changes in Accounting Principal
Changes in Reporting Entity
Restatements to Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1, 2008 - Restated

Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31, 2008

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Amortization and Depreciation
Bad Debt Expense

Operating Income and Cash Flow Categories:
Classification Differences

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase} Decrease in Receivables
Increase (Decrease) in Due from Other Funds
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses
(Increase) Decrease in Notes Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Loans & Contracts
{Increase) Decrease in Other Assets
(Increase) Decrease in State Appropriations
Increase (Decrease) in Payables
Increase (Decrease) in Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Income
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absence Liability
Increase (Decrease) in Benefits Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Non Cash Transactions
Donation of Capital Assets
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments
Borrowing Under Capital Lease Purchase
Other

$

4,892,198.10
4,832,246.06
12,595,604.39
0.00
(5,847,355.30)

16,472,693.25

117,129,618.30
499,130,014.05
0.00
0.00
0.00

499,130,014.05

616,259,632.35

(238,971,020.08)

0.00
0.00
47,862.411.34
262,280.55
0.00
4,517,536.54
0.00
(26,417,097 55)
43543728
(593,271.80)
(3,182,376.68)
109,107.62
1,154,337.14
1,319,882.81
(4.149,635 72)
5,535,658.02
119,005.13
323.010.12
19,083,139.79
260,099.11
0.00
1,903,767.13

48.543.290.83

(190,427,729.25)

(503,394.43)
(4,046,790 57)
385,356.66

6.843.670.13
) 12
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TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2008

[ NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Entity

The Texas State University System (System) is considered an Institution of Higher Education of
the State of Texas, and its financial records comply with state statutes and regulations. This
includes compliance with the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts’ Reporting Requirements
for State Institutions of Higher Education.

The Texas State University System was comprised of System Administration and the following
institutions: Lamar University, Sam Houston State University, Sul Ross State University, Texas
State University-San Marcos, Lamar Institute of Technology, Lamar State College - Orange, and
Lamar State College - Port Arthur. The System’s primary role is to provide post secondary
educational opportunities for the citizens of the State of Texas. The component institutions also
perform research activities and provide public service programs for their constituents.

Due to the statewide requirements embedded in Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No 34. Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments, the Comptroller of Public Accounts does not require the
accompanying annual financial report to comply with all the requirements in this statement. The
financial report will be considered for audit by the State Auditor as part of the audit of the State
of Texas Comprehensive Annual Financial Report; therefore, an opinion has not been expressed
on the financial statements and related information contained in this report.

Fund Structure

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the bases of funds. A fund is
considered a separate accounting entity. The fund designation for institutions of higher
education is a Business Type Activity within the Proprietary Fund Type.

Proprietary Funds

Business Type Activity
Business type funds are used for activities that are financed through the
charging of fees and sales for goods or services to the ultimate user. Institutions
of higher education are required to report their financial activities as business
type; because, the predominance of their funding comes through charges to
students, sales of goods and services, and grant revenues.
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Note I Continued

Component Units
The fund types of the individual discrete component units are available from the

component units' separately issued financial statements. Additional information
about component units can be found in Note 17.

Basis of Accounting
The basis of accounting determines when revenues and expenditures or expenses

are recognized in the accounts reported in the financial statements. The

accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus.

Business activity type funds (proprietary funds) are accounted for using the full
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are
incurred. Proprietary funds distinguish operating from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services or producing and
delivering goods in connection with the proprietary funds principal ongoing
operations. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.

Budget and Budgetary Accounting
The operating budget is prepared annually and represents appropriations
authorized by the legislature and approved by the Governor (the General
Appropriations Act) and other revenues generated by System Administration.
Unencumbered appropriations are generally subject to lapse 60 days after the end
of the fiscal year for which they were appropriated.

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Balances/Net Assets

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or
less are considered cash equivalents.

Securities Lending Collateral

Investments are stated at fair value in all funds except pension trust funds in
accordance with GASB Statement 31-Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. For pension trust
funds, investments are required to be reported at fair value using the accrual basis
of accounting in accordance with GASB Statement 25 - Financial Reporting
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Note 1 Continued

for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined
Contribution Plans.

Securities lent are reported as assets on the Statement of Net Assets. The costs of
securities lending transactions are reported as expenditures or expenses in the
Operating Statement. These costs are reported at gross.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include monies or other resources restricted by legal or
contractual requirements. These assets include proceeds of enterprise fund
general obligation and revenue bonds and revenues set aside for statutory or
contractual requirements. Assets held in reserve for guaranteed student loan
defaults are also included.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories include both merchandise inventories on hand for sale and
consumable inventories. Inventories are valued at cost, generally utilizing the
last-in, first-out method. The consumption method of accounting is used to
account for inventories and prepaid items that appear in the proprietary fund
types. The cost of these items is expensed when the items are consumed.

Capital Assets

Assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful
life in excess of one year should be capitalized. These

assets are capitalized at cost or, if not purchased, at appraised fair

value as of the date of acquisition. Depreciation is reported on all “exhaustible”
assets. “Inexhaustible” assets such as works of art and historical treasures are not
depreciated. Road and highway infrastructure is reported on the modified basis.
Assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset using the straight
-line method.

Current Receivables - Other
Other receivables include year-end revenue accruals not included in any other
receivable category.

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable represents the liability for the value of assets or services
received at the Statement of Net Assets date for which payment is pending.
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Current Payables - Other
Other payables are the accrual at year -end of expenditure transactions not
included in any of the other payable descriptions.

Employees’ Compensable Leave Balances

Employees' Compensable Leave Balances represent the liability that becomes
“due” upon the occurrence of relevant events such as resignations, retirements,
and uses of leave balances by covered employees. Liabilities are reported
separately as either current or noncurrent in the Statement of Net Assets.

Capital Lease Obligations
Capital Lease Obligations represent the liability for future lease payments under

capital lease contracts contingent upon the appropriation of funding by the
Legislature. Liabilities are reported separately as either current or noncurrent in
the Statement of Net Assets.

Bonds Payable - General Obligation Bonds and Revenue Bonds

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds are accounted for in the proprietary funds
by institutions of higher education. The bonds payable are reported at par less
unamortized discount or plus unamortized premium. Interest expense is reported
on the accrual basis, with amortization of discount or premium. Payables are
reported separately as either current or noncurrent in the Statement of Net Assets.
Bond proceeds and principal payments are reported in the Statement of Cash
Flows.

FUND BALANCE/NET ASSETS
The difference between fund assets and liabilities is “Net Assets” on the
government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund statements, and the
“Fund Balance” is the difference between fund assets and liabilities on the
governmental fund statements.

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bond, notes,
and other debt that are attributed to the acquisition,

construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Assets

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like,

or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets which do not meet the definition of the
two preceding categories. Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on
resources which are imposed by management, but can be removed or modified.

INTERFUND ACTIVITIES AND BALANCES
The Texas State University System has the following types of transactions among
funds:

(1) Transfers: Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as
“Transfers In” by the recipient fund and as “Transfers Out” by the disbursing
fund.

(2) Reimbursements: Reimbursements are repayments from funds responsible for
expenditures or expenses to funds that made the actual payment.
Reimbursements of expenditures made by one fund for
another that are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a
reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed fund. Reimbursements are not
displayed in the financial statements.

(3) Interfund receivables and payables: Interfund loans are reported as
interfund receivables and payables. If repayment is due during the current year
or soon thereafter it is classified as “Current”, repayment for two (or more)
years is classified as “Non-Current”.

(4) Interfund Sales and Purchases: Charges or collections for services
rendered by one fund to another that are recorded as revenues of the recipient
fund and expenditures or expenses of the disbursing fund.

The composition of Texas State University System’s Interfund activities is
presented in Note 8.

NOTE 2: Capital Assets

A summary of changes in Capital Assets for the year ended August 31, 2008 is presented on the
next page.

Per HB3564, 80™ Texas legislature, Angelo State University was transferred from the Texas
State University System to the Texas Tech University System on September 1, 2007. The
adjustment column includes the transfer of the beginning balances of Angelo State University’s
capital assets.
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| NOTE 3: Deposits, Investments, & Repurchase Agreements

The Texas State University System is authorized to invest in obligations and instruments as
defined in the Public Funds Investment Act (Sec. 2256.001 Texas Government Code).
Endowment Funds may be invested in accordance with the Uniform Management of Institutional
Funds Act, Property Code Chapter 163. Such investments include (1) obligations of the United
States or its agencies, (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies, (3) obligations
of political subdivisions rated not less than A by a national investment rating firm, (4) certificates
of deposit, and (5) other instruments and obligations authorized by statute.

Deposits of Cash in Banks
As of August 31, 2008, the carrying value of demand deposits at local banks was $21,300,972.09 as
presented below:

GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

CASH IN BANK-CARRYING VALUE PER AFR $ (2,093,028.67)
Proprietary Funds Current Assets Cash in Banks $ (1,340,501.17)
Proprietary Funds Cumrent Assets Restricted Cash in Banks (182,539.67)
Proprietary Funds Noncurrent Assets Restricted Cash in Banks (369,987.83)
Cash in Bank per AFR $ {2,093,028.67)

At August 31, 2008, the actual balance on deposit with local banks was $20,051,918.93.

Investments

The carrying and fair values of investments as of the Statement of Net Assets date (both short
and long term) are shown below.

GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES Fair value

U.S. Government

U.S. Treasury Securities $ -

U.S. Government Agency Obligations 303,283.50

U.S. Government Agency Obligations (Texas Treasury Safekeeping) 965,640.58
Corportate Obligations 3,254,866.00

Corporate Obligations (Texas Treasury Safekeeping) -
Corporate Asset and Mortgage Backed Securities -

Equity 7.124.822.24
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Note 3 Continued
Repurchase Agreements
Fixed Income Money Market and Bond Mutual Fund
Other Commingted Funds
Other Commingled Funds - Texpool
Commercial Paper
Real Estate
Miscellaneous

Total

Consisting of the Following

Proprietary Funds Current Cash Equivalents

Proprietary Funds Current Restricted Cash Equivalents
Proprietary Funds Short Term Investments

Proprietary Funds Non-Current Restricted Cash Equivalents
Proprietary Funds Non-Current Restricted Investments
Proprietary Funds Non-Current Investments

Total as Above

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its

Texas State University System

1,902,039.59
70,091,897.05
19,682.929.30
544,249,371.06
1,185,333.00
27,100.00
583,404.89

649,370,687.21

435,430,243.70
79,019,598.98
198,000.00
31,900,589.56
69,129,908.10
33,692,346.87

649,370,687.21

Combined Annual Financial Report 2008

obligations. The Investment Policies of the Texas State University System allow the investment

of State funds in corporate bonds to be no more than 5% of the total portfolio. The bonds must
be rated in one of the three highest rating categories (i.e. AAA to A).

As of August 31, 2008 the System’s credit quality distribution for securities with credit risk

exposure was as follows.

STANDARDS & POOR'S
Fund GAAP
Type Fund Investment Type AAA A
05 9999 U.S. Government Agency Obligations 5 96564058 $
U.S. Government Agency Obligations -
05 9999 Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Co. 303,283.50 - -
05 9999  Corporate Obligations 410,980.00 1,627.510.00 1,216,376.00
Corporate Obligations -
05 9999 Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Co.
05 9999 Corporate Asset and Mortgage Backed Securities
05 9969 Repurchase Agreement -
05 9999  Miscellaneous - Commerical Paper 1.185,333.00
05 9999 Miscetlaneous - Municipal Bonds -
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| NOTE 4: Short-Term Debt

During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008, Texas State University System had no short term
debt activity.

[ NOTE 5: Summary of Long-term Liabilities

Changes in Long-term Liabilities
During the year ended August 31, 2008, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities.

AMOUNTS  DUE

BUSINESS TYPE BALANCE BALANCE WITHIN  ONE
ACTIVITES 97172007 ADJUSTMENTS* ADDITIONS REDUCTIONS 8/31/2008 YEAR
General Obligation B/P $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Revenue B/P 518,090,406.62 207,365,000.00 (53,598.238.39) 671.887.168.23 38,865,693.00
Compensable Leave 18,221,183.66 (1,410,956.26) 2,153,688.42 (629,162.09) 18.334,753.73 8,918,891.37
Capital Lease Obligations 564,797.04 - (143,733.21H) 421,063.83 116,108.15
TOTALS $ 536,876,387.32  § (1410.956.26) $ 20954868842 3 (54371,133.69) $ 690,642985.79 $ 47,900,692.52

*Adjustment column includes the mansfer of the beginning balance of Angelo State University's compensable leave.

Bonds Payable
See Note 13 for a discussion of Bonds Payable.

Compensable Leave

A state employee is entitled to be paid for any unused vacation time accrued, in the event of the
employee’s resignation, dismissal, or separation from State employment, provided the employee
has had continuous employment with the State for six months. An expense and liability for
Business Type Activities are recorded in the accounts as the benefits accrue to employees. No
liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits.

Capital Leases
See Note 6 for a discussion of Capital Lease obligations.

LNOTE 6: Capital Leases

Certain Leases to finance the purchase of equipment are capitalized at the present value of future
minimum lease payments.

The following summary presents the original capitalized costs of all such property under lease as
well as the accumulated depreciation at August 31, 2008.
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ASSETS UNDER CAPITAL LEASE AMOUNT
Furniture & Equipment $ 732,820.31
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (26,557.61)
TOTAL $ 706,262.70

Future minimum lease payments under these capital leases, together with the present value of the
net minimum lease payments at August 31, 2008 follows.

FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS PRINCIPAL INTEREST
$ - 3% -

2009 116,108.15 27,689.82

2010 120,223.92 20,199.89

2011 115,086.03 12,233.58

2012 69,645.73 3,404.31

TOTALS 3 421,06383 % 63,527.60

NOTE 7: Operating Lease Obligations

Future minimum lease rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases having an initial
term in excess of one year are shown below:

YEAR ENDING AUGUST 31, 2008 AMOUNT
2009 $ 1.155,294.21
2010 1,131,620.79
2011 1,099,280.53
2012 1,078,625.44
2013 1,075,676.44
2014-2018 4,262,713.55
2019-2023 2,827,774.28
2024-2028 -
2029-2033
TOTAL MINIMUM FUTURE LEASE
PAYMENTS $  12,630.985.24

NOTE 8: Interfund Balances / Activities

As explained in Note 1 on Interfund Activities and Balances, there are numerous transactions
between funds and agencies. The Texas State University System experienced routine transfers
within the System which were eliminated for the combined presentation.

Transfers with other State agencies and universities were consistent with the activities of the

fund making the transfer. Repayment of interagency balances will occur within one year from
the date of the financial statements. Individual balances and activity at August 31, 2008 follows:
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Required Note 8 Presentation

All Funds

Required Note 8 Presentation
Texas State University System

Agency 737, Fund 0001

Optional Note 8 presentation

Angelo State 737

Transfer of Beginning Balances

Lamar Beaumont 734
Agency 347, Fund 0507
Agency 781, Fund 5103
Sam Houston 753
Agency 781, Fund 5103
Agency 781, Fund 5103
Texas State 754
Agency 781, Fand 7999

Lamar Institate of Technology 789

Agency 781, Fund 7999
Texas State System 758
Agency 737, Fund 7999

Texas State University System
Combined Annual Financial Report 2008
UNAUDITED

INTERFUND
RECEIVABLE PAYABLE

$ - 3 -

LEGISLATIVE TRANSFERS
IN OouT

$ 4,12547493 §$ -

TRANSFERS
IN OuT

$ 215,582,333.67

1.034,383.37
440,103.80

699,184.00
11,524.00

2,100,581.06

1,783,882.08 1,483.00

TOTAL

$ 1,783,822.08 $ 219,869,592.90

OPTIONAL Note 8 presentation

Lamar Beaumont 734
Agency 601, Fund 5015
Sam Houston 753
Agency 781, Fund 0001
Agency 556, Fund 7999
Agency 601, Fund 0006
Agency 730, Fund 7999
Agency 601, Fund 5015
Agency 781, Fund 5103
Texas State 754
Agency 781, Fund 5079
Agency 601, Fund 5015
Agency 302, Fund 5010
Agency 530, Fund 7999
Agency 601, Fund 7999
Agency 580, Fund 7999

DUE FROM DUE TO SOURCE
$ 270.18 % - Shared Funds
1,420.36 Federal P-T
18.636.90 Federal P-T
78.406.32 Federal P-T
45,875.88 Federal P-T
10,549.93 State P-T
200.00 State P-T
20.319.76 Shared Funds
14,222.22 Shared Funds
2,098.94 Shared Funds
125,195.51¢ Federal
63,858.57 Federal
5,900.00 State
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Agency 802, Fund 0951 6,267.48 Federal
Agency 320, Fund 0001 7,151.80 Shared Funds
Agency 781, Fund 0001 1.72 Shared Funds
Sul Ross 756
Agency 781, Fund 5103 27,071.12 Shared Funds
Agency 601, Fund 5015 5,722.12 Shared Funds
TOTAL $ 426,015.29 3% 7,153.52
| NOTE 9: Contingent Liabilities ]

At August 31, 2008, various lawsuits and claims involving the Board of Regents, Texas State
University System were pending. While the ultimate liability with respect to litigation and other
claims asserted against the Board of Regents cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, such
liability, to the extent not provided for by insurance or otherwise, is not likely to have a material
effect on the Board of Regents, Texas State University System. Under Texas law the Texas State
University System, as an agency of the State of Texas, enjoys immunity from most causes of
action. The majority of such claims are dismissed prior to trial.

| NOTE 10: Continuance Subject to Review |

The Texas State University System is not subject to the Texas Sunset Act.

| NOTE 11: Risk Financing and Related Insurance ]

System Administration is exposed to a variety of civil claims resulting from the performance of
its duties. It is System Administration’s policy to periodically assess the proper combination of
commercial insurance and retention of risk to cover losses to which it may be exposed. System
Administration assumes substantially all risks associated with tort and liability claims due to the
performance of its duties. Currently there is no purchase of commercial insurance, nor is System
Administration involved in any risk pool with other government entities for these risks.

l NOTE 12: Segment Information |

The Texas State University System has no segments to report as of August 31, 2008.

[ NOTE 13: Bonded Indebtedness W

The Board of Regents approved the order establishing the Master Resolution for the Texas State
University System Revenue Financing System in August 1998. The Master Resolution provides

24



Texas State University System
Combined Annual Financial Report 2008
UNAUDITED
Note 13 Continued

a financing structure under which revenue supported indebtedness of the Revenue Financing
System can be incurred. Each component institution and the System Administration of TSUS

are members of the Revenue Financing System. The Board pledged all of the funds (revenues)
and balances derived or attributable to any member of the Revenue Financing System that is
lawfully available to the Board for payments on Parity Debt. Specifically exempted from
pledged revenues are:

(a) Amounts received on behalf of any member under Article 7, Section 17 of the
Constitution of the State of Texas, including the income therefrom and any balances
relating thereto, and

b General Revenue Fund appropriations, except to the extent so specifically

appropriated for debt service to the Board by the Legislature of the State of
Texas.

Pledged revenue is also subject to the provisions of the "Prior Encumbered Obligations". Prior
encumbered obligations means the revenues included in the Revenue Financing System for
Texas State University-San Marcos are subject to a prior claim for the following heretofore
issued bonds of the Board on behalf of that University that were not refunded by the issuance of
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998B or Taxable Series 1998:

Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series 1986
Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 1996

Members may use the Revenue Financing System as a long-term debt program to acquire,
purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge, or equip property, buildings, structures,
facilities, roads, or related infrastructure. An institution's request for the use of the Revenue
Financing System is evaluated for an adequate revenue stream and bonding capacity for the
specific institution prior to Board approval of issuing additional parity debt.

Each component institution receives its portion of the bond proceeds and accounts for the
earnings and disbursements of the bond proceeds. Assets created and/or acquired as a result of

the Revenue Financing System bond proceeds expended and subsequently capitalized are

reported on the component institutions' Financial Reports. The associated bond liability and debt
service activities are reported in total by the TSUS - System Administration.
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The following bonds have been issued utilizing the Revenue Financing System:

Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A

To acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge or equip the
property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads or related infrastructures for the
members of the Revenue Financing System and to pay costs of

issuance related to the bonds.

Issued September 16, 1998.

$94,540,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

Bond proceeds were distributed as follows:

Angelo State University - $28,000,000;

Lamar University - $8,000,000;

Lamar University Institute of Technology - $2,000,000;

Lamar State College — Orange - $3,500,000;

Lamar State College — Port Arthur - $2,750,000;

Sam Houston State University - $12,500,000;

Texas State University — San Marcos - $19,700,000;

Sul Ross State University - $17,500,000;

Costs of Issuance - $590,000.

Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the
respective universities.

Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

The Texas Legislature has continually appropriated General Revenue Funds as an
alternative funding source through the 2008-2009 biennium, for the Tuition
Revenue financed share, $80,950,000, of the issued bonds.

Funding for the 2008-2009 biennium meets the debt service for Tuition Revenue
Bonds and full funding for future biennia is anticipated.

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998B

To provide funds to refund certain obligations of the Board and to pay

costs of issuance related to the bonds.

Issued September 16, 1998.

$53,505,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

The Texas Legislature has continually appropriated General Revenue Funds as an
alternative funding source through the 2008-2009 biennium, for the Tuition
Revenue financed share, $23,530,000 of the issued bonds.

Funding for the 2008-2009 biennium meets the debt service for Tuition Revenue
Bonds and full funding for future biennia is anticipated.
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Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 1998

To provide funds to refund certain obligations of the Board and to pay
costs of issuance related to the bonds.

Issued September 16, 1998.

$15,920,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

Revenue Bonds Series 2000

To provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge, or
equip the property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads, or related infrastructure
and to pay any costs related to the issuance of the bonds.

Issued September 26, 2000.

$26,000,000; all authorized bonds were issued.

Bond proceeds of $10,000,000 and $16,000,000 were distributed to Sam
Houston State University and Texas State University - San Marcos, respectively.
The debt has been retained on the books of System Administration.

Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the respective
universities,

Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

Revenue Bonds Series 2001

To provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge, or
equip the property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads, or related infrastructure
and to pay any costs related to the issuance of the bonds.

Issued June 21, 2001.

$12,400,000; all authorized bonds were issued.

Bond proceeds were distributed to Texas State University-San Marcos.

The debt has been retained on the books of System Administration.

Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the
University.

Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

Revenue and Refunding Series 2002 and Taxable Series 2002 A

To acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge or equip the property,
buildings, structures, facilities or related infrastructures for component institutions
($147,445,000). To refund certain taxable outstanding bond issues for Texas
State University-San Marcos ($14,170,000).

Bond proceeds were also used to pay costs of issuance related to the bonds.

Issued October 17, 2002.

$161,615,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

Bond proceeds were delivered to the TSUS components.
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Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the respective
universities.

Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

The Texas Legislature has appropriated General Revenue Funds as an alternative
funding source in the 2008-2009 biennium, for the Tuition Revenue financed
share, $98,935,000, of the issued bonds. Funding for the 2008-2009 biennium
meets the debt service for Tuition Revenue Bonds and full funding for future
biennia is anticipated.

Revenue Bonds Series 2003

To provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge, or
equip the property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads, or

related infrastructure and to pay any costs related to the issuance of the

bonds.

Issued October 7, 2003.

$47,635,000; all authorized bonds issued.

Bond proceeds of $20,500,000 were transferred to Sam Houston State University,
$27,000,000 was transferred to Texas State University-San Marcos, and $135,000
was utilized for debt service.

The debt has been retained on the books of System Administration.

Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the
prospective university.

Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 2004

To provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge, or
equip property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads, or related

infrastructure; refund certain outstanding debt obligations of the Board; and to
pay cost of issuance related to the bonds.

Issued December 3, 2004.

$85,950,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

Bond proceeds were distributed to Lamar University ($19,500,000), Sul Ross
State University ($20,240,000), and to refund certain outstanding debt and pay
cost of issuance ($46,210,000).

Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the
universities.

Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

The Texas Legislature has appropriated General Revenue Funds as an alternative
funding source in the 2008-2009 biennium, for the Tuition Revenue financed
share, $31,865,395, of the issued bonds. Funding for the 2008-2009 biennium

meets the debt service for Tuition Revenue Bonds and full funding for future
biennia is anticipated.
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Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 2005

To provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge, or
equip property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads, or related

infrastructure; refund certain outstanding debt obligations of the Board; and to
pay cost of issuance related to the bonds.

Issued September 1, 2005.

$43,250,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

Bond proceeds were distributed to Sam Houston State University ($15,000,000)
and used to refund of certain outstanding debt ($30,079,652) and to pay costs of
issuance ($563,938).

Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the
Universities.

Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

The Texas Legislature has appropriated General Revenue Funds as an alternative
funding source in the 2008-2009 biennium, for the Tuition Revenue financed
share, $13,565,244, of the issued bonds. Funding for the 2008-2009 biennium
meets the debt service for Tuition Revenue Bonds and full funding for future
biennia is anticipated.

Revenue Financing Revenue Bonds, Series 2006

To provide funds to purchase certain student housing and educational facilities
located at Texas State University-San Marcos, Lamar University, and Angelo
State University and financed by a Chapter 53, Texas Education Code non-profit
corporation for the benefit of Texas State University System Foundation, Inc. and
related entities and to pay cost of issuance related to the bonds.

Issued June 8, 2006.

$140,260,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

Debt refunded: Bobcat Village Texas State University-San Marcos - $39,075,000;
San Marcos Hall Texas State University-San Marcos - $39,690,000;

Cardinal Village Lamar University - $44,270,000; and

Texan Hall Angelo State University - $17,225,000.

Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the
prospective universities.

Source of revenue for debt service — Revenue Financing System.

Revenue Financing Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 A

To provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge, or
equip property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads, or related

infrastructure and to pay any costs related to the issuance of the bonds.

Issued September 1, 2006.

$23,475,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.
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- Bond proceeds were distributed to Lamar University ($16,700,000) and to Texas
State University-San Marcos ($6,300,000).

- Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the
prospective universities.

- Source of revenue for debt service — Revenue Financing System.

Revenue Financing Revenue Bonds, Series 2008

- To provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge, or
equip property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads, or related
infrastructure and to pay any costs related to the issuance of the bonds.

- Issued August 19, 2008.

- $207,395,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

- Debt refunded: Series 1998A - $5,270,000; Series 1998B - $13,270,000

- Source of revenue for debt service — Revenue Financing System.

In addition to the outstanding bonds secured by the Texas State University System Revenue

Financing System the following Texas State University-San Marcos bonds were outstanding at
August 31, 2008:

Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series 1986

® To acquire an apartment complex known as Comanche Hills

o Issued April 1, 1986

® $3,500,000; all authorized bonds have been issued

¢ Interest Rates-3.0%

e Maturity Date - 2016

e Revenue Bond

® Source of revenue for debt service — Auxiliary Enterprises net operating revenues

Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 1996

¢ To improve and enlarge the utility system of the University, and to pay for issuance of bonds
¢ Issued February 15, 1996

® $4,415,000; all authorized bonds have been issued

o Interest Rates-3.6%-5.45%

e Maturity Date - 2011

e Revenue Bond

¢ Source of revenue for debt service — Utility System net operating revenues
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DEFEASED BONDS

The following bonds are fully defeased at August 31, 2008:

LAMAR UNIVERSITY

Combined Fee Revenue, Series 1979
- Year defeased - 1990.

LAMAR UNIVERSITY, LAMAR INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, LAMAR STATE
COLLEGE-ORANGE, AND LAMAR STATE COLLEGE-PORT ARTHUR

Combined Fee/Revenue System Refunding, Series 1990-A

Combined Fee/Revenue System Refunding, Series 1990-B

- Outstanding par value defeased $15,850,000 (1990-A) and $1,950,000 (1990-B).
- Year defeased - 1998.

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY-SAN MARCOS

Student Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series 1970
- Year defeased - 1987

University Housing System Bonds, Series 1993

- To acquire, purchase, renovate, construct, improve, enlarge, and equip housing
facilities and replacement of University bookstore.

- Issued May 1, 1995.

- $4,255,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

- Source of revenue for debt service - Auxiliary Enterprise Funds net operating
revenues.

- Outstanding par value defeased $3,275,000.

- Year defeased - 2002.

- Economic gain on defeasement - Present Value Savings $124,773.

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
The following bonds are partially defeased at August 31, 2008:

Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A

- To acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge or equip the
property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads or related infrastructures for the
members of the Revenue Financing System and to pay costs of
issuance related to the bonds.
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- Issued September 16, 1998.

- $94,540,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

- Bond proceeds were distributed to the TSUS components.

- Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the
respective universities.

- Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

- The Texas Legislature has continually appropriated General Revenue Funds as an
alternative funding source through the 2006-2007 biennium, for the Tuition
Revenue financed share, $80,950,000, of the issued bonds. Funding for the 2008-
2009 biennium meets the debt service for Tuition Revenue Bonds.

- Bonds partially defeased through the issuance of Revenue and Refunding Bonds
Series 2004 and Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 included Tuition
Revenue Bonds of $31,728,606 and $12,177,362 for 2004 and 2005 respectively.

- Certain outstanding maturities with par values totaling $38,080,000 were defeased
in 2004 and $13,475,000 in 2005.

- Year defeased - 2004

- Economic gain on defeasement — Present Value Savings $833,431.28 in 2004 and
$334,976.98 in 2005.

- Certain outstanding maturities with par values totaling $5,270,000 were defeased
in 2008.

- Economic gain on defeasement — Net Present Value Savings $306,347.94.

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998B

- To provide funds to refund certain obligations of the Board and to pay cost of
issuance related to the bonds.

- Issued September 16, 1998

- $53,505,000; all authorized bonds have been issued.

- Source of Revenue for debt service — Revenue Financing System.

- Bonds partially defeased through the issuance of Revenue and Refunding Bonds,
Series 2005.

- Certain outstanding maturities with par values totaling $2,700,000 including
$1,387.882 of Tuition Revenue Bonds were defeased.

- Year Defeased - 2005.

- Economic gain on defeasement —Present Value Savings $132,071.29.

- Certain outstanding maturities with par values totaling $13,270,000 were defeased
in 2008.

- Economic gain on defeasement — Net Present Value Savings $538,975.23.
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Revenue Bonds Series 2000

To provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge, or
equip the property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads, or related infrastructure
and to pay any costs related to the issuance of the bonds.

Issued September 26, 2000.

$26,000,000; all authorized bonds were issued.

Bond proceeds of $10,000,000 and $16,000,000 were distributed to Sam
Houston State University and Texas State University-San Marcos, respectively.
The debt has been retained on the books of System Administration.

Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the respective
universities.

Source of revenue for debt service - Revenue Financing System.

Bonds partially defeased through the issuance of Revenue and Refunding Bonds
Series 2004 and Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2005.

Certain outstanding maturities with par values totaling $7,550,000 were defeased.
Year defeased - 2004

Certain outstanding maturities with par values totaling $8,920,000 were defeased.
Year defeased - 2005

Economic gain on defeasement — Present Value Savings $164,359.13.

Revenue Bonds, Series 2001

To provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge, or
equip the property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads, or related insfrastructure
and to pay any costs related to the issuance of bonds.

Issued June 21, 2001

$12,400,000; all authorized bonds were issued.

Bonds proceeds were distributed to Texas State University-San Marcos.

The debt has been retained on the books of the System Administration.

Debt service payments will be made from mandatory transfers from the
university.

Source of revenue for debt service- Revenue Financing System.

Bonds partially defeased through the issuance of Revenue and Refunding Bonds,
Series 2005.

Certain outstanding maturities with par value totaling $3,320,000

Year defeased - 2005

Economic gain on defeasement — Present Value Savings $459,764.88.

NOTE 14: Subsequent Events

Hurricane Ike made landfall in Southeast Texas September 13, 2008. Damage resulting from the
storm was sustained by Lamar University, Lamar Institute of Technology, Lamar State College —
Orange, and Lamar State College — Port Arthur. The heaviest damage, primarily from flooding,
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occurred at Lamar State College — Orange. The cost of repairs, equipment replacement, and
other damages has not been fully determined but is estimated to exceed ten million dollars. The
2008 Fall Semester effects from the storm on student enrollment at these institutions do not
appear to be material. Campus assets and losses from business interruptions are insured under
the State Office of Risk Management’s property and casualty program. On September 29, 2008
the insurer, American International Group, advanced the Texas State University System $10
million toward the cost of repairs and replacements. Invoices for repair and replacement costs
will be reviewed and approved by the audit staff of Lamar University prior to payment by each
institution. Institutions will submit approved invoices to the System office for application of
insurance policy deductibles prior to reimbursement. Financial recoveries from the insurance
policy and the Federal Emergency Management Agency are anticipated to compensate the
affected institutions for the majority of financial losses from Hurricane Ike. The effect on
student enrollment at member institutions beyond the 2008 Fall Semester cannot be determined
at this time.

| NOTE 15: Related Parties

The Texas State University System has no related parties.

| NOTE 16: Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

The Texas University System has no material issues.

[ NOTE 17: The Financial Reporting Entity and Joint Venture

Component Units (CUs) are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the
primary government are financially accountable. In addition, CUs can be other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government is such that
exclusion would create misleading or incomplete financial statements. The System has
determined that it does not have legally separate organizations that should be considered
Component Units.

The following foundations and organizations, while not components units, are disclosed due to
their significant relationship with the System and its components.

LAMAR UNIVERSITY

Lamar University Foundation
The Lamar University Foundation is a nonprofit organization with the sole purpose of
supporting educational activities of Lamar University. The Foundation solicits
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donations and acts as coordinator of gifts made by other parties. The Foundation
remitted restricted gifts of $1,077,517.55 to the University during the year ended

August 31, 2008. During the fiscal year the University furnished certain services,

such as office space and utilities, to the Foundation, for which the Foundation was
billed at cost, $126,837.72. Accounts receivables of $502,115.89 are due from the
Foundation at August 31, 2008.

LAMAR INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

Lamar Institute of Technology Foundation
The Lamar Institute of Technology Foundation is a non-profit organization, which

was established for the purpose of cooperating with and working on behalf of the
Institute. Neither the transactions of this organization or its fund balances are
reflected in the financial statements during the year ended August 31, 2008.

The Lamar Institute of Technology Foundation gave $30,775.00 in scholarship
money directly to Lamar Institute of Technology students during the year ended
August 31, 2008.

LAMAR STATE COLLEGE - ORANGE

Lamar State College — Orange Foundation, Inc. is a non-profit organization, which
was established in December 1983, to support the development and promotion of
Lamar State College — Orange, its students, faculty, staff, and physical facilities.
Neither the balance nor the transactions of this organization's fund are reflected in the
financial statements during the year ended August 31, 2008. Lamar State College -
Orange received no funds from the Lamar State College — Orange Foundation during
the year ended August 31, 2008.

LAMAR STATE COLLEGE - PORT ARTHUR

Port Arthur Higher Education Foundation

The Port Arthur Higher Education Foundation is a non-profit organization, which
was established for the purpose of cooperating with and working on behalf of the
College. Neither the transactions of this organization or its fund balances are
reflected in the financial statements during the year ended August 31, 2008. The Port
Arthur Higher Education Foundation gave $175,934.00 in scholarship money directly
to Lamar State College-Port Arthur students during the year ended August 31, 2008.
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Lamar-Port Arthur Alumni Association

The Lamar-Port Arthur Alumni Association is a non-profit organization, which was
established for the purpose of cooperating with and working on behalf of the College.

Neither the transactions of this organization or its fund balances are reflected in the
financial statements during the year ended August 31, 2008.

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY

Sam Houston Foundation

The Sam Houston Foundation is a separate nonprofit organization which was
established for the purpose of cooperating with and working on behalf of the
University. Neither the balance nor the transactions of this organization's fund are
reflected in the financial statements during the year ended August 31, 2008. Gifts to
the University from the Sam Houston Foundation for fiscal year 2008 totaled $25,000
to Endowment Funds.

SHSU Lettermen's Association

The SHSU Lettermen’s Association was created in October 1974 for the stated
purpose of providing a means for the former students of Sam Houston State
University who won varsity letters in any of the sports recognized by the Conference
to gather from time to time for certain fraternal beneficiary society purposes and to
encourage support of the athletic staff and athletic programs of Sam Houston State
University through the efforts of its members, including donations to Sam Houston
State University for use by such educational institution.

The Lettermen’s Association’s funds are carried on the University’s books, and
comprise $20,975.31 of Total Deposits Held in Custody for Others - Agency Funds,
at August 31, 2008. Sam Houston State University has performed stewardship
functions in support of this account, including the receipt of deposits and payment of
expenditures. A gift was made to the University from the Lettermen’s Association
for fiscal year 2008 of $10,000 to Restricted Funds and $1,000 to Endowment Funds.

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY-SAN MARCOS

Texas State University-San Marcos Development Foundation

The Texas State University-San Marcos_Development Foundation was formed for
exclusively charitable, educational and scientific purposes and to assist in the
development of Texas State University-San Marcos. In total the Development
Foundation Board reported payments of $618,024.61 for University support and
$415.381.36 for student scholarships from Development Foundation funds during the
fiscal year ended August 31, 2008. Donations to the Development Foundation are
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restricted gifts of $1,556,716.71 temporarily restricted gifts of $687,710.27 and
unrestricted gifts of $2,121.34.

Texas State University-San Marcos Support Foundation

The Texas State University-San Marcos Support Foundation was formed exclusively
for charitable, educational and scientific purposes to assist in the development of the
University. During fiscal year 2008, the Support Foundation expended $11,221.60 in
support of the University, including payment for University-provided services.

The McCoy College of Business Administration Development Foundation

The McCoy Foundation, founded in 2004, is a 501c.3. organization dedicated
exclusively to the support of Texas State University-San Marcos College of Business
Administration. The McCoy Foundation administers its investments and transfers
designated funds to the McCoy College of Business Administration annually. During
fiscal year 2008, the McCoy Foundation approved distribution of $813,149, and
transferred $483,000, to the University to support activities for the following
endowments: ten chairs or professorships, undergraduate scholarships, graduate
fellowships, faculty development, and student development. The approximate
FY2008 net accrued assets were $26 million with net accrued liabilities of $16,000.
The Foundation pays its own expenses which in FY2008 were approximately 0.3% of
assets for administration, and 0.9% for investment management fees.

Texas State Alumni Association

The efforts and funds of the Texas State Alumni Association are dedicated to Texas
State University-San Marcos for student scholarships, campus support, and alumni
outreach activities. The Alumni Association raised $416,150 in operating income.
The accounts of the Alumni Association are carried on the University’s books and
comprise $134,115 of Total Deposits Held in Custody for Others — Agency Funds at
August 31, 2008. The Development Foundation holds $712,773 in accounts for the
Alumni Association.

Friends of Fine Arts

The Friends of Fine Arts and Communication, in its 27" year of service to the
College of Fine Arts, supports students and the performing and visual arts at Texas
State University-San Marcos. Membership and corporate sponsorship supports the
academic areas of art and design, theatre and dance, music, communication, mass
communication and journalism through scholarship and teaching awards.

Bobcat Athletic Foundation

The stated purpose of the Bobcat Athletic Foundation is to assist in the development
and implementation of a strategic plan for athletics development including major
gifts, leadership gifts, and endowments for Texas State University-San Marcos in
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compliance with rules and regulations set forth by the National Collegiate Athletic
Association and the Board of Regents of the Texas State University System.

Texas State Parents Association

The Texas State Parents Association was founded in 1976 with the primary goal of
enhancing student success by encouraging the participation of parents and students in
programs at Texas State. Funds raised from membership and donations have assisted
student learning, career development, and many critical areas of the educational
process.

I NOTE 18: Restatement of Fund Balances and Net Assets

Adjustments to the beginning net fixed asset values of other system components were made
effective for the year ended August 31, 2007.

The beginning net asset balance is restated to reflect the adjustments to the accounts as follows:

Net Assets- per AFR, 8/31/2007 3 987,687,218.15
Adjustment to fixed assets (22,100.08)
Restated Net Assets- per AFR, 8/31/2007 3 987,665,118.07

NOTE 19: Employees Retirement Plans

The State has established an optional retirement program for institutions of higher education.
Participation in ORP is in lieu of participation in the Teacher Retirement System and is available
to certain eligible employees. The contributions made by plan members and employers for the
fiscal year ended August 31, 2008 are:

YEAR ENDING AUGUST 31, 2008 AMOUNT
Member Contributions $ 9,681,242.00
Employer Contributions 11,082,678.00
Total $ 20,763,920.00

NOTE 20: Deferred Compensation

The Employee’s Retirement System will report the plan, balances and liabilities for the state.
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I NOTE 21: Donor-Restricted Endowments

DONOR RESTRICTED AMOUNT OF NET
ENDOWMENT APPRECIATION  REPORTED IN NET ASSETS
Endowments - True Endowments $ 2,683,145.98 Restricted for Expendable
Endowments - True Endowments 4,017,113.88 Restricted for Nonexpendable
Endowments - Term Endowments - Restricted for Expendable
TOTAL h) 6,700,259.86

| NOTE 22: Management Discussion and Analysis

Note is not applicable for Texas State University System.

| NOTE 23: Postemployment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 7

The disclosure of information on post employment benefits will be provided by the Texas
Retirement Systems.

NOTE 24: Special or Extraordinary Items

The Texas State University System had no special or extraordinary items to report for the fiscal
year ended August 31, 2008.

NOTE 25: Disaggregation of Receivable and Payable Balances

The following accounts are disaggregated as follows:

FEDERAL RECEIVABLE Amount

Education $ 8,671,317.45
Instruction 1,347,897.71
Research 3,772,073.23
Public Service 1,295,824.58
Scholarships 14,599,821.31
TOTAL 3 29,686,934 28
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UNAUDITED

Note 25 Continued

OTHER RECEIVABLES - CURRENT

Vendor Payments $ 160,524.13
Auxiliary Enterpise 922.,000.00
Pledges Receivable 200.370.00
Endowment and Similar Funds 27,500.00
Notes Receivable - Student Loans 156.909.08
TOTAL $ 1,467.303.21

NONCURRENT RESTRICTED RECEIVABLES

Texas Public Education Grant 3 4,219,248.50
Pledges Receivable 635,954.33
TOTAL $ 4,855,202.83

OTHER PAYABLES - CURRENT

Accrued Interest Payable on Bonds $ 9,620,957.46
Other Payables 543,101.69
TOTAL 3 10,164,059.15

Texas State University System
Combined Annual Financial Report 2008

NOTE 26: Termination Benefits

During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008, Texas State University System did not provide

termination benefits.
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Combined Report
UNAUDITED

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
SCHEDULE 2C
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
For the Year Ended August 31, 2008

Business Type Activity

Description Year Principal Interest
Student Housing System Revenue Bonds,
Southwest Texas State University
Series 1986 2009 145,000.00 36,675.00
2010 150,000.00 32,250.00
2011 155,000.00 27,675.00
2012 160,000.00 22,950.00
2013 165,000.00 18,075.00
2014-2016 520,000.00 23,850.00
$ 1,295,000.00 161,475.00
Utility System Revenue Bonds
Southwest Texas State University
Series 1996 2009 370,000.00 60,012.50
2010 390,000.00 41,512.50
2011 410,000.00 21,525.00
$ 1,170,000.00 123,050.00
Revenue Financing Systern Bonds
Texas State University System
Series 1998A 2009 £ 0.00 120,862.48
2010 0.00 120,862.48
2011 0.00 120,862.48
2012 0,00 120,862.48
2013 0.00 120,862.48
2014-2018 2,415,000.00 454,756.20
$2,415,000.00 1,059,068.60
Series 1998B 2009 3 790,000.00 268,031.24
2010 830,000.00 232,481.26
2011 870,000.00 194,093.74
2012 915,000.00 153,856.26
2013 1,095,000.00 109,250.00
2014 1,090,000.00 54,500.00
$ 5,590,000.00 1,012.212.50
Taxable Series 1998 2009 1,810,000.00 240,376.01
2010 1,925,000.00 124,354.98
$ 3,735,000.00 364,730.99
Series 2000 2009 1,155,000.00 126,393.76
2010 1,225,000.00 64,312.50
§  2.380,000.00 160,706.26
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Combined Report

UNAUDITED

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

SCHEDULE 2C

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
For the Year Ended August 31, 2008

Series 2001

Senes 2002

Series 2002 - Premium Amortization

Series 2002 - Total

Taxable Series 2002A

Taxable Series 2002A - Discount Amortization

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2021

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2022

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2022

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2022

2009
2010
2011

2011

$ 525,000.00 294,937.50
550,000.00 271,312.50
575,000.00 242,437.50

0.00 212,250.00
0.00 212,250.00
1,570.000.00 1,023,000.00
2,675,000.00 272,250.00

T 5.805,000.00 3.578,437.50

$  6,010,000.00 5,574,862.54
6,310,000.00 5,274,362.52
6,630,000,00 4,958,862.42
6,860,000.00 4,726 812.52
7,215,000.00 4,383,812.44
40,705,000.00 15,899,587.56
39,235,000.00 4.841,499.92

3§ 112.965,000.00 35 659,799,932
762,424.58 (762,424.58)
672,417.65 (672,417.65)
586,604.80 (586,604.80)
599,409.85 (599,409.85)
515,570.02 (515,570.02)
1,327,150.31 (1,327,150.31)
158,540.52 (158,540.52)

§ 462211773 @632, 117.73)
6,772,424.58 4,812,437.96
6,982 417.65 4,601,944.87
7,216,604.80 4,372,257.62
7,459,409.85 4,127 402.67
7,730,570.02 3,868,242.42
42,032,150.31 14,572,437.25
39,393,540.52 4,682,959.40

$ 117.587.117.73 31.037.682.19

S 1,850,000.00 244,562.50
1,950,000.00 170,562.50
2,060,000.00 90,125.00

$~3.860,000.00 505.350.00
(2,383.18) 2.383.18
(2,486.36) 2,486.36
(908.53) 908.53

3 G.778.07) 377807
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Combined Report
UNAUDITED

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

Taxable Series 2002A - Total

Series 2003

Series 2004

Series 2004 - Premium Amortization

Series 2004 - Total

SCHEDULE 2C

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
For the Year Ended August 31, 2008

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2023

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
20142018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2013-2017
2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2034

1,847,616.82 246,945.68
1,947,513.64 173,048.86
2,059,091.47 91,033.53
$  5854221.93 511,028.07

$ 1,945,000.00

$ 1,735,936.26

2,025,000,00 1,665,430.00
2,105,000.00 1,584,430.02
2,190,000.00 1,500,230.02
2,280,000.00 1,412,630.04
13,005,000.00 5,454,368 82
16,170,000.00 2,269,179.89
§39,770,00000 §15,622,305.05
5,915,000.00 4,151,817.49
6,215,000.00 3,856,067.52
6,525,000.00 3,545,317.54
8.215,000.00 3,219,067.52
8,620,000.00 2,808,317.48
22,700,000.00 8,671,952.52
9,480,000.00 5,471,250.00
8,865,000.00 2,929,250.00
5,805,000.00 1,233,750.00
1,340,000.00 67,000.00
§3.680.000.00 35.553,790.07
770,651.60 (770,651.60)
663,698.47 (663,698.47)
564,491.89 (564,491.89)
471,649.15 (471,649.15)
359,366.66 (359.366.66)
612,734.06 (612,734.06)
206,394.89 (206,394.89)
61,273.69 (61,273.69)
19,450.62 (19,450.62)
1,117.54 (1,117.54)

$  3,730,82857

$  (3,730,828.57)

6.685,631.60
6,878,698.47
7.089,491.89
8.686,649.15
8,979,366.66
23,312,734.06
9,686,394.89
8,926,273.69
5.824,450.62
1,341,117.54

3,381,165.89
3,192,369.05
2,980,825.65
2,747,418.37
2,448,950.82
8,059,218.46
5,64,855.11
2,867,976.31
1,214,299 38

65,882.46

$  87,410,828.57

$32222961.50
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Series 2005

Series 2006

Series 2006A

Series 2008

Combined Report
UNAUDITED

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

SCHEDULE 2C

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
For the Year Ended August 31, 2008

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2023
20242026

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2023
2024-2026

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2023
2024-2028

$ 970,000.00
1,025,000.00
2,380,000.00
1,760,000.00
1,365,000.00

22,830,000.00
8,305,000.00
3,155,000.00

§ 2,021,325.00
1,987,375.02
1,948,937.54
1.829,937.52
1,750,737.52
6,976,937 54
1,620,568.78

288,225.00

3 41,790,000.00

§ 18,424,043.92

$  2,810,000.00
3,065,000.00
3,295,000.00
3,485,000.00
3,660,600.00
21,265,000.00
27,185,000.00
34,670,000.00
32,865,000.00
2,440,000.00

6,668.225.00
6,548,800.00
6,418,537.50
6,278,500.00
6,104,250.00
27,583,500.00
21,703,000.00
14,194,500.00
4,872,750.00
122,000.00

$ 134,740,000.00

$100,454,062.50

$ 825,000.00 1,061,037.50
865,000.00 1,019,787.50
910,000.00 976,537.50
950,000.00 940,137.50
985,000.00 902,137.50
5,690,000.00 3,754,425.00
7,265.000.00 2,175,262.50
5,190,000.00 473,850.00

§ 2268000000 $  11.303.175.00
12,215,000.00 5,654,285.13
7.580,000.00 9,392,674.96
7,970,000.00 9,013,674.98
8,380,000.00 8,615,174.98
8,450,000.00 8,196,174.98
45,540,000.00 35,299,699.98
47.830,000.00 23,704,137.50
61,660,000.00 9,869,512.50

§ 199,625,000.00

$ 10974533501
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UNAUDITED

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
SCHEDULE 2E
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF DEFEASED BONDS OUTSTANDING
For the Year Ended August 31, 2008

Year Par Value
Description of Issues Refunded Outstanding
Revenue Bonds
Combined Fee Revenue Bonds
Lamar University - Beaumont
Series 1979 1990 775,000.00
Refunding, Series 1997 1998 1,913,979.67
Lamar University Institute of Technology
Refunding, Series 1997 1998 260,381.24
Lamar University - Orange
Refunding, Series 1997 1998 185,564.10
Lamar University - Port Arthur
Refunding, Series 1997 1998 255,074.99
Total Combined Fee Revenue Bonds 3,390,000.00
Revenue Bonds
Student Housing System Revenue Bonds
Southwest Texas State University
Series 1970 1987 395,000.00
Total Student Housing System Revenue Bonds 395,000.00
Tuition Revenue Bonds
Texas State University System
Series 1998A 2005 0.00
Series 2000 2005 7,550,000.00
Series 1998A 2006 0.00
Series 1998B 2006 0.00
Series 2000 2006 8,920,000.00
Series 2001 2006 3,320,000.00
Total Tuition Revenue Bonds 19,790,000.00
Revenue Financing System Revenue Bonds
Series 1998A 2008 5,270,000.00
Series 1998B 2008 13,270,000.00
Total Revenue Financing System Revenue Bonds 18,540,000.00

Total Defeased Bonds

42,115,000.00
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UNAUDITED

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
Consolidated Schedule 3
Combined Reconciliation of Cash in State Treasury

August 31, 2008
Cash in State Treasury Unrestricted Restricted Current Year Total

Agency Fund
System Office 0283 $ 149.271.84 $ 149,271.84
Lamar University Beaumont 0256 2,015,021.07 2,015.021.07
Lamar [nstitute of Technology 0287 2,000,537.35 2,000,537.35
Lamar State College Orange 0285 3,621,761.81 3,621,761.81
Lamar State College Port Arthur 0286 215,191.84 215,191.84
Sam Houston University 0239 18,413,851.51 18,413.851.51
Sam Houston University 0581 1,503,278.34 1.503,278.34
Sam Houston University 5083 2,033,018.60 2,033,018.60
Texas State University San Marcos 0260 17,624,123.20 17,624,123.20
Sul Ross State University 0262 2,209,213.64 2,209,213.64

$ 49,785269.20 $ 49,785,269.20
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MASTER RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE
TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM REVENUE FINANCING SYSTEM AS
AMENDED BY THE RESOLUTION AMENDING THE MASTER RESOLUTION
ESTABLISHING THE TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM REVENUE
FINANCING SYSTEM

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 95 of the Code, the Board governs the
affairs and administers the operations of the Texas State University System as a “University
System”, as said term is defined in Section 61.003 of the Code; and

WHEREAS, the University System is presently composed of those institutions of higher
education set forth in the definition of University System in this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the terms used in this Resolution and not otherwise defined shall have the
meaning given in Exhibit A to this Resolution attached hereto and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Board heretofore authorized, issued, and delivered, or assumed, various
series of outstanding bonds on behalf of the institutions in the University System; and

WHEREAS, in order to reduce costs, increase borrowing capacity, provide additional
security to the credit markets, and provide the Board with greater financial flexibility, the Board
deems it necessary and desirable to establish a revenue financing program, the Financing
System, for revenue supported indebtedness to provide funds to acquire, purchase, construct,
improve, renovate, enlarge or equip property, buildings, structures, facilities, roads, or related
infrastructure for the Members of the Financing System; and

WHEREAS, the Board determines to make all of the institutions presently a part of the
University System Members of the Financing System.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF REGENTS, TEXAS
STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM THAT:

Section 1. ESTABLISHMENT OF FINANCING SYSTEM AND ISSUANCE OF
PARITY DEBT. There is hereby established the Texas State University System Revenue
Financing System for the purpose of providing a financing structure for revenue supported
indebtedness of components of the Texas State University System included as Members of the
Financing System. This Resolution is intended to establish a master plan under which revenue
supported indebtedness of the Financing System can be incurred. Each Supplement shall provide
for the authorization, issuance, sale, delivery, form, characteristics, provisions of payment and
redemption, and security of each issue or series of Parity Debt and any other matters related to
Parity Debt not inconsistent with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas or the
provisions of this Resolution.

Section 2. SECURITY AND PLEDGE; (a) Pledge. Subject to the provisions of the
resolutions authorizing Prior Encumbered Obligations, Parity Debt shall be secured by and
payable from a lien on the Pledged Revenues, and the Board hereby assigns and pledges the
Pledged Revenues to the payment of the principal of and interest on Parity Debt, and the Pledged
Revenues are further pledged to the establishment and maintenance of any funds which may be
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provided to secure the repayment of Parity Debt in accordance with this Resolution and any
Supplement. The Board may additionally secure Parity Debt with one or more Credit
Agreements.

(b) Additional Members. As provided in Section 7 of this Resolution, institutions
which are not now Members of the Financing System may hereafter become Members and such
institutions may, at such time, have outstanding obligations secured by Prior Encumbered
Revenues and that, therefore, the lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues established
pursuant to this Resolution and effective when such institutions become Members of the
Financing System will be subject and subordinate only to such institutions’ outstanding Prior
Encumbered Obligations.

(c) Restriction on Issuance of Additional Debt on a Parity with Prior Encumbered
Obligations. Except as provided in Section 4(g) and while any Parity Debt is outstanding, no
additional bonds or obligations may be issued or incurred by the Board on a parity with any Prior
Encumbered Obligations.

Section 3. RATE COVENANT: PLEDGED REVENUES, (a) Rate Covenant. In each
Fiscal Year, the Board shall establish, charge, and use its reasonable efforts to collect at each
Member the Pledged Revenues which, if collected, would be sufficient to meet all financial
obligations of the Board relating to the Financing System including all deposits or payments due
on or with respect to Outstanding Parity Debt for such Fiscal Year.

(b) Pledged Revenues. Subject to the provisions of the resolutions authorizing Prior
Encumbered Obligations and to the other provisions of this Resolution and any Supplement, the
Board covenants and agrees at all times to fix, levy, charge, and collect at each Member the
Pledged Genera] Tuition and other Pledged Revenues from each student enrolled at each
Member, respectively, at each regular fall and spring semester and at each term of each summer
session, for the use and availability of such institution or branch thereof, respectively, in such
amounts, without any limitation whatsoever, as will be at least sufficient at all times, together
with other legally available funds, including other Pledged Revenues, to provide the money to
make or pay the principal of, interest on, and other payments or deposits with respect to the
Parity Debt then Outstanding when and as required. The Pledged General Tuition and the other
rentals, rates, fees, and charges included in Pledged Revenues shall be adjusted, if and when
permitted or required by this Resolution or any Supplement, to provide Pledged Revenues
sufficient to make when due all payments and deposits in connection with the Parity Debt then
Outstanding. The Board may fix, levy, charge, and collect the Pledged Revenues in any manner
it may determine within its discretion, and in different amounts from students enrolled in
different Members, respectively, and in addition it may totally suspend the collection of any item
included in Pledged Revenues from the students enrolled in any Member, so long as total
Pledged Revenues are sufficient, together with other legally available funds, to meet all financial
obligations of the Board relating to the Financing System including all payments and deposits in
connection with the Parity Debt then Outstanding. All changes in the Pledged General Tuition
shall be made by a resolution of the Board, but such procedure shall not constitute or be regarded
as an amendment of this Resolution or any Supplement, but merely the carrying out of the
provisions and requirements hereof.
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(c) Annual Obligation. If, in the judgment of the Board, any Member has been or will
be unable to satisfy its Annual Obligation, the Board shall fix, levy, charge, and collect rentals,
rates, fees, and charges for goods and services furnished by such Member and the Pledged
General Tuition, effective at the next succeeding regular semester or semesters or summer term
or terms, in amounts sufficient, without limit (subject to the provisions of (e) below), together
with other legally available funds, including other Pledged Revenues attributable to such
Member, to enable it to make its Annual Obligation payments.

(d) Anticipated Deficit. If the Board determines, for any reason whatsoever, (i) that
there are not anticipated to be sufficient legally available funds, including Pledged Revenues, to
meet all financial obligations of the Board relating to the Financing System, including the
deposits and payments due on or with respect to the Parity Debt Outstanding at that lime as the
same mature or come due, or (ii) that any Member will be unable to pay its Annual Direct
Obligation in full, then the Board shall fix, levy, charge, and collect the Pledged General Tuition
at each Member, effective at the next succeeding regular semester or semesters or summer term
or terms, in such amounts, without any limitation whatsoever (other than as provided in (e)
below), as will be at least sufficient to provide, together with other legally available funds,
including other Pledged Revenues, the money for making when due all financial obligations of
the Board relating to the Financing System including all payments and deposits due on or with
respect lo Outstanding Parity Debt when and as required by this Resolution or any Supplement.

(e Economic Effect of Adjustments. Any adjustments in the rate or manner of
charging for any rentals, rates, fees, tuition, or other charges included in Pledged Revenues,
including the Pledged General Tuition, at any of the Members pursuant to (c) or (d) above will
be based upon a certificate and recommendation of a System Representative, delivered to the
Board, as to the rates and anticipated collection of the Pledged Revenues at the various Members
(after taking into account the anticipated effect the proposed adjustments in such rentals, rates,
fees, tuition, or other charges would have on enrollment and the receipt of Pledged Revenues and
other funds at each Member) which will be anticipated to result in (i) Pledged Revenues
attributable to each Member being sufficient (to the extent possible) to satisfy the Annual
Obligation of such Member and (ii) Pledged Revenues being sufficient, together with other
legally available funds, to meet all financial obligations of the Board relating to the Financing
System including all deposits and payments due on or in connection with Outstanding Parity
Debt when and as required by this Resolution and any Supplement.

Section 4. GENERAL COVENANTS. The Board further represents, covenants and
agrees that while Parity Debt or interest thereon is Outstanding:

@) Payment of Parity Debt. On or before each payment date it shall make available to
the Paying Agent for such Parity Debt or to such other party as required by a Supplement, money
sufficient to pay the interest on, principal of, and premium, if any, on the Parity Debt as will
accrue or otherwise come due or mature, or be subject to mandatory redemption prior to
maturity, on such date and the fees and expenses related to the Parity Debt, including the fees
and expenses of the Paying Agent and any registrar, trustee, remarketing agent, tender agent or
credit provider.
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(b) Performance. It will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants,
undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Resolution and in each Supplement,
and in each and every Parity Debt or evidence thereof.

(©) Redemption. It will duly cause to be called for redemption prior to maturity, and
will cause to be redeemed prior to maturity, all Parity Debt which by its terms is mandatorily
required to be redeemed prior to maturity, when and as so required.

(d) Lawful Title. It lawfully owns, has title to, or is lawfully possessed of the lands,
buildings, and facilities now constituting the Texas State University System, and it will defend
said title and title to any lands, buildings, and facilities which may hereafter become part of the
Financing System, whether by the addition to the Financing System of a new institution or
institutions, or otherwise, for the benefit of the owners of Parity Debt against the claims and
demands of all persons whomsoever.

(e) Lawful Authority. It is lawfully qualified to pledge the Pledged Revenues herein
pledged in the manner prescribed herein, and has lawfully exercised such right.

()] Preservation of Lien. Subject to the conditions set forth in Sections 5,6, and 7 of
this Resolution, it will not do or suffer any act or thing whereby the Financing System might or
could be impaired, and that it will at all times maintain, preserve, and keep the real and tangible
property of the Financing System and every part thereof in good condition, repair, and working
order and operate, maintain, preserve, and keep the facilities, buildings, structures, and
equipment pertaining thereto in good condition, repair, and working order.

(9) No Additional Encumbrance. It shall not incur additional Debt secured by the
Pledged Revenues in any manner, except as permitted by this Resolution in connection with
Parity Debt, unless said Debt is made junior and subordinate in all respects to the liens, pledges,
covenants, and agreements of this Resolution and any Supplement. Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary contained herein, and in addition to the right hereunder to refund the Prior
Encumbered Obligations with Parity Debt, the Board reserves the right to issue bonds to refund
any Prior Encumbered Obligations and to secure the refunding bonds with the same source or
sources securing the Prior Encumbered Obligations being refunded. Upon the defeasance of the
refunded Prior Encumbered Obligations, the refunding bonds will be Prior Encumbered
Obligations (unless the refunding bonds are made Parity Debt in accordance with the terms of
this Resolution) under this Resolution and any Supplement for all purposes.

(h) Investments and Security. It will invest and secure money in all accounts and
funds established pursuant to this Resolution and any Supplement in the manner prescribed by
law for such funds and in accordance with written policies adopted by the Board.

() Records. It will keep proper books of record and account in which full, true, and
correct entries will be made of all dealings, activities, and transactions relating to the Texas State
University System. Each year while Parity Debt is Outstanding, the Board will cause to be
prepared from such books of record and account an annual financial report of the Texas State
University System and shall furnish such report to the principal municipal bond rating agencies
and any owner of Parity Debt who shall request same. In addition, the Board shall submit such
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financial report and other information required by law for examination in connection with
financial compliance and other audits required to be conducted by the office of the Auditor of the
State of Texas.

() Inspection of Books. It will permit any owner or owners of twenty-five per
centum (25%) or more of the then Outstanding Principal Amount, at all reasonable times to
inspect all records, accounts, and data of the Board relating to the Texas State University System,
except such records as federal or state law may denominate as privileged and exempt from
disclosure, including, but not by way of limitation, student educational records, personnel
records the disclosure of which would constitute, in the opinion of the administration of the
Texas State University System, a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy, or trade
secrets of third parties.

(K) Annual and Direct Obligations. In establishing the annual budget for each
Member, it shall provide for the satisfaction by each Member of its Annual Obligation. The
Direct Obligation shall represent the financial responsibility of each Member with respect to
Outstanding Parity Debt. Each Member’s Direct Obligation and Annual Obligation shall be
evidenced by a financing agreement between the Board and each Member.

M Determination of Outstanding Parity Debt. For all purposes of this Resolution, the
judgment of the Auditor of the Texas State University System shall be deemed final in the
determination of which obligations of the Board constitute Parity Debt.

Section 5. ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL DEBT.

@) Parity Debt. The Board reserves and shall have the right and power to issue or
incur Parity Debt for any purpose authorized by law pursuant to the provisions of this Resolution
and a Supplement to be hereafter authorized. The Board may incur, assume, guarantee, or
otherwise become liable in respect of any Parity Debt if the Board shall have determined, that it
will have sufficient funds to meet the financial obligations of the Texas State University System,
including sufficient Pledged Revenues to satisfy the Annual Debt Service Requirements of the
Financing System and to meet all financial obligations of the Board relating to the Financing
System.

In addition, the Board shall not issue or incur Parity Debt unless (i) the Board shall
determine that the Member or Members for whom the Parity Debt is being issued or incurred
possess the financial capacity to satisfy their respective Direct Obligations after taking into
account the then proposed additional Parity Debt, and (ii) a System Representative shall deliver
to the Board an Officer’s Certificate stating that, to the best of his or her knowledge, the Board is
in compliance with all covenants contained in this Resolution and any Supplement, and is not in
default in the performance and observance of any of the terms, provisions, and conditions hereof
or thereof.

(b) Parity Debt Issued for Equipment and Minor New Construction and Repair and
Rehabilitation Projects. Notwithstanding the provisions of (a) above, Parity Debt issued in the
form of Commercial Paper for equipment, minor new construction, and minor repair and
rehabilitation projects which are not required to be approved by the Texas Higher Education
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Coordinating Board may be issued if the System Representative, on behalf of the Board, delivers
a certificate to the Secretary of the Board to the effect that, after the issuance of the Commercial
Paper for such purpose, (i) the Board will have sufficient funds to meet the financial obligations
of the University System, including sufficient Pledged Revenues to satisfy the Annual Debt
Service Requirements of the Financing System and to meet all financial obligations of the Board
relating to the Financing System, (ii) the Member or Members for whom the Parity Debt is being
issued or incurred possess the financial capacity to satisfy their respective Direct Obligations
after taking into account the then proposed additional Parity Debt, and (iii) to the best of his or
her knowledge, the Board is in compliance with all covenants contained in this Resolution and
any Supplement, and is not in default in the performance and observance of any of the terms,
provisions, and conditions hereof or thereof.

(©) Non-Recourse Debt and Subordinated Debt. Non-Recourse Debt and
Subordinated Debt may be incurred by the Board without limitation.

Section 6. DISPOSITION OF ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO FINANCING SYSTEM
MEMBERS.

The Board may convey, sell, or otherwise dispose of any properties of the Board
attributable to a Member of the Financing System provided:

@ Ordinary Course. Such conveyance, sale, or disposition shall be in the ordinary
course of business of a Member of the Financing System which uses, operates, owns, or is
otherwise responsible for such properties; or

(b) Disposition Upon Board Determination. The Board shall determine that after the
conveyance, sale, or other disposition of such properties, the Board shall have sufficient funds
during each Fiscal Year during which Parity Debt is to be Outstanding to meet the financial
obligations of the Texas State University System, including sufficient Pledged Revenues to
satisfy the Annual Debt Service Requirements of the Financing System and to meet all financial
obligations of the Board relating to the Financing System and the Board shall have received an
Opinion of Counsel to the effect that the conveyance, sale, or other disposition of such properties
will not adversely affect the status, for Federal Income Tax purposes, of the treatment of interest
on then Outstanding Parity Debt issued to acquire, construct, or rehabilitate such properties.

Section 7. COMBINATION, DIVISION, RELEASE, AND ADMISSION OF
FINANCING SYSTEM MEMBERS, (a) Combination and Division. Notwithstanding anything
to the contrary contained herein, it is recognized that certain Members or institutions which may
be made Members of the Financing System may be combined or divided and that so long as such
combined or divided institutions continue to be governed by the Board such action shall not be in
violation of the provisions of this Resolution or require any amendments of the provisions
hereof.

(b) Release. Subject to the conditions set forth below, any Member or portion thereof
may be closed and abandoned by law or may be removed from the Financing System (thus
deleting the revenues, income, funds, and balances attributable to said Member or portion thereof
from Pledged Revenues) without violating the terms of this Resolution provided:
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1) the Board specifically finds that (based upon an Officers’ Certificate) that,
after the release of the Member or portion thereof, the Board will have sufficient funds
during each Fiscal Year in which Parity Debt shall thereafter be Outstanding to meet the
financial obligations of the Texas State University System, including sufficient Pledged
Revenues to satisfy the Annual Debt Service Requirements of the Financing System and
to meet all financial obligations of the Board relating to the Financing System; and

2 the Board shall have received an Opinion of Counsel which shall state that
such release will not affect the status for Federal Income Tax purposes of interest on any
Outstanding Parity Debt and that all conditions precedent provided in this Resolution or
any Supplement relating to such release have been complied with; and

3 (A) if the Member or portion thereof to be released from the Financing
System is to remain under the governance and control of the Board, the Board must either
(i) provide, from lawfully available funds, including Pledged Revenues attributable lo
said withdrawing Member, for the payment or discharge of said Member’s Direct
Obligation or (ii) pledge to the payment of Parity Debt, additional resources not then
pledged in an amount sufficient to satisfy such withdrawing Member’s Direct Obligation;

or
(B) if the Member or portion thereof to be released from the Financing

System is to no longer be under the governance and control of the Board, the Board must receive
a binding obligation of the new governing body of the withdrawing Member or the portion
thereof being withdrawn, obligating said governing body to make payments to the Board at the
times and in the amounts equal to said Member’s Annual Obligation and to pay or discharge said
Member’s Direct Obligation, or, in the case of a portion of a Member being withdrawn, the
proportion of the Member’s Annual Obligation and Direct Obligation, as the case may be,
attributable to the withdrawing portion of the Member.

(c) Admission of Members. If, after the date of the adoption of this Resolution, the
Board desires for a component of the Texas State University System to become a Member of the
Financing System, it may include said institution in the Financing System with the effect set
forth in this Resolution by the adoption of a Supplement to this Resolution.

Section 8. WAIVER OF CERTAIN COVENANTS. The Board may omit in any
particular instance to comply with any covenant or condition set forth in Sections 3 through 7
hereof if before or after the time for such compliance the Holders of the same percentage in
principal amount of all Parity Debt then Outstanding, the consent of which would be required to
amend the provisions hereof to permit such noncompliance, shall either waive such compliance
in such instance or generally waive compliance with such covenant or condition, but no such
waiver shall extend to or affect such covenant or condition except to the extent so expressly
waived and, until such waiver shall become effective, the obligations of the Board and the duties
of the Board in respect of any such covenant or condition shall remain m full force and effect.

Section 9. INDIVIDUALS NOT LIABLE. All covenants, stipulations, obligations, and
agreements of the Board contained in this Resolution and any Supplement shall be deemed to be
covenants, stipulations, obligations, and agreements of the Financing System and the Board to
the full extent authorized or permitted by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas. No
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covenant, stipulation, obligation, or agreement herein contained shall be deemed to be a
covenant, stipulation, obligation, or agreement of any member of the Board or agent or employee
of the Board in his or her individual capacity and neither the members of the Board nor any
officer or employee thereof shall be liable personally on Parity Debt when issued, or be subject
to any persona) liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.

Section 10. SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS; ABSOLUTE OBLIGATION TO PAY PARITY
DEBT. All Parity Debt and the interest thereon shall constitute special obligations of the Board
payable from the Pledged Revenues, and the owners thereof shall never have the right to demand
payment out of funds raised or to be raised by taxation, or from any source other than specified
in this Resolution or any Supplement. The obligation of the Board to pay or cause to be paid the
amounts payable under this Resolution and each Supplement out of the Pledged Revenues shall
be absolute, irrevocable, complete, and unconditional, and the amount, manner, and time of
payment of such amounts shall not be decreased, abated, rebated, setoff, reduced, abrogated,
waived, diminished, or otherwise modified in any manner or to any extent whatsoever, regardless
of any right of setoff, recoupment, or counterclaim that the Board might otherwise have against
any owner or any other party and regardless of any contingency, force majeure, event, or cause
whatsoever and notwithstanding any circumstance or occurrence that may arise or take place
before, during, or after the issuance of Parity Debt while any Parity Debt is Outstanding.

Section 11. REMEDIES. Any owner of Parity Debt in the event of default in connection
with any covenant contained herein or in any Supplement, or default in the payment of said
obligations, or of any interest due thereon, or other costs and expenses related thereto, may
require

the Board, its officials and employees, and any appropriate official of the State of Texas,
to carry out, respect, or enforce the covenants and obligations of this Resolution or any
Supplement, by all legal and equitable means, including specifically, but without limitation, the
use and filing of mandamus proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction against the
Board, its officials and employees, or any appropriate official of the State of Texas.

Section 12. DEFEASANCE OF BONDS, (a) Deemed Paid. Any Parity Debt and the
interest thereon shall be deemed to be Defeased Debt within the meaning of this Resolution,
except to the extent provided in subsection (c) of this Section, when the payment of all principal
and interest payable with respect to such Parity Debt to the due date or dates thereof (whether
such due date or dates be by reason of maturity, upon redemption, or otherwise) either (i) shall
have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof(including the giving
of any required notice of redemption or provision for the giving of same having been made) or
(i) shall have been provided for on or before such due date by irrevocably depositing with or
making available to the Paying Agent for such Parity Debt for such payment (1) lawful money of
the, United States of America sufficient to make such payment, (2) noncallable Government
Obligations which mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will
insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for such payment, or
(3) any combination of (1) and (2) above, and when proper arrangements have been made by the
Board with each such Paying Agent for the payment of its services until after all Defeased Debt
shall have become due and payable. At such time as Parity Debt shall be deemed to be Defeased
Debt hereunder, as aforesaid, such Parity Debt and the interest thereon shall no longer be secured
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by, payable from, or entitled to the benefits of, the Pledged Revenues, and such principal and
interest shall be payable solely from such money or Government Obligations, and shall not be
regarded as Outstanding for any purposes other than payment, transfer, and exchange.

(b) Investments. Any money so deposited with or made available to a Paying Agent
may at the written direction of the Board also be invested in Government Obligations maturing
in the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from such Government
Obligations received by the Paying Agent which is not required for the payment of the Parity
Debt and interest thereon, with respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be
turned over to the Board, or deposited as directed in writing by the Board.

(©) Continuing Duty of Paying Agent and Registrar. Until all Defeased Debt shall
have become due and payable, the Paying Agent and Registrar for such Defeased Debt shall
perform the services of Paying Agent and Registrar for such Defeased Debt the same as if they
had not been defeased, and the Board shall make proper arrangements to provide and pay for
such services.

Section 13. AMENDMENT OF RESOLUTION, (a) Amendment Without Consent. This
Resolution and the rights and obligations of the Board and of the owners of the Outstanding
Parity Debt may be modified or amended at any time without notice to or the consent of any
owner of the Outstanding Parity Debt, solely for any one or more of the following purposes:

() To add to the covenants and agreements of the Board contained in this
Resolution, other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed, or to surrender any
right or power reserved to or conferred upon the Board in this Resolution;

(i) To cure any ambiguity or inconsistency, or to cure or correct any defective
provisions contained in this Resolution, upon receipt by the Board of an approving
Opinion of Counsel, that the same is needed for such purpose, and will more clearly
express the intent of this Resolution;

(ili)  To supplement the security for the Outstanding Parity Debt;

(iv)  To make such other changes in the provisions hereof as the Board may
deem necessary or desirable and which shall not, in the judgment of the Board, materially
adversely afreet the interests of the owners of Outstanding Parity Debt; or

(v) To make any changes or amendments requested by any bond rating
agency then rating or requested to rate Parity Debt, as a condition to the issuance or
maintenance of a rating, which changes or amendments do not, in the judgment of the
Board, materially adversely affect the interests of the owners of the Outstanding Parity
Debt.

(b) Amendments With Consent. Subject to the other provisions of this Resolution, the
owners of QOutstanding Parity Debt aggregating 51 % in Outstanding Principal Amount shall
have the right from time to time to approve any amendment, other than amendments described in
subsection (a) of this Section, to this Resolution which may be deemed necessary or desirable by
the Board, provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall permit or be construed to
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permit, without the approval of the owners of all of the Outstanding Parity Debt, the amendment
of the terms and conditions in this Resolution so as to:

() Grant to the owners of any Outstanding Parity Debt a priority over the owners of
any other Outstanding Parity Debt;

(i) Materially adversely affect the rights of the owners of less than all Parity Debt
then Qutstanding; or

(iti)  Change the minimum percentage of the Outstanding Principal Amount necessary
for consent to such amendment.

(c) Notice. If at any time the Board shall desire to amend this Resolution pursuant to
Subsection (b) of this Section, the Board shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be
published in a financial newspaper or journal of general circulation in The City of New York,
New York, once during each calendar week for at least two successive calendar weeks. Such
notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that a copy
thereof is on file at the principal office of each Registrar for the Parity Debt for inspection by all
owners of Parity Debt. Such publication is not required, however, if the Board gives or causes to
be given such notice in writing, by certified mail, to each owner of Parity Debt.

(d) Receipt of Consents. Whenever at anytime not less than thirty days, and within
one year, from the date of the first publication of said notice or other service of written notice of
the proposed amendment the Board shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by all of
the owners or the owners of at least 51% in Outstanding Principal Amount, as appropriate, which
instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment described in said notice and
which specifically consent to and approve such amendment in substantially the form of the copy
thereof on file as aforesaid, the Board may adopt the amendatory resolution in substantially the
same form.

(e) Effect of Amendments. Upon the adoption by the Board of any resolution to
amend this Resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section, this Resolution shall be deemed
to be amended in accordance with the amendatory resolution, and the respective rights, duties,
and obligations of the Board and all the owners of then Outstanding Parity Debt and all future
Parity Debt shall thereafter be determined, exercised, and enforced under this Resolution, as
amended.

()] Consent Irrevocable. Any consent given by any owner of Parity Debt pursuant to
the provisions of this Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the
first publication or other service of the notice provided for in this Section, and shall be
conclusive and binding upon all future owners of the same Parity Debt during such period. Such
consent may be revoked at any time after six months from the date of the first publication of such
notice by the owner who gave such consent, or by a successor in title, by filing notice thereof
with the Registrar for such Parity Debt and the Board, but such revocation shall not be effective
if the owners of 51 % in Outstanding Principal Amount, prior to the attempted revocation,
consented to and approved the amendment.

75756396.1/08014000 10



(9) Ownership. For the purpose of this Section, the ownership and other matters
relating to all Parity Debt shall be determined as provided in each Supplement.

(h) Amendments of Supplements. Each Supplement shall contain provisions
governing the ability of the Board to amend such Supplement; provided, however, that no
amendment may be made to any Supplement for the purpose of granting to the owners of
Outstanding Parity Debt under such Supplement a priority over the owners of any other
Outstanding Parity Debt.

Section 14. REPEAL OF CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS. This Resolution shall
become effective immediately and all resolutions and all parts of any resolutions which are in
conflict or inconsistent with this Resolution are hereby repealed and shall be of no further force
or effect to the extern of such conflict or inconsistency.

Section 15. FURTHER PROCEDURES. Each System Representative and the other
officers, employees, and agents of the System, and each of them, shall be and they are hereby
expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from time to time and at any time to do and
perform all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, and deliver in the name and under
the corporate seal and on behalf of the Board all such instruments, whether or not herein
mentioned, as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the intent, the terms, and the
provisions of this Resolution.
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EXHIBIT “A
DEFINITIONS

As used in this Resolution the following terms and expressions shall have the meanings
set forth below, unless the text hereof specifically indicates otherwise:

“Agreement” means either (i) the agreement by and between the Board of Regents, Texas
Tech University System and the Board of Regents, Texas State University System as approved
by the Coordinating Board Order or (ii) to the extent subsequently permitted by the Coordinating
Board, another arrangement approved by the Board pursuant to which the Texas Tech University
System delivers a binding obligation in compliance with Section 7(b)(3)(B) of the Master
Resolution providing for the Texas Tech University System to make payments to the Board at
the times and in the amounts equal to ASU’s Annual Obligation and to pay or discharge ASU’s
Direct Obligation.

“Annual Debt Service Requirements” means, for any Fiscal Year, the principal of and
interest on all Parity Debt coming due at Maturity or Stated Maturity (or that could come due on
demand of the owner thereof other than by acceleration or other demand conditioned upon
default by the Board on such Debt, or be payable in respect of any required purchase of such
Debt by the Board) in such Fiscal Year, and, for such purposes, any one or more of the following
rules shall apply at the election of the Board:

1) Committed Take out. If the Board has entered into a Credit Agreement
constituting a binding commitment within normal commercial practice, from any bank,
savings and loan association, insurance company, or similar institution to discharge any
of its Funded Debt at its Stated Maturity(or, if due on demand, at any date on which
demand may be made) or to purchase any of its Funded Debt at any date on which such
Debt is subject to required purchase, all under arrangements whereby the Board’s
obligation to repay the amounts advanced for such discharge or purchase constitutes
Funded Debt, then the portion of the Funded Debt committed to be discharged or
purchased shall be excluded from such calculation and the principal of and interest on the
Funded Debt incurred for such discharging or purchase that would be due in the Fiscal
Year for which the calculation is being made, if incurred at the Stated Maturity or
purchase date of the Funded Debt to be discharged or purchased, shall be added;

2 Balloon Debt. If the principal (including the accretion of interest resulting
from original issue discount or compounding of interest) of any series or issue of Funded
Debt due (or payable in respect of any required purchase of such Funded Debt by the
Board) in any Fiscal Year either is equal to at least 25% of the total principal (including
the accretion of interest resulting from original issue discount or compounding of
interest) of such Funded Debt or exceeds by more than 50% the greatest amount of
principal of such series or issue of Funded Debt due in any preceding or succeeding
Fiscal Year (such principal due in such Fiscal Year for such series or issue of Funded
Debt being referred to herein as “Balloon Debt”), the amount of principal of such Balloon
Debt taken into account during any Fiscal Year shall be equal to the debt service
calculated using the original principal amount of such Balloon Debt amortized over the
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Term of Issue on a level debt service basis at an assumed interest rate equal to the rate
borne by such Balloon Debt on the date of calculation;

3 Consent Sinking Fund. In the case of Balloon Debt (as defined in clause
(2) above), if a System Representative shall deliver to the Board an Officer’s Certificate
providing for the retirement of (and the instrument creating such Balloon Debt shall
permit the retirement of), or for the accumulation of a sinking fund for (and the
instrument creating such Balloon Debt shall permit the accumulation of a sinking fund
for), such Balloon Debt according to a fixed schedule stated in such Officer’s Certificate
ending on or before the Fiscal Year in which such principal (and premium, if any) is due,
then the principal of (and, in the case of retirement, or to the extent provided for by the
sinking fund accumulation, the premium, if any, and interest and other debt service
charges on) such Balloon Debt shall be computed as if the same were due in accordance
with such schedule, provided that this clause (3) shall apply only to Balloon Debt for
which the installments previously scheduled have been paid or deposited to the sinking
fund established with respect to such Debt on or before the times required by such
schedule; and provided further that this clause (3) shall not apply where the Board has
elected to apply the rule set forth in clause (2) above;

4) Prepaid Debt. Principal of and interest on Parity Debt, or portions thereof,
shall not be included in the computation of the Annual Debt Service Requirements for
any Fiscal Year for which such principal or interest are payable from funds on deposit or
set aside in trust for the payment thereof at the time of such calculations (including
without limitation capitalized interest and accrued interest so deposited or set aside in
trust) with a financial institution acting as fiduciary with respect to the payment of such
Debt;

%) Variable Rate. As to any Parity Debt that bears interest at a variable
interest rate which cannot be ascertained at the time of calculation of the Annual Debt
Service Requirement then, at the option of the Board, either (1) an interest rate equal to
the average rate borne by such Parity Debt (or by comparable debt in the event that such
Parity Debt has not been outstanding during the preceding 24 months) for any 24 month
period ending within 30 days prior to the date of calculation, or (2) an interest rate equal
to the 30-year Tax-Exempt Revenue Bond Index (as most recently published in The Bond
Buyer), shall be presumed to apply for all future dates, unless such index is no longer
published in The Bond Buyer, in which case an index of tax-exempt revenue bonds with
maturities of at least 20 years which is published in a newspaper or journal with national
circulation may be used for this purpose;

(6) Guarantees. In the case of any guarantee, as described in clause (2) of the
definition of Debt, no obligation will be counted if the Board does not anticipate in its
annual budget that it will make any payments on the guarantee. If, however, the Board is
making payments on a guarantee or anticipates doing so in its annual budget, such
obligation shall be treated as Parity Debt and calculations of annual debt service
requirements with respect to such guarantee shall be made assuming that the Board will
make all additional payments due under the guaranteed obligation. If the entity whose
obligation is guaranteed cures all defaults and the Board no longer anticipates making
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payments under the guarantee, the guaranteed obligations shall not be included in the
calculation of Annual Debt Service Requirements; and

@) Commercial Paper. With respect to any Parity Debt issued in the form of
commercial paper with maturities not exceeding 270 days, the interest on such Parity
Debt shall be calculated in the manner provided in clause (5) of this definition and the
maturity schedule shall be calculated in the manner provided in clause (2) of this
definition.

“Annual Direct Obligation” means the amount budgeted each Fiscal Year by the Board
with respect to each Financing System Member to satisfy the Member’s proportion of debt
service (calculated based on the Member’s Direct Obligation) due by the Board in such Fiscal
Year on Outstanding Parity Debt.

“Annual Obligation” means, with respect to each Member and for each Fiscal Year, the
Member’s Annual Direct Obligation plus the amount budgeted by the Board for such Fiscal Year
to allow the Member to retire its obligation for infra-System advances made to it to satisfy part
or all of a previous Annual Direct Obligation payment.

“Board” and “Issuer” mean the Board of Regents of the Texas State University System or
any successor thereto.

“Code” means the Texas Education Code, as amended.

“Credit Agreement” means, collectively, a loan agreement, revolving credit agreement,
agreement establishing a line of credit, letter of credit, reimbursement agreement, insurance
contract, commitments to purchase Parity Debt, purchase or sale agreements, interest rate swap
agreements, or commitments or other contracts or agreements authorized, recognized and
approved by the Board as a Credit Agreement in connection with the authorization, issuance,
security, or payment of Parity Debt and on a parity therewith.

“Debt” of the Board payable from Pledged Revenues means all:

1) indebtedness incurred or assumed by the Board for borrowed money
(including indebtedness arising under Credit Agreements) and all other financing
obligations of the Board that, in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, are shown on the liability side of a balance sheet;

(@) all other indebtedness (other than indebtedness otherwise treated as Debt
hereunder) for borrowed money or for the acquisition, construction or improvement of
property or capitalized lease obligations that is guaranteed, directly or indirectly, in any
manner by the Board, or that is in effect guaranteed, directly or indirectly, by the Board
through an agreement, contingent or otherwise, to purchase any such indebtedness or to
advance or supply funds for the payment or purchase of any such indebtedness or to
purchase property or services primarily for the purpose of enabling the debtor or seller to
make payment of such indebtedness, or to assure the owner of the indebtedness against
loss, or to supply funds to or in any other manner invest in the debtor (including any
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agreement to pay for property or services irrespective of whether or not such property is
delivered or such services are rendered), or otherwise; and

3 all indebtedness secured by any mortgage, lien, charge, encumbrance,
pledge or other security interest upon property owned by the Board whether or not the
Board has assumed or become liable for the payment thereof.

For the purpose of determining the “Debt” of the Board, there shall be excluded any particular
Debt if, upon or prior to the Maturity thereof, there shall have been deposited with the proper
depository (a) in trust the necessary funds (or investments that will provide sufficient funds, if
permitted by the instrument creating such Debt) for the payment, redemption or satisfaction of
such Debt or (b) evidence of such Debt deposited for cancellation; and thereafter it shall not be
considered Debt. No item shall be considered Debt unless such item constitutes indebtedness
under generally accepted accounting principles applied on a basis consistent with the financial
statements of the Texas State University System in prior Fiscal Years.

“Defeased Debt” means any Parity Debt and the interest thereon deemed to be paid,
retired and no longer Outstanding within the meaning of Section 12 of this Resolution.

“Direct Obligation” means the proportionate share of Outstanding Parity Debt
attributable to and the responsibility of each respective Financing System Member.

“Financing System” see “Revenue Financing System”.

“Financing System Member” or “Member” means each of the institutions currently
constituting components of the Texas State University System and such institutions hereafter
designated by the Board to be a Member of the Financing System.

“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Board which currently ends on August 31 of
each year.

“Funded Debt” of the Financing System means all Parity Debt created, assumed, or
guaranteed by the Board and payable from Pledged Revenues that matures by its terms (in the
absence of the exercise of any earlier right of demand), or is renewable at the option of the Board
to a date, more than one year after the original creation, assumption, or guarantee of such Debt
by the Board.

“Government Obligations” means direct obligations of the United States of America,
including obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by
the United States of America, which may be United States Treasury obligations such as its State
and Local Government Series, which may be in book-entry form.

“Holder” or “Bondholder” or “owner” means the registered owner of any Parity Debt
registered as to ownership and the holder of any Parity Debt payable to bearer.

“Maturity” when used with respect to any Debt means the date on which the principal of
such Debt or any installment thereof becomes due and payable as therein provided, whether at
the Stated Maturity thereof or by declaration of acceleration, call for redemption, or otherwise.
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“Non-Recourse Debt” means any Debt secured by a lien (other than a Hen on Pledged
Revenues), liability for which is effectively limited to the property subject to such lien with no
recourse, directly or indirectly, to any other property of the Board attributable to the System,
provided that such Debt is being incurred in connection with the acquisition of property only,
which property is not, at the time of such incurrence, owned by the Board and being used in the
operations of a Member.

“Officer’s Certificate” means a certificate signed by a System Representative.

“Opinion of Counsel” means a written opinion of counsel which shall be acceptable to
the Board.

“Qutstanding” when used with respect to Parity Debt means, as of the date of
determination, all Parity Debt theretofore delivered under this Resolution or any Supplement,
except:

1) Parity Debt theretofore cancelled and delivered to the Board or delivered
to the Paying Agent or the Registrar for cancellation;

@) Parity Debt deemed paid pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 of this
Resolution or any comparable section of any Supplement;

3 Parity Debt upon transfer of or in exchange for and in lieu of which other
Parity Debt has been authenticated and delivered pursuant to this Resolution or any
Supplement; and

4) Parity Debt under which the obligations of the Board have been released,
discharged or extinguished in accordance with the terms thereof;

provided, that, unless the same is acquired for purposes of cancellation, Parity Debt owned by
the Board shall be deemed to be Outstanding as though it was owned by any other owner.

“Qutstanding Principal Amount” means, with respect to all Parity Debt or to a series of
Parity Debt, the outstanding and unpaid principal amount of such Parity Debt paying interest on
a current basis and the outstanding and unpaid principal and compounded interest on such Parity
Debt paying accrued, accreted, or compounded interest only at maturity as of any record date
established by a Registrar in connection with a proposed amendment of this Master Resolution or
any Supplement.

“Parity Debt” means all Debt of the Board which may be issued or assumed in
accordance with the terms of this Resolution and a Supplement, secured by a pledge of the
Pledged Revenues subject only to the liens securing Prior Encumbered Obligations.

“Paying Agent” shall mean each entity designated in a Supplement as the place of
payment of a series or issue of Parity Debt.

“Pledged General Tuition” means all of the aggregate amount of student tuition charges
now or hereafter required or authorized by law to be imposed on students enrolled at each and
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every institution, branch, and school, now or hereafter constituting a Member of the Financing
System, but specifically excluding and excepting, with respect to each series or issue of Parity
Debt, (1) student tuition charges for any student in a category which, at the time of the adoption
of the Supplement relating to such Parity Debt, was exempt by law from paying such tuition, (2)
the amount of tuition scholarships provided for by law at Ihe time of the adoption of each
Supplement, and (3) any tuition component of Prior Encumbered Revenues; and it is provided by
law and hereby represented and covenanted that the aggregate amount of student tuition charges
which are now required or authorized by law to be imposed, and which are pledged to the
payment of the Parity Debt, shall never be reduced or abrogated while such obligations are
outstanding; it being further covenanted that the aggregate amount of student tuition charges now
required or authorized by law to be imposed on students enrolled at each and every institution,
branch, and school operated by or under the jurisdiction of the Board are set forth in the Code, to
which Code reference is hereby made for all purposes.

“Pledged Revenues” means, subject to the provisions of the Prior Encumbered
Obligations, the Revenue Funds, including all of the funds and balances now or hereafter
lawfully available to the Board and derived from or attributable to any Member of the Financing
System which are lawfully available to the Board for payments on Parity Debt, including any
payments contemplated by the Agreement; provided, however, that the following shall not be
included in Pledged Revenues unless and to the extent set forth in a Supplement: (a) amounts
received on behalf of any Member under Article 7, Section 17 of the Constitution of the State of
Texas, including the income there from and any fund balances relating thereto and (b) except to
the extent so specifically appropriated, general revenue funds appropriated to the Board by the
Legislature of the State of Texas.

“Prior Encumbered Obligations” means the following heretofore issued or assumed bond
issues of the Board, to-wit:

Board of Regents, Texas State University System, Southwest Texas State University,
University Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series 1986;

Board of Regents, Texas State University System, Southwest Texas State University,
University Housing System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1989;

Board of Regents, Texas State University System, Southwest Texas State University,
University Housing System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993,

Board of Regents, Texas State University System, Southwest Texas State University,
Utility System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993;

Board of Regents, Texas State University System, Southwest Texas State University,
University Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series 1994;

Board of Regents, Texas State University System, Southwest Texas State University,
University Housing System Revenue Bonds, Series 1995; and

Board of Regents, Texas State University System, Southwest Texas State University,
Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 1996,
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and those bonds or other obligations of an institution outstanding on the date it becomes a
Member of the Financing System and which are secured by a lien on and pledge of the Prior
Encumbered Revenues charged and collected at such institution and all existing obligations of
the Board secured by a lien on a portion of the Pledged Revenues which is superior to the lien
established by this Resolution on behalf of Parity Debt.

“Prior Encumbered Revenues” means all of the tuition, fees, charges and revenues of any
nature pledged to the payment of Prior Encumbered Obligations and any such tuition, fees,
charges and revenues of an institution which hereafter becomes a Member of the Financing
System and which are pledged to the payment of bonds or other obligations outstanding on the
date such institution becomes a Member of the Financing System.

“Registrar” shall mean the entity designated in a Supplement as the Registrar of a series
or issue of Parity Debt

“Resolution” or “Master Resolution” means this Master Resolution establishing the
Financing System.

“Revenue Financing System” or “Financing System” or “Texas State University System
Revenue Financing System” means the Texas State University System Revenue Financing
System composed of the institutions and agencies currently constituting parts of the Texas State
University System including the Texas State University System System Administration, and such
other institutions and agencies now or hereafter under the control or governance of the Board,
and made a Member of the Revenue Financing System by specific action of the Board.

“Revenue Funds” means the Revenue funds’ of the Board (as defined in Section 55.01 of
the Code to mean the revenues, incomes, receipts, rentals, rates, charges, fees, grants, and tuition
levied or collected from any public or private source by an institution ofhigher education,
including interest or other income from those funds) derived by the Board from the operations of
each of the Members, including specifically the Pledged General Tuition. Revenue Funds does
not include, with respect to each series or issue of Parity Debt, any tuition, rentals, rates, fees, or
other charges attributable to any student in a category which, at the time of the adoption of the
Supplement relating to such Parity Debt, is exempt by law from paying such tuition, rentals,
rates, fees, or other charges.

“S.B. 1907” means Senate Bill 1907 passed by the State Legislature in the Seventy-fifth
Regular Legislative Session.

“Stated Maturity” when used with respect to any Debt or any installment of interest
thereon means any date specified in the instrument evidencing or authorizing such Debt or such
installment of interest as a fixed date on which the principal of such Debt or any installment
thereof or the fixed date on which such installment of interest is due and payable.

“Subordinated Debt” means any Debt which expressly provides that all payments thereon

shall be subordinated to the timely payment of all Parity Debt then outstanding or subsequently
issued.

75756396.1/08014000 18



“Supplement” or “Supplemental Resolution” means a resolution supplemental to, and
authorized and executed pursuant to the terms of, this Resolution.

“System Representative” means any one or more of the following officers or employees
of the Texas State University System, to-wit: the Chancellor, the General Counsel, the Director
of Finance, or such other officer or employee of the Texas State University System, authorized
by the Board to act as a System Representative.

“Term of Issue” means with respect to any Balloon Debt a period of time equal to the
greater of (i) the period of time commencing on the date of issuance of such Balloon Debt and
ending on the final maturity date of such Balloon Debt or the maximum maturity date in the case
of commercial paper or (ii) twenty-five years.

“Texas State University System” or “University System” means and includes each of the
following existing and operating institutions, respectively:

Angelo State University;

Lamar University - Beaumont;

Lamar University Institute of Technology;
Lamar University - Orange;

Lamar University - Port Arthur;

Sam Houston State University;

Southwest Texas State University;

Sul Ross State University; and

Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College,

together with every other institution or branch thereof now or hereafter operated by or under the
jurisdiction of the Board pursuant to law.

“Texas State University System Revenue Financing System” or “Revenue Financing
System” or “Financing System” or “System”, see “Revenue Financing System”.

SPRINGING AMENDMENT

Amendments to Master Resolution Upon Certain Conditions. At such time as: (i) in
accordance with any then applicable requirements imposed by the Coordinating Board pursuant
to the Transfer Act, Texas Tech has delivered a binding obligation in compliance with Section
7(b)(3)(B) of the Master Resolution providing for Texas Tech to make payments to the Board at
the times and in the amounts equal to ASU’s Annual Obligation and to pay or discharge ASU’s
Direct Obligation; and (ii) the Opinion of Counsel is delivered as required by Section 7 of the
Master Resolution, the Master Resolution shall be automatically amended and modified to
amend or add the following definitions without further action of the Board of Regents:

“Texas State University System” or “University System” means and includes each of the
following existing and operating institutions, respectively:

Lamar University - Beaumont;
Lamar University Institute of Technology;
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Lamar University - Orange;

Lamar University - Port Arthur;

Sam Houston State University;

Texas State University - San Marcos;

Sul Ross State University; and

Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College,

together with every other institution or branch thereof now or hereafter operated by or under the
jurisdiction of the Board pursuant to law.

The amendments to the Master Resolution contemplated above arc subject to the
following conditions: (i) no form of binding obligation other than as contemplated by the
Coordinating Board Agreement shall be considered to satisfy the requirements of the Amending
Resolution without the prior written consent of the bond insurers of any then Outstanding Parity
Debt; and (ii) no amendment of the Coordinating Board Agreement or any binding obligation
delivered by Texas Tech shall become effective without the prior written consent of the bond
insurers of any Outstanding Parity Debt.
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LAW OFFICES

MeCALL, PARKHURST & HORTON L.L.P.

717 NORTH HARWOOD 600 CONGRESS AVENUE 700 N. ST. MARY'S STREET
SUITE 900 SUITE 1800 SUITE 1525
DALLAS, TEXAS 75201-6587 AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701-3248 SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78205-3503
TELEPHONE: 214 754-9200 TELEPHONE: 512 478-3805 TELEPHONE: 210 225-2800
FACSIMILE: 214 754-9250 FACSIMILE: 512 472-0871 FACSIMILE: 210 225-2984

[An opinion in substantially the following form will be delivered by McCall,
Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P., Bond Counsel, upon the delivery of the
Bonds, assuming no material changes in facts or law.]

BOARD OF REGENTS,
TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
REVENUE FINANCING SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
SERIES 2009
IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $86,745,000

AS BOND COUNSEL for the Board of Regents, Texas State University System (the
"Issuer"), we have examined into the legality and validity of the issue of bonds described above (the
"Bonds"), which bear interest from the date and mature on the dates specified on the face of the
Bonds, and being subject to redemption, all in accordance with the "Master Resolution Establishing
the Texas State University System Revenue Financing System," as amended and the Thirteenth
Supplemental Resolution to the Master Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Bonds and the
Award Certificate (the "Bond Resolution"). Terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have
the meaning given in the Bond Resolution.

WE HAVE EXAMINED the applicable and pertinent provisions of the Constitution and
laws of the State of Texas, a transcript of certified proceedings of the Issuer, and other pertinent
instruments relating to the authorization, issuance, and delivery of the Bonds, including one of the
executed Bonds.

BASED ON SAID EXAMINATION, IT IS OUR OPINION that the Bonds have been
duly authorized, issued, and delivered, all in accordance with law; and that, except as may be limited
by laws applicable to the Issuer relating to bankruptcy, reorganization and other similar matters
affecting creditors' rights, or by general principles of equity which permit the exercise of judicial
discretion, the Bonds constitute valid and legally binding special obligations of the Issuer secured
by and payable from, together with the Issuer's other Parity Debt, a lien on and pledge of the Pledged
Revenues such lien being subject to the lien securing the Prior Encumbered Obligations.

IT IS FURTHER OUR OPINION, except as discussed below, that the interest on the
Bonds is excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes
under the statutes, regulations, published rulings, and court decisions existing on the date of this
opinion. We are further of the opinion that the Bonds are obligations described in section 1503 of



The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and that, accordingly, interest on the Bonds
will not be included in an owner's alternative minimum taxable income under section 55 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"). In expressing the aforementioned opinions, we have
relied on certain representations, the accuracy of which we have not independently verified, and
assume compliance by the Issuer with certain covenants, regarding the use and investment of the
proceeds of the Bonds and the use of the property financed therewith. We call your attention to the
fact that if such representations are determined to be inaccurate or upon a failure by the Issuer to
comply with such covenants, interest on the Bonds may become includable in gross income
retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds.

OUR OPINIONS ARE BASED ON EXISTING LAW, which is subject to change. Such
opinions are further based on our knowledge of facts as of the date hereof. We assume no duty to
update or supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or circumstances that may thereafter come
to our attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or become effective.
Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of a result and are not binding on the Internal Revenue
Service (the "Service"); rather, such opinions represent our legal judgment based upon our review
of existing law and in reliance upon the representations and covenants referenced above that we
deem relevant to such opinions. The Service has an ongoing audit program to determine compliance
with rules that relate to whether interest on state or local obligations is includable in gross income
for federal income tax purposes. No assurance can be given whether or not the Service will
commence an audit of the Bonds. If an audit is commenced, in accordance with its current
published procedures the Service is likely to treat the Issuer as the taxpayer. We observe that the
Issuer has covenanted not to take any action, or omit to take any action within its control, that if
taken or omitted, respectively, may result in the treatment of interest on the Bonds as includable in
gross income for federal income tax purposes.

WE CALL YOUR ATTENTION TO THE FACT that the interest on tax-exempt
obligations, such as the Bonds, is included in a corporation's alternative minimum taxable income
for purposes of determining the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations by section 55 of
the Code.

EXCEPT AS STATED ABOVE, we express no opinion as to any other federal, state, or
local tax consequences of acquiring, carrying, owning, or disposing ofthe Bonds. In particular, but
not by way of limitation, we express no opinion with respect to the federal, state or local tax
consequences arising from the enactment of any pending or future legislation.

WE EXPRESS NO OPINION as to any insurance policies issued with respect to the
payments due for the principal of and interest on the Bonds, nor as to any such insurance policies
issued in the future.

THE ISSUER has reserved the right, subject to the restrictions stated in the Bond Resolution
to amend the Bond Resolution. The Issuer also has reserved the right, subject to the restrictions
stated in the Bond Resolution, to issue additional Parity Debt which also may be secured by and

payable from a lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues on a parity with the lien securing the
Bonds.



THE REGISTERED OWNERS ofthe Bonds shall never have the right to demand payment
of'the principal thereof or interest thereon out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation, or from
any source whatsoever other than specified in the Bond Resolution.

OUR SOLE ENGAGEMENT in connection with the issuance of the Bonds is as Bond
Counsel for the Issuer, and, in that capacity, we have been engaged by the Issuer for the sole purpose
of rendering an opinion with respect to the legality and validity of the Bonds under the Constitution
and laws of the State of Texas, and with respect to the exclusion from gross income of the interest
on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes, and for no other reason or purpose. We have not been
requested to investigate or verify, and have not independently investigated or verified any records,
data, or other material relating to the financial condition or capabilities of the Issuer, or the
disclosure thereof in connection with the sale of the Bonds, and have not assumed any responsibility
with respect thereto. We express no opinion and make no comment with respect to the marketability
of'the Bonds and have relied solely on certificates executed by officials of the Issuer as to the current
outstanding indebtedness of the Issuer and the sufficiency of the Pledged Revenues of the Issuer.
Our role in connection with the Official Statement prepared for use in connection with the sale of
the Bonds has been limited as described therein.

THE FOREGOING OPINIONS represent our legal judgment based upon a review of
existing legal authorities that we deem relevant to render such opinions and are not a guarantee of
a result.

Respectfully,



